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NIIT Limited

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Application under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

AND

Composite Scheme of Arrangement between NIIT Limited 
and NIIT Learning Systems Limited and their respective 
Shareholders and Creditors under Sections 230 to 232 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013.

( L74899DL1981PLC015865, AAACN0085D), a public limited company incorporated under 

(Haryana).

 ( : U72200HR2001PLC099478, : AACCM9500C), a company 

Tuesday

November 15, 2022

10:00 A.M. (IST)

Through video conferencing (“VC”) / other audio visual means (“OAVM”),

Commencement of Voting Friday, November 11, 2022 at 09:00 A.M. (IST)

End of Voting Monday, November 14, 2022 at 05:00 P.M. (IST)
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1. Notice of NCLT convened meeting of the Equity Shareholders of NIIT Limited, Transferor 
Company under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

2. Explanatory Statement under Sections 230 and 232 read with Section 102 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and 
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

3. Composite Scheme of Arrangement between NIIT Limited and NIIT Learning Systems 
Limited and their respective Shareholders and Creditors enclosed as 

4.
ended on March 31, 2022 enclosed as 

5.
Transferor Company for the quarter ended June 30, 2022 enclosed as 

6.
year ended on March 31, 2022 enclosed as 

7.
2022 enclosed as 

8. Copy of the Valuation Report enclosed as 

9. Copy of the Fairness Opinion enclosed as 

10. Copy of report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company at the 
meeting held on January 28, 2022 enclosed as 

11. Copy of the report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company at the 
meeting held on January 28, 2022 enclosed as 

12. Copy of the observation letter issued by BSE Limited (BSE) to the Transferor Company 
enclosed as 

13. Copy of the observation letter issued by National Stock Exchange of India Limied (NSE) to 
the Transferor Company enclosed as 

14. Copy of the Complaint Reports as submitted by the Transferor Company with the NSE and 
BSE enclosed as 

15. Details of ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings, prosecution initiated, and all 
other enforcement action taken against the Transferor Company, its promoters and director 
enclosed as 

16. Information pertaining to the Transferee Company involved in the Scheme in the format 

and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018 enclosed as 

17.
as
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IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

An application under Sections 230 to 232 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Composite Scheme of Arrangement between NIIT Limited 
and NIIT Learning Systems Limited and their respective 
Shareholders and Creditors under Sections 230 to 232 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013.

( L74899DL1981PLC015865, AAACN0085D), a public limited company incorporated under 
the Companies Act, 1956, having 
(Haryana).

 ( : U72200HR2001PLC099478, : AACCM9500C), a company 
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To,
All the Equity Shareholders of 

 is hereby given that pursuant to the Order dated August 29, 2022 read with Order dated September 
08, 2022, in the abovementioned Company Application, passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, 
Chandigarh Bench (“ ” ) (“ ”), a meeting of the equity shareholders of NIIT 

the proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement between NIIT Limited (“
) and NIIT Learning Systems Limited (“ ”/

) and their respective Shareholders and Creditors (“ ”) on Tuesday, November 15, 2022 at 
10:00 A.M. (IST), in terms of the Tribunal Orders.

2. Pursuant to the said Tribunal Orders and as directed therein, the meeting of the equity shareholders of the Transferor 
Company (“ ”) will be held through video conferencing (“ ”) / other audio visual means (“ ”),
in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“ ”) and Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“ ”) to consider, 

requisite majority as prescribed under Section 230(1) and (6) read with Section 232(1) of the Act and Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (“ ”) Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 
dated November 23, 2021, as amended from time to time.

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act 2013, the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and any 

thereof, for the time being in force) as may be applicable, relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

Exchange Board of India Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/ 2021/0000000665 dated November 

Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited dated May 30, 2022 and May 31, 2022, respectively, 

NCLT”) and 

by any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such consents, approvals and permissions, which may be 

deemed to mean and include one or more Committee(s) constituted /to be constituted by the Board or any other 
person authorised by it to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution), the arrangement 

Transferor Company”/ “the 
Company”) and NIIT Learning Systems Limited (formerly known as Mindchampion Learning Systems Limited), 

Transferee Company”) and their respective Shareholders and 
Scheme”) the draft of which was circulated along with this Notice, be and is hereby approved. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT
or doubts, the Board, be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may, in 
its absolute discretion, deem desirable, necessary, expedient, usual or proper, and to settle any questions or 
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in the books of accounts, transfer/vesting of such assets and liabilities as considered necessary to give effect to the 
above resolution, including issuance and listing of new equity shares under the scheme, settling of any questions 

implementation thereof or in any matter whatsoever connected therewith, or to review the position relating to the 

and things as may be necessary, desirable or expedient for carrying the Scheme into effect or to carry out such 

the Scheme, or by any governmental authorities, to do and perform and to authorize the performance of all such 
acts and deeds which are necessary or advisable for the implementation of the Scheme and upon the sanction of 
the Scheme by, amongst others, the NCLT and/or SEBI and/or any other regulatory/Government authorities, to 
implement and to make the Scheme effective, without any further approval of the Board or to approve withdrawal 

whether by any shareholder and/or creditor of the Company, the SEBI, the NCLT, and/or any other authority, are 
in its view not acceptable to the Company, and/or if the Scheme cannot be implemented otherwise, and to do all 
such acts, deeds and things as it may deem necessary and desirable in connection therewith and incidental thereto, 

Common Seal of the Company, as may be required from time to time in connection with the Scheme.”

 that 

a) the equity shareholders shall have the facility and option of voting on the resolution for approval of the Scheme 

electronic voting (“ ”) during the period as stated below:

Commencement of Voting Friday, November 11, 2022 at 09:00 A.M. (IST)

End of Voting Monday, November 14, 2022 at 05:00 P.M. (IST)

b)

exercise the voting rights on the resolution proposed in the Notice and attend the Meeting. The voting rights 
of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on 

information purpose only.

c) Notice has been sent to the Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members or in the Register of 

of dispatch of Notice. 

d) a copy of the Scheme, statement under Sections 230 and 232 read with Section 102 and other applicable 
provisions of the Act and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 
2016 (“ ”) along with all annexures to such statement are enclosed herewith. A copy of this 
Notice and the accompanying documents are also placed on the website of the Transferor Company viz. 
www.niit.com; the website of National Securities Depository Limited (“ ”) at www.evoting.nsdl.com, 

Meeting through VC/ OAVM; and the website of the Stock Exchanges, i.e., BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com, respectively. 
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e) the Tribunal has appointed Mr. Anand Chhibbar, Senior Advocate as the Chairperson of the Meeting, Mr. Vaibhav 

Secretary, (FCS 2338) as the Scrutinizer for the Meeting.

f)
and such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory or other authorities, as may be necessary.

For

Deepak Bansal

Date : October 8, 2022  Membership No. ACS 11579

Plot No. 85, Sector 32,
Institutional Area, 

CIN L74899DL1981PLC015865
Website: www.niit.com 

investors@niit.com
Tel: +91 124 429 3000
Fax: +91 124 429 3333

1. Pursuant to the directions of the Tribunal vide the Tribunal Orders, the Meeting of the equity shareholders of the 
Transferor Company is being conducted through VC/ OAVM facility to transact the business set out in the Notice 
convening this Meeting. As such, physical attendance of equity shareholders has been dispensed with. The deemed 

2. Since this Meeting is being held through VC / OAVM, the facility for appointment of proxies by the equity 
shareholders will not be available for the Meeting and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed 
hereto. Also, no route map of the venue of the Meeting is annexed hereto.

3. The statement pursuant to Sections 230 and 232 read with Section 102 and other applicable provisions of the 
Act and Rule 6 of the CAA Rules in respect of the business set out in the Notice of the Meeting is annexed hereto.

4. In terms of the directions contained in the Tribunal Orders, the Notice convening the Meeting is being published by 
the Company through advertisement in the ‘Financial Express’ in English language, and in the ‘Jansatta’, in Hindi 
language, Delhi NCR Edition indicating the day, date, place and time of the Meeting. 

5.
in the Register of Members of the Company in respect of such joint holding will be entitled to vote.

6. Equity shareholders attending the Meeting through VC / OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose of quorum. In 
terms of the Tribunal Orders, the quorum for the meeting of equity shareholders is 46,183 in number or 40% in 

is not present at the commencement of the meeting, the meeting will be adjourned by 30 minutes and thereafter the 
members present shall be deemed to constitute the quorum.

7. The Notice of the Meeting and the accompanying documents mentioned in the Index are being sent through 
electronic mode to those equity shareholders whose email addresses are registered with the Transferor Company/ 
Depositories and by registered post / courier to the equity shareholders whose email addresses are not registered 
with the Transferor Company/ Depositories.
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 The equity shareholders may note that the aforesaid documents are also available on the website of the Transferor 
Company and can be accessed / downloaded using the given link : https://www.niit.com/india/training/

 and on the website of the Stock Exchanges, i.e., BSE Limited 
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com, respectively.

 If so desired, equity shareholders may obtain a physical copy of the Notice and the accompanying documents, i.e., 
Scheme and the Statement under Sections 230 and 232 read with Section 102 and other applicable provisions of 
the Act and Rule 6 of the CAA Rules etc., free of charge 
on all working days between 10:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M. upon request. A written request in this regard, along with 
details of your shareholding in the Company, may be addressed to the Company Secretary by sending an email at 
investors@niit.com

8. Institutional/ Corporate Shareholders, bodies corporate etc. (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are 

resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority letter etc. of the representative(s) who are authorized to attend the 

pkgoyal2003@gmail.com with a copy marked 
to evoting@nsdl.co.in and to the Company at investors@niit.com not later than 48 (forty eight) hours before the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the meeting of the Meeting. It is also requested to upload the same in the 

a) Pursuant to the directions of the Tribunal given under the Tribunal Orders and the Provisions of Section 108 
and other applicable provisions of the Act read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014, as amended and Regulation 44 of the SEBI LODR, the Transferor Company is providing to its equity 
shareholders facility to exercise their right to vote on the resolution proposed to be passed (i) through remote 

b)

c)
After successful login, you can see link of “VC/ OAVM link” placed under “Join meeting” menu against 
company name. You are requested to click on VC/ OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for 
VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/ Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. 

User ID and Password may retrieve the 
notice to avoid last minute rush.

d) For convenience of the Members and proper conduct of Meeting, Members can login and join 30 (thirty) 
minutes before the time scheduled for the Meeting. Members can also login and join anytime throughout the 
proceedings of Meeting.

e) Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. Further members desirous 
of speaking at Meeting, will be required to use Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting.

f) Please note that members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

I. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment 
Rules 2015, Regulation 44 of SEBI LODR and MCA Circulars, the Members are provided with the facility to 

II.
Monday, November 14, 2022 (5:00 P.M.) (IST). During this period, members of the Company, holding shares 
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be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, it cannot be 
changed subsequently.

 Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:

A)

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained 
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and 

 Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL.

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On 

which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your 
existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 

https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click 
at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on 

icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit 

Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 
voting experience.
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Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL

Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their 

without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest 
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com 
and click on New System Myeasi.

After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E 

Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration.

Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. 
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 
Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user 

in progress.
Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 

option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
 Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 

and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 
by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.:
18001020990 and 1800224430

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 

1.
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2.
‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3.
as shown on the screen.

https://eservices.nsdl.com/

electronically.
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4. Your User ID details are given below :

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL.

then your user ID is 12**************
c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 
the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 
122614 then user ID is 122614001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 
a)

your vote.
b)

which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial 
password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?
i. If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 

password’.
ii. If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 

shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 
6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or 
CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@
nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your 
registered address etc.

d)
system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
9.

Details on Step 2 are mentioned below:
How to cast your vote electronically and join virtual meeting on NSDL e-voting system
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 

holding shares and whose voting cycle and Meeting is in active status.

casting your vote during the Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link 
placed under “Join Meeting”.
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4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares 

page.

• In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 

attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to investors@niit.com.

attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
investors@niit.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are 

virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

• Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and 

• Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the Meeting through VC/OAVM facility and have 

V. 
available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 18001020990/1800224430. 

VI.
may be used for sending future communication(s).

VII.
entitled to cast their votes again at the Meeting. Once the vote on the resolution is cast by an equity shareholder, 
whether partially or otherwise, the equity shareholder will not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast the 
vote again.

VIII.

prevail and vote(s) cast at the Meeting shall be treated as “INVALID’’.

IX. Members who would like to express their views / ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a 
speaker till Tuesday, November 8, 2022, by sending request mentioning their name, demat account number / folio 

investors@niit.com. The members who have registered themselves as speaker 
will only be allowed to express their views/ ask questions during the meeting. The Company reserves the right to 
restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the meeting. The members who do not wish 
to speak during the meeting but have queries may send their queries to investors@niit.com mentioning their name, 
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X.
Ms. Sarita Mote, Assistant Manager 
National Securities Depository Limited 
4th Floor, ‘A’ Wing, Trade World,
Kamala Mills Compound
Senapati Bapat Marg,

evoting@nsdl.co.in
XI.

off date i.e. Tuesday, November 8, 2022, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or RTA at rta@alankit.com. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote 

you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30. 

 In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who acquires shares of the Company and 

Tuesday, November 8, 2022 may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the Meeting under “Access to NSDL 

XII.

transparent manner.
XIII.

•

the Chairperson of the Meeting within 2 working days from the conclusion of the Meeting upon receipt of the 
Scrutinizer’s Report. The results declared, along with the Scrutinizer’s Report, shall be displayed on the notice 

www.niit.com and on the 
website of NSDL. The result will simultaneously be communicated to the stock exchanges.

• Subject to receipt of requisite majority of votes (as per Section 230 to 232 of the Act, and Master Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021, as amended, issued by the 
SEBI), the Resolution proposed in the Notice shall be deemed to have been passed on the date of the Meeting 
i.e. November 15, 2022.

XIV. Other instructions:
Please note that:

such an event, you will need to go through ‘Forgot Password’ option available on the site to reset the same.

 Documents for inspection as referred to the Notice will be available electronically/ physically for inspection on 
all working days between 10:00 A.M. to 4:00 PM within 1 (one) working day upon request, without any fee by 
the Equity Shareholders from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of Meeting. Equity Shareholders 
seeking to inspect such documents can do so on the website of the Transferor Company at: https://www.niit.com/

 Equity Shareholders seeking any information with regard to the matter proposed to be considered at the Meeting, 
are requested to write to the Transferor Company at least seven days before the date of the Meeting through email 
on investors@niit.com
replied by the Transferor Company suitably.
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IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Application under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

AND

Composite Scheme of Arrangement between NIIT Limited 
and NIIT Learning Systems Limited and their respective 
Shareholders and Creditors under Sections 230 to 232 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013.

( L74899DL1981PLC015865, AAACN0085D), a public limited company incorporated under 

(Haryana).

 (  U72200HR2001PLC099478,  AACCM9500C), a public limited 

This is a statement accompanying the notice convening the meeting of Equity Shareholders, Unsecured Creditors, 
Secured Creditors of NIIT Limited and Unsecured Creditors of NIIT Learning Systems Limited, for the purpose of their 

between NIIT Limited (“ ”) and NIIT Learning Systems Limited (“ ”) and 
their respective shareholders and creditors (“ ”) appended herewith as . The Scheme provides 
for inter alia, (i) the reduction of the existing paid up share capital and the securities premium against the accumulated 
losses of the Transferee Company, with the approval of the NCLT in terms of Section 66 of the Act as elaborated in Part 

Transferee Company and the consequent issue of equity shares by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the 
Transferor Company pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the Act in the manner provided for 
in the Scheme and in compliance with Section 2(19AA) of Income Tax Act, 1961 as elaborated in Part IV of the Scheme. 

them in the Scheme.
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1. Particulars of the Transferor Company

(a) NIIT Limited (“ ”) having Corporate Identity Number (CIN) L74899DL1981PLC015865, 
was initially incorporated in the State of Punjab as a private company under the Companies Act, 1956 on 

issued by the Assistant Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana.  The status of the Transferor Company 
was changed to a public limited company on October 27, 1988. The name of Transferor Company was 

Number with the Income Tax Department is AAACN0085D. The email address of the Transferor Company is 
investors@niit.com and its website is www.niit.com. The equity shares of the Transferor Company are listed on 

(b) The main objects of the Transferor Company, as set out in its Memorandum of Association, have been 
reproduced below :

“1)  To carry on the business of rendering management services like staff and management recruitment, skill 
development, training and placements, technical analysis of data, electronic data processing and to 
establish and render all consultancy and other professional services of professional and technical nature. 

 2) To run and conduct bureau for computer services and in particular to develop, design, programme, 
conduct feasibility studies and also to acquire and agency for computers, their repair, maintenance and 
installation.

 3) To print, publish, distribute, import, export, sell, buy or otherwise deal in research reports, newsletters, 
books, pamphlets and other related publications relating to computers and electronics in general. 

 4) To carry on the business of providing and supply of end-to-end Information Technology Solutions, 
including turnkey solutions, including systems integration of software, computers, peripherals, networking 

and monitoring devices, conventional and broad-band wireless, wireline and optical communications 
equipment and to undertake all other related activities. 

 5) To carry on the business of providing solutions and services related to Web-technologies, the Internet and 
e-Commerce, including but not limited to hosting and application services.” 

(c) The Transferor Company is a leading global talent development corporation that is engaged in building 

companies. With a footprint in over 30 countries, the Transferor Company offers training and development 
”) and 

”). A brief on the activities being carried out by the two businesses is provided 
hereunder:

(i) : This business offers Managed Training Services (“
Development (“
North America, Europe, Asia, and Oceania. The comprehensive suite of MTS includes custom curriculum 
design and content development, learning administration, learning delivery, strategic sourcing, learning 

based learning solutions, curriculum transformation, and portfolio optimization. With a team of some of 
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(ii) SNC

programs predominantly in India and emerging economies. The programs are delivered through robust 
digital and hybrid learning models which connect corporate and individual learners seamlessly. With its 

(d)

82,20,00,000

25,00,00,000

each
35,00,00,000

1,42,20,00,000

26,74,90,762

26,74,78,762

 *includes 6000 equity shares forfeited amounting to INR 12,000

Existing ESOP Scheme. Pursuant to such ESOP allotment, the share capital structure of the Transferor Company 
as on the date of this notice is as follows:

82,20,00,000

25,00,00,000

each
35,00,00,000

1,42,20,00,000

26,89,05,052

26,88,93,052

*includes 6000 equity shares forfeited amounting to INR12,000



14

NIIT Limited

Company.

March 31, 2022 are attached hereto as 

as .

(e) The details of Directors and Promoters of the Transferor Company (as on the date of the notice) along with their 
addresses are mentioned herein below:

(i) Directors

1 Mr. Rajendra 
Singh Pawar

71
Chairman New Delhi 110017

2
Thadani

71

Director
Haryana 122009

3 Mr. Parappil 
Rajendran

69
Director

4 Mr. Sapnesh 56 Executive 

Chief Executive 

ES 187, E Space, 
Nirvana Country, 

5 Mr. Anand 
Sudarshan

62 Independent 
Director Yemalur Main Road, 

6 Mr. Ravinder 
Singh

71 Independent 
Director

H. No. 12, 1st Floor, NRI 

7
Mathur

55 Independent 
Director

8 Ms. Avani Vishal 
Davda

43 Independent 
Director

9 Ms. Sangita 
Singh

53 Independent 
Director

10 Mr. Ravindra 57 Independent 
Director Sarjapura Main Road, 

11 Ms. Leher Vijay 
Thadani

37
Director

Haryana 122009

12 Mr. Udai Singh 
Pawar

40
Director Society, St. Martin Road, 
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(ii)

1 Rajendra 
Singh Pawar 
and Neeti 
Pawar

Promoter 1,55,000

2
Thadani and 

Thadani

Promoter 1,55,000

Haryana 122009

3 Neeti Pawar 
and Rajendra 
Singh Pawar

4,27,326

4 Urvashi Pawar 56,250

5 Unnati Pawar 56,242

6 Udai Singh 
Pawar

7,500
St. Martin Road, 

7 Rajendra 
Singh Pawar 
as Trustee of 
Pawar Family 
Trust

2,24,45,644
1st

8 R S Pawar 
HUF

2,527

9
and Vandana 

2,339

10 Santosh Dogra 1,687 H No. 501, Sector 7, 

11
and Neeti 
Pawar

652

12
and Pramod 

562
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13 562

14
Thadani and 

Thadani

1,000

Haryana 122009

15
Thadani
as Trustee 
of Thadani 
Family Trust

2,29,94,229
1st

16
HUF

2,527

Haryana 122009

17 Rasina  Uberoi 15,464

18
Chablani

1,687
Dubai, UAE

19 5,66,829
Charmwood Village, 

20
Singh and 
Yogesh Singh

750 C  233, Indira Nagar, 

Note:
(a)  Details of the persons / entities of the promoter group who are holding shares of the Transferor 

Company are provided.
(b)  For Promoter/ Promoter Group :

- Rajendra Singh Pawar and Vijay Kumar Thadani are the only promoters of the Transferor 
Company.

- In the joint holdings of 
 (a) Rajendra Singh Pawar and Neeti Pawar;  
 (b) Neeti Pawar & Rajendra Singh Pawar;  
 (c) Vijay Kumar Thadani and Renuka Vijay Thadani; and 
 (d) Renuka Vijay Thadani & Vijay Kumar Thadani, 
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in the Transferor Company and in the Transferee Company, as on date of this notice is as follows:

1 Mr. Rajendra Singh Pawar
Chairman

5,84,853* NIL

2
Managing Director

1,58,527# NIL

3 Mr. Parappil Rajendran
Director

16,49,191$,^ NIL

4 4,73,052^ NIL

5 Mr. Anand Sudarshan Independent Director NIL NIL

6 Mr. Ravinder Singh Independent Director 630@ NIL

7 Independent Director NIL NIL

8 Ms. Avani Vishal Davda Independent Director NIL NIL

9 Ms. Sangita Singh Independent Director NIL NIL

10 Independent Director NIL NIL

11 Ms. Leher Vijay Thadani NIL NIL

12 Mr. Udai Singh Pawar 7,500 NIL

13 Mr. Sanjay Mal 78,704^ 1
(as nominee 
of Transferor 

Company)

14 Company Secretary 4,000^ NIL

Notes:

Mr. Rajendra Singh Pawar, as trustee of Pawar Family Trust

Mr. Vijay Kumar Thadani, as trustee of Thadani Family Trust

^ This does not include Stock Options (vested/ unvested, yet to be exercised) granted by the Transferor 
Company from time to time
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2. Particulars of the Transferee Company

(a) NIIT Learning Systems Limited (“ ”) having Corporate Identity Number (CIN) 
U72200HR2001PLC099478 was incorporated as a public limited company under the Companies Act, 

vide
dated February 7, 2003 issued by the Registrar of Companies, National Capital Territory of Delhi and 
Haryana. The name of the Transferee Company was changed to Mindchampion Learning Systems Limited vide

Territory of Delhi and Haryana. Further, the name of the Transferee Company was changed to its present 
name i.e. NIIT Learning Systems Limited vide

with effect from November 5, 2021. Its Permanent Account Number with the Income Tax Department is 
AACCM9500C. The email address of the Transferee Company is info@niit.com. The shares of the Transferee 

(b) The main objects of the Transferee Company, as set out in its Memorandum of Association, have been 
reproduced below:

“1) To involve in the research and development activities for the purpose of discovering the extent to which 
poor children in rural and slum areas in India can (a) access and (b) learn from web-based curricula 

a curriculum – and the extent to which this intervention can be software based; the extent to which the 

medium to long term. 

education including but not limited to computer hardware, software, networking, web technology and 
e-commerce.

 3) To engage into the provide consultancy services to Government, Semi Government and private agencies 
engaged in research and development in computer education, software development, internet and 
e-commerce.

 4) To carry on the business of providing solutions and services related to Web-technologies, the Internet and 
e-commerce, including but not limited to hosting and application services. 

 5) To carry on the business of providing and supply of systems integration of software, computer hardware, 
computer peripherals, networking and communication components, cabling, power supply equipment, 

and optical communications equipment and to undertake all other related activities.”

(c) The Transferee Company is engaged in providing managed training solutions which predominantly include 

comprehensive suite of solutions including content, learning delivery, assessments and technology for students 
and teachers, as well as solutions for institution administration and management. 
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(d) The share capital of the Transferee Company as on date of this notice is as follows:

1,20,00,00,000

1,15,56,40,720

March 31, 2022 are attached hereto as 
.

(e) The details of Directors and Promoters of the Transferee Company (as on the date of the notice) along with 
their addresses are mentioned herein below:

(i) Directors

1 Mr. Parappil 
Rajendran

69
Chairman

2
Thadani

71
Director

Haryana 122009

3 Mr. Sapnesh 56
Director

ES 187, E Space, 
Nirvana Country, 

4 66
Director

M 43 Tower 6, 
Ridgewood Estate, 
DLF Phase 4, 

(ii) Promoter 

 The Transferee Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of NIIT Limited, the Transferor Company. 

1 NIIT Limited 11,55,64,072*

* includes 6 equity shares held through 6 nominee shareholders holding 1 equity share each on behalf 
of NIIT Limited
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(iii)
in the Transferee Company and in the Transferor Company, as on date of this notice is as follows:

1 Mr. Parappil Rajendran NIL 16,49,191$^

2 NIL 1,58,527#

3 NIL 4,73,052^

4 NIL NIL

5 Manager NIL 0^

6 NIL 1,000^

7 Mr. Siddharth Nath Company Secretary NIL NIL

Notes:

Kumar Thadani, as trustee of Thadani Family Trust

^ This does not include Stock Options (vested/ unvested, yet to be exercised) granted by the Transferor 
Company from time to time

approved the Scheme, as per following voting details :

1 Mr. Rajendra Singh Pawar Voted in favour

2 Voted in favour

3 Mr. Parappil Rajendran Voted in favour

4 Voted in favour

5 Mr. Anand Sudarshan Voted in favour

6 Mr. Ravinder Singh Voted in favour

7 Voted in favour
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8 Ms. Avani Vishal Davda Voted in favour

9 Ms. Sangita Singh Voted in favour

10 Voted in favour

11 Ms. Leher Vijay Thadani Voted in favour

12 Mr. Udai Singh Pawar Voted in favour

approved the Scheme, as per following voting details:

1 Mr. Parappil Rajendran Voted in favour

2 Voted in favour

3 Voted in favour

4 Voted in favour

 The salient features of the Scheme, inter alia, are as stated below. The capitalized terms used herein shall have the 
same meaning as ascribed to them in Clause 1 of Part I of the Scheme:

(a) The Scheme provides for inter alia, the following:

(i) reduction of the existing paid up equity share capital and the securities premium against the accumulated 

in terms of Section 66 of the Act as elaborated in Part III of the Scheme; 

(ii)
Company and the consequent issue of equity shares by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of 
the Transferor Company pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the Act in the 
manner provided for in the Scheme and in compliance with Section 2(19AA) of Income Tax Act, 1961 
as elaborated in Part IV of the Scheme;

(iii)
the Scheme.

(b) Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the existing paid up equity share capital of the Transferee Company 

premium amounting to INR 2,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Two Crores) shall stand reduced and cancelled 
pursuant to Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act.

(c)

Effective Date of the Scheme. 

(d)
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(e) Upon the Scheme becoming effective, but prior to issuance and allotment of shares of the Transferee Company 
to the shareholders of the Transferor Company, the authorised share capital of the Transferee Company 

only) divided into 60,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two, only) each aggregating to 
INR 1,20,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Hundred Twenty Crores).

(f) The Scheme is and shall be conditional upon and subject to:

(i) The approval by the requisite majorities of the classes of persons, including shareholders, creditors of 
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company as may be directed by the NCLT under Sections 

(ii)

(iii)
Capital Territory of Delhi and Haryana, by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, as the 
case may be; and 

(iv) Any other sanctions and orders as may be directed by the NCLT in respect of the Scheme. 

 Note: The above are the salient features of the Scheme. You are requested to read the entire 
text of the Scheme annexed hereto to get fully acquainted with the provisions thereof.

(a) The Appointed Date of the Scheme shall be the April 1, 2022 or such other date as may be approved by the 
NCLT.

(b) The Scheme shall become effective from the Appointed Date but shall be operative from the Effective Date, i.e. 
the date on which the Scheme shall become effective pursuant to Clause 12 of the Scheme.

The Transferee Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferor Company.

A.

employees and general public, in the following ways:

(a)
with unique opportunities and dynamics in terms of business strategy, customer set, geographic focus, 

and organize their activities and resources to improve their offerings to their respective customers. This 

(b)

(c)

(d) The Transferee Company is the existing wholly owned subsidiary of Transferor Company that provides 
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will leverage the experience and expertise available in the Transferee Company of providing IP driven 
solutions including content, tools and platforms to customers in the education sector. 

and Twenty only). However, ongoing and accumulated losses have substantially wiped off the value 
represented by the paid up equity share capital. Accordingly, the restructuring of the equity share capital 
and securities premium of the Transferee Company by way of reduction of paid up equity share capital and 
securities premium will rationalise its capital structure.

C.

customers, employees, creditors and general public.

A.

Scheme, the Transferee Company shall, without any further act or deed and without any further payment, on 
the basis of the Valuation Report, issue and allot to the shareholders of the Transferor Company (whose name 
is recorded in the register of members of the Transferor Company as holding equity shares on the Record Date) 
in the following manner: 

“For every 1 (one) equity share of the Transferor Company of face value of INR 2 each held in the Transferor 
Company, every equity shareholder of the Transferor Company, shall without any application, act or deed, 
be entitled to receive 1 (one) equity share of face value INR 2 each of the Transferee Company, credited as 
fully paid up on the same terms and conditions of issue as prevalent in the Transferor Company.”

The equity shares of the Transferee Company issued to the shareholders of the Transferor Company under the 

Company are listed on the Effective Date.

A. The Transferor Company and Transferee Company have obtained a Valuation Report containing  the share 

”) providing its opinion on the 

Circular.

The following share entitlement ratio has been approved vide the aforesaid report:

“For every 1 (one) equity share of the Transferor Company of face value of INR 2 each held in the Transferor 
Company, every equity shareholder of the Transferor Company, shall without any application, act or deed, 
be entitled to receive 1 (one) equity share of face value INR 2 each of the Transferee Company, credited as 
fully paid up on the same terms and conditions of issue as prevalent in the Transferor Company.”

C. A copy of the Valuation Report and Fairness Opinion are appended herewith as  and 

the Transferor Company and Transferee Company for inspection.

A.
Act and rules framed thereunder) has any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their shareholding in 

Company and the Transferee Company (as applicable). Save as aforesaid, none of the said Directors or the 
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issued any debentures and hence, does not have Debenture Trustee.

of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company (as applicable). Save as aforesaid, none of the said 

Transferee Company has not issued any debentures and hence, does not have Debenture Trustee.

A. There is no debt restructuring envisaged in the Scheme. Other than as mentioned in Part III and Part V of the 
Scheme, the Scheme does not involve any capital restructuring. 

Company are provided hereunder: 

(a)

(a) 14,36,753 1.07

(b) 4,54,39,873 33.80

2 Foreign 17,151 0.01

1

Foreign Portfolio Investor 2,86,63,217 21.32

Mutual Funds 1,07,60,321 8.00

Alternate Investment Funds 48,59,817 3.61

6,094 0.00

Insurance Companies 3,51,370 0.26
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2

President of India
15,000 0.01

3

Individual share capital upto Rs. 2 Lacs 2,26,34,837 16.84

Individual share capital in excess of Rs. 2 
Lacs

99,34,840 7.39

1,779 0.00

70,02,190 5.21

Non Resident Indians 12,74,569 0.95

Non Resident Non Repartriates 5,81,219 0.43

Foreign Nationals 68,788 0.05

Trusts 41,591 0.03

Clearing Members 1,42,807 0.11

HUF 7,74,777 0.58

IEPF 4,39,533 0.33

(C)

0 0

0 0

0 0
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(b)

 The shareholding pattern of the Transferor Company would not change as a consequence of the 

(c)

1 Promoter* 11,55,64,072

 * NIIT Limited is the promoter; includes 6 equity shares held through 6 nominee shareholders holding 1 
equity share each on behalf of NIIT Limited

(d)

(a) 14,36,753 1.07

(b) 4,54,39,873 33.80

2 Foreign 17,151 0.01

1

Foreign Portfolio Investor 2,86,63,217 21.32

Mutual Funds 1,07,60,321 8.00

Alternate Investment Funds 48,59,817 3.61

6,094 0.00

Insurance Companies 3,51,370 0.26
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2

President of India
15,000 0.01

3

Individual share capital upto Rs. 2 Lacs 2,26,34,837 16.84

Individual share capital in excess of Rs. 2 
Lacs

99,34,840 7.39

1,779 0.00

70,02,190 5.21

Non Resident Indians 12,74,569 0.95

Non Resident Non Repartriates 5,81,219 0.43

Foreign Nationals 68,788 0.05

Trusts 41,591 0.03

Clearing Members 1,42,807 0.11

HUF 7,74,777 0.58

IEPF 4,39,533 0.33

(C)

0 0

0 0

0 0
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Note :

 The shareholding pattern of the Transferee Company is expected to be identical as the pre-scheme 
shareholding pattern of the Transferor Company, as mentioned in Para X (B) (a).

 Upon coming into effect of the Scheme, the Transferee Company shall issue and allot 1 (one) equity share 
of the Transferee Company of face value of INR 2 each, to every equity shareholder of the Transferor 
Company for every 1 (one) equity share held in the Transferor Company as on the Record date. 

Section 133 of the Act.

A.

shareholders of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company is given in the reports adopted by 

 and  to this Statement.

Directors:

of Directors of the Transferor Company and of the Transferee Company may change by appointments, 

the Transferor Company and of the Transferee Company. 

C. Employees:

(a)

on which they were engaged in the Transferor Company.

(b)
the Transferee Company on the same terms and conditions on which they are engaged by the Transferor 
Company.

(c) Thus, the Scheme will have no adverse effect on the employees of the Transferor Company.

(d) Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the employees of the Transferee Company shall continue on the 
same terms and conditions and the Scheme will have no adverse effect on them.

D.

(a)
rights and interest of the creditors of the Transferor Company. The creditors of the Transferor Company not 

and shall be paid in the ordinary course of business by the Transferor Company.

(b)
creditors of the Transferee Company and shall be paid in the ordinary course of business by the 
Transferee Company. 

(c) There will be no adverse impact on the rights and interest of the creditor(s) of the Transferor Company 
and Transferee Company.
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E.

 The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company have not issued any debentures or bonds and do not 
have Debenture Trustee.

F. Depositors and Deposit Trustees:

 The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company have not accepted any deposits within the meaning of 
the Act and Rules framed thereunder. Hence, no Deposit Trustees have been appointed. 

A.

A. The proposed Scheme was placed before the meeting of Independent Directors and Audit Committee of 

Committee of the Transferor Company recommended and approved the Scheme after considering various 

ratio and Fairness Opinion.

approved the Scheme based on the recommendation of the meeting of Independent Directors, Audit 

Report and Fairness Opinion. 

including Valuation Report and Fairness Opinion. 

”),

dated May 30, 2022 and May 31, 2022 have issued their observations on the Scheme to the Transferor 

attached herewith as  and  respectively. The Transferor Company and Transferee 

copies of which are attached herewith as . The Scheme along with related documents were 
uploaded on the websites of the Transferor Company.

in this statement:

(i) Reasons for losses incurred in the Transferee Company:

company continued to incur losses as the experimental model did not achieve desired scale, although 

learning methodologies. 

services including provision of content development services to government schools across multiple states 
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 The Transferee Company completed execution of aforesaid government projects and focused on the 

government schools and therefore the Transferee Company achieved positive Earnings before Interest, 

restrictions driven by regulatory changes as well as disruption in physical functioning of schools due to 
the pandemic, leading to reduced operations and orders from customers.

operations of the Transferor Company are set out in .

E.
their observation letters on the Scheme are available on the website of the Transferor Company and can be 
accessed through .

authorities in respect of the Scheme in accordance with law, as may be required.

with the Registrar of Companies, National Capital Territory of Delhi and Haryana.

the NCLT has passed directions to convene Meetings vide its Order dated August 29, 2022 read with Order 
dated September 8, 2022.

I. The Scheme is subject to approval by the requisite majority of the Shareholders, Secured and Unsecured 
Creditors of the Transferor Company and Unsecured Creditors of Transferee Company in terms of the applicable 
provisions of the Act and the applicable Rules. Further, in terms of the said provisions and the Orders, NCLT 
has granted dispensation from holding meeting of equity shareholders of the Transferee Company. Further, the 
Transferee Company has no Secured Creditors, the question of dispensation does not arise.   

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 is attached hereto as 

the accuracy and adequacy of information in Abridged Prospectus is attached herewith as .

Transferor Company, its promoters and directors in relation to the business of the Transferor Company in the usual 
.

 In addition, as on the date of this notice, no winding up proceeding is pending against the Transferor Company 
and the Transferee Company.

(a) Relevant clauses pertaining to related party transactions between the Transferor Company and Transferee 

(i) Currently, the CLG Business Undertaking is being carried on as a part of the business of the 
Transferor Company and will continue to be carried on by the Transferor Company till the Effective 
Date. The CLG Business Undertaking and Residual Business of the Transferor Company would have 
certain inter-dependencies and, therefore, to ensure continuity of the operations, the Transferor 
Company and Transferee Company propose to undertake various business relationships with each 
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basis, for which appropriate contracts will be entered into between the Transferor Company and the 
Transferee Company prior to the Effective Date. In relation to the aforementioned, some of the key 
business relationships proposed between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, 
which may continue beyond Effective Date, pertain to (a) functional support services (including 

(including SAP and other software licensed from third parties), marketing, etc.; (b) corporate and 
management services; (c) licensing of certain intellectual properties; and (d) infrastructure leasing 
and/or licensing. 

(ii) The agreements executed prior to the Effective Date between the Transferor Company and the 
Transferee Company, shall be subject to the necessary approvals of the Transferor Company and the 
Transferee Company (as applicable) in accordance with the Act, SEBI LODR and all other applicable 
provisions of Applicable Law, and such agreements shall be binding on the parties thereto.

(iii)
of the Subsidiaries and the Step-Down Subsidiaries) in respect of the CLG Business Undertaking and 
the Transferor Company shall be valid and subsisting till adequate arrangements/ guarantees have 
been provided in respect of the same by the Transferee Company. 

(b) In relation to the aforesaid clauses, the Transferor Company have prior to the date of this notice have 

 The agreements stated below have been entered into between the Transferor Company and Transferee 
Company (“collectively “Companies”) on March 31, 2022 in order to facilitate the transactions between 
the two Companies pursuant to the Scheme. Although the respective Companies have entered into long term 

will be sought from time to time, as applicable.

and conditions are as per the agreement.

(ii) Tenure: The tenure of agreement to lease is initially for a period of 6 (six) months from the Effective 

additional period subject to applicable approvals.

building, utilities, licenses and improvements to be borne by the Transferee Company).

immovable properties and will continue to own the same. After the Scheme, the transferee Company 
will also use the same for carrying on its business activities.  The proposed arrangement is pursuant 

the Effective date of the Scheme. 
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charged by Transferor Company from Transferee Company. However, in terms of the aforesaid 

cost plus basis) by Transferor Company from the Transferee Company for a period of 6 months 
from the Effective Date of the Scheme for which current approval is being sought. The Parties may 
mutually agree for an additional period subject to applicable approvals.

Further, post effectiveness of the Scheme, Transferee Company will continue to use these brands. 

business) have spent in developing the brand in the past therefore, no Royalty is proposed to 

to spend for brand promotion activities in future without any cross charge. However, since the 
Transferor Company will continue to legally own the brands, a charge on account of legal 

from the Transferee Company. Transferor and Transferee Companies may continue to charge 

• The proposed arrangement is pursuant to the Scheme and for better leverage by both 

the economic rights of using the brand also goes to the transferee Company along with the 
business contracts, client lists, related employees, capabilities, etc. The Transferee Company 

and any other derivative, which the transferee Company will create. Considering the above, 

(i) As mentioned in clause 4.2.1 (v), 4.2.1 (vi) and 4.2.1 (vii) of the Scheme, the Companies have 
entered into Intellectual Property license agreement for grant of perpetual license by Transferor 
Company to Transferee Company and by Transferee Company to Transferor Company and their 

Property (“IP”) and other terms and conditions are as per the agreement.

Companies for use of IP perpetually subject to conditions as mentioned in the said agreement and 
clause 4.2.1 (v), 4.2.1 (vi) and 4.2.1 (vii) of the Scheme.  In terms of this Agreement, no royalty 
will be charged by Transferor Company or Transferee Company in relation to usage of IP Transferee 

from the Effective Date of the Scheme for which current approval is being sought :

iii(b) below

The Parties may mutually agree for an additional period subject to applicable approvals. 

(iii) Considering the fact that prior to the Scheme, both transferor and transferee Companies have jointly 

perspective for the following:
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the Transferee Company. As part of the Scheme, the Transferor Company shall have the royalty 
free economic right to use, as a licensee, the Intellectual Property set out in Schedule III of the 
Scheme, in perpetuity from the Appointed Date. Since Transferee Company will continue to 
legally own these IPR – a charge on account of legal ownership will be done by the Transferee 
Company from Transferor Company.

in para above, shall continue to be owned by the Transferor Company. As part of the Scheme, 
the Transferee Company shall have the royalty free economic right to use, as a licensee, the 
intellectual property, in perpetuity from the Appointed Date. Since Transferor Company will 
continue to legally own these IPR – a charge on account of legal ownership will be done by the 
Transferor Company from Transferee Company.

developments and enhancements to the intellectual property owned by them or licensed to 
them by the Transferor Company or Transferee Company (as the case may be) (“Derivative 
Intellectual Property”). In the event the Transferor Company or Transferee Company (as the case 
may be) is desirous of obtaining a license to use any Derivative Intellectual Property which it 
was not involved in developing (fully or partially), the same shall be subject to the charges for 
such Derivative Intellectual Property.

 The proposed arrangement is pursuant to the Scheme and for better leverage by both entities post 
scheme. This will enable better economies of scale and utilisation of resources.

(i) Pursuant to the proposed scheme of arrangement, a Master Service Agreement is entered between 

to Transferee Company and by Transferee Company to Transferor Company (and their Permitted 

other such as functional support services (including costs allocated inter alia) such as logistics, 

(ii) Tenure: Initially for a period of 6 (six) months from the Effective Date of the Scheme.

Value as on grant date (in case of ESOP) or (d) as per the prevailing transfer pricing practice being 
followed and validated by external consultant.

of the business of the Transferor Company and will continue to be carried on by the Transferor 

business relationships with each other to provide transition and continual support to give full effect to 

the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company prior to the Effective Date. This will enable 
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 Treatment of options granted by the Transferor Company to the employees which are being transferred to Transferee 

reference:

 “Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, the treatment of the options granted by the Transferor Company prior 
to the Effective Date, shall be as under: 

(a)  The Transferee Company shall adopt the Existing ESOP Scheme of the Transferor Company, as amended 
in accordance with the variations mentioned in sub-clauses (e) and (f) below (the Existing ESOP Scheme as 
amended in terms of sub-clauses (e) and (f) as may be adopted by the Transferee Company is hereinafter 
referred to as the “New ESOP Scheme”). 

(b)  The stock options granted by the Transferor Company prior to the Effective Date to its employees or that of its 
subsidiaries (irrespective of whether they are employees of the Transferor Company or its subsidiaries or shall 
become employees of the Transferee Company or its subsidiaries pursuant to this Scheme) would continue to 
be held by such option grantees. 

(c)  With respect to the stock options granted already by the Transferor Company prior to the Effective Date 
to its employees or that of its subsidiaries (irrespective of whether they are employees of the Transferor 
Company or its subsidiaries or become employees of the Transferee Company or its subsidiaries pursuant 
to this Scheme) under the Existing ESOP Scheme, and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all such option 
holders (whether the options granted to such option holders are vested or not) shall also be issued the stock 
options by the Transferee Company under the New ESOP Scheme, in accordance with the share entitlement 

(d)  The Transferor Company shall be solely responsible for issuance of its shares upon exercise of the stock options 
granted by it prior to the Effective Date under the Existing ESOP Scheme to the option holders (irrespective 
of whether they are employees of the Transferor Company or its subsidiaries or become employees of the 
Transferee Company or its subsidiaries pursuant to this Scheme). Similarly, the Transferee Company shall also 
be solely responsible for issuance of its shares upon exercise of the stock options granted by it to the option 
holders, holding stock options prior to the Effective Date in the Transferor Company, (irrespective of whether 
they are employees of the Transferor Company or its subsidiaries or become employees of the Transferee 
Company or its subsidiaries pursuant to this Scheme) after the Effective Date, under the New ESOP Scheme. 

(e)  The Transferor Company shall take steps to amend the Existing ESOP Scheme in a manner as may be 
considered appropriate, to enable the continuance of the existing options in the hands of the employees who 
become employees of the Transferee Company or its subsidiaries. Further, the existing exercise price of the 
stock options for the option holders in the Transferor Company shall be determined by the Compensation 
Committee and/or Board of the Transferor Company, consequent to which the exercise price of the stock 
options of the Transferor Company shall stand adjusted and the balance of the exercise price shall become the 
exercise price of the stock options to be issued by the Transferee Company for all the existing option holders 
in both the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company. Such adjustment to the exercise price of stock 
options shall be the responsibility of the Transferor Company and shall not be less favourable than existing 
terms of the stock options granted under Existing ESOP Scheme. 

(f)  While granting stock options to the existing option holders in the Transferor Company and the Transferee 
Company, it shall be the responsibility of the Transferee Company to take into account the period during 
which the employees held stock options granted by the Transferor Company prior to the issuance of the stock 
options by the Transferee Company, for determining the vesting dates and exercise dates for stock options 
granted by the Transferee Company. 

(g)  Approval granted to the Scheme by the shareholders of the Transferor Company shall also deemed to be 
approval granted for (i) any amendments made to the Existing ESOP Scheme required to give effect to the 
provisions of the Scheme; and (ii) the New ESOP Scheme as adopted by the Transferee Company.”
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 The clause pertaining to the corporate approval as set out in the Scheme is reproduced below for ease of reference: 

all corporate approvals, statutory approvals as may have already been taken by the Transferor Company:

(i) in relation to the CLG Business Undertaking, whether being in the nature of compliances or otherwise and any 
other approvals as obtained under the Act or SEBI LODR Regulations including but not limited to approvals 

Company and the said corporate approvals and compliances shall be deemed to have been taken / complied 
with by the Transferee Company, by virtue of approval of this Scheme. 

(ii) in relation to appointment and payment of remuneration to the directors, key managerial personnel or for 
the purpose of such related party transactions; which are being transferred to the Transferee Company as a 
part of CLG Business Undertaking, shall stand transferred to the Transferee Company and the said corporate 
approvals and compliances shall be deemed to have been taken / complied with by the Transferee Company, 
by virtue of approval of this Scheme.

 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all the fresh appointments of directors, key managerial personnel (those 
not covered under this Scheme) and new transaction(s) contemplated to be entered into by the Transferee 
Company with its related parties shall be done in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and 
other Applicable Laws.

D.
USD 2 million in KNOLSKAPE Solutions, PTE LTD, Singapore (“Investment”). This Investment shall form part of CLG 
Business Undertaking and shall be demerged along with the CLG Business Undertaking to the Transferee Company 
upon the said scheme being approved and becoming effective.

A. In addition to the documents annexed hereto, the electronic copy of following documents will be available 

Notice of the Meetings: 

(a)

(b) Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company;

(c)
year ended March 31, 2022;

(d)
31, 2022;

(e) Copy of the Scheme;

(f)
Transferee Company approving the Scheme;

(g)

of the Act and applicable accounting standards;

(h)

(i)

(j)



36

NIIT Limited

(l)
respectively;

(m)

(n) Report of the Audit Committee of the Transferor Company recommending the Scheme; 

(o)

(p)

Company from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of Meeting.

recommend the Scheme for approval of the shareholders, Secured and Unsecured Creditors of the Transferor Company.

For

Company Secretary
Date : October 8, 2022  Membership No. ACS 11579

Plot No. 85, Sector 32,
Institutional Area, 

CIN L74899DL1981PLC015865
Website: www.niit.com

investors@niit.com
Tel: +91 124 429 3000
Fax: +91 124 429 3333
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of NIIT Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of NIIT Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the 
standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit including other comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes 
in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone
financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that 
context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have 
fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures 
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures, performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit 
opinion on the accompanying standalone financial statements.

Annexure-2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  Contd..

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters
Revenue recognition and recoverability from trade receivables and unbilled revenue (refer to the summary of 
significant accounting policies in point 2(d), (j) (iii) and (l) and the disclosure in note 8(ii), 8(iii) and 17 of the standalone
financial statements)
The Company derives a significant portion of its revenue 
from long-term and fixed-price projects. Estimation of effort 
is a critical estimate to determine revenues for fixed-price 
contracts. This estimate has a high inherent uncertainty as 
it requires consideration of the progress of the contract, 
efforts incurred to date, and efforts required to complete 
the remaining contract performance obligations. Some of 
the contracts have complex terms and conditions requiring 
management analysis, judgement and application of 
guidance for appropriate recognition of revenue and the 
corresponding balances of accounts receivables, unbilled 
revenues and deferred revenues. 

In consideration of certain key judgements and principles 
used for the recognition of revenue we have identified this 
matter to be a key audit matter.

Further, the Company has a significant amount of trade 
receivables and unbilled revenue of Rs. 1,048.38 Mn 
in the balance sheet. The Company has determined the 
allowance for the expected credit losses based on historical 
loss experience adjusted to reflect current and estimated 
future economic conditions. We focused on this risk as the 
balances are material and there are significant judgments 
involved in assessing the recoverability of trade receivables 
and unbilled revenue for calculating the expected credit 
losses.

Our audit procedures included the following:

We have performed a walkthrough and obtained an 
understanding of the process and tested the operating 
effectiveness of key controls associated with the revenue 
recognition and accounts receivable process.

We made enquiries of management and analysed contracts on 
sample basis to evaluate revenue recognition in accordance 
with the terms and conditions of the contract. We have:

Assessed the Company’s accounting policies relating to 
revenue recognition;

Checked the revenue recognition from fixed-price 
contracts by reading the supporting documents including 
inspection of contracts / statement of work/purchase 
orders from customers and documents evidencing 
delivery, on a test check basis;

Checked, pre and post-year end, sample of revenue 
recognized, with the supporting documents;

Circulated the confirmations for outstanding trade 
receivables on sample basis on year-end, and performed 
alternate procedures for the confirmations not received;

We have obtained calculation of estimated efforts 
budgeted by management and performed a comparative 
analysis to the actual efforts;

Tested the ageing of trade receivables for a sample of 
invoices;

Checked the subsequent collection made from the trade 
receivables and subsequent billing for unbilled revenue 
and inquired of management for the reasons for any 
long outstanding amounts and correspondences with the 
customers;

Checked the calculation of the expected credit loss 
model, based upon the past trend and forward-looking 
scenarios and ensured that recognition of the calculation 
of expected credit loss is in accordance with the provision 
of Ind AS 109;

Tested the journal entries impacting revenue, using 
data extracted from the accounting system, made in the 
preparation of the Standalone financial statements;

Checked the adequacy of disclosure given in the 
Standalone financial statement for compliance with the 
Accounting Standards.
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters
Impairment of investments (refer to the summary of significant accounting policies in point 2(j) and the disclosure in note 
8(i) of the standalone financial statements)
The Company has a net investment of Rs. 2,269. 36 Mn 
in subsidiaries.

Annually, the management assesses the existence of 
impairment indicators for each non-current investment and 
in case of occurrence, such investments are subjected to 
an impairment test. 

As at the reporting date, the Company has investments 
in certain subsidiaries, of which, the management has 
identified impairment indicators such as net worth erosion 
and loss in the current year, in respect of certain investments 
in subsidiaries.

Accordingly, investments have been tested for impairment 
as at year-end in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standard (‘Ind AS’) 36, “Impairment of Assets”.

Based on the management’s assessment, no impairment 
provisions has been recorded in the books for the year 
ended.

Accordingly, the determination of indicators of impairment 
as well as the recoverable amounts of investments in 
subsidiaries was considered to be a key audit matter in our 
audit of the standalone financial statements.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Assessed the Company’s valuation methodology applied 
in determining the recoverable amount; 

We have obtained financial statements of subsidiaries from 
the management and assessed impairment indicators in 
accordance with Ind AS 36;

Assessed the assumptions used in determining cash flow 
forecasts, discount rates, expected growth rates and 
terminal growth rates used;

Assessed historical accuracy of management’s budgets 
and forecasts by comparing them to actual performance;

Assessed the recoverable value headroom by performing 
sensitivity testing of key assumptions used;

Discussed potential changes in assumptions as compared 
to previous year / actual performance with management 
in order to evaluate the inputs and assumptions used in 
the cash flow forecasts;

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the models;

Checked the disclosure given in the Standalone financial 
statement for compliance with the Accounting Standards.

Impairment of intangible assets (refer to the summary of significant accounting policies in point 2(q) and the disclosure 
in note 5(i) of the standalone financial statements)
Annually, the management assesses the impairment of 
internally generated intangible assets for each cash-
generating Unit (CGU) for an impairment test. 

As at the reporting date, the Company has internally 
generated intangible assets (including intangible assets 
under development) for which management has evaluated 
future economic benefits in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS’) 36, “Impairment of Assets”. 

In consideration of the judgments required in particular 
with reference to the forecast of CGU cash flows and the 
assumptions used in estimating the value-in-use of these 
intangible assets, we have identified this matter to be a 
key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

We assessed the key information used in determining the 
valuation including the weighted average cost of capital, cash 
flow forecasts and the implicit growth. We have:

Assessed the Company’s valuation methodology applied 
in determining the value in use;

Inspected and assessed management’s most recent 
forecasts and the underlying assumptions/calculations 
having considered information on capacity, and expected 
growth rates from recent industry sources;

Assessed historical accuracy of management’s budgets 
and forecasts by comparing them to actual performance;

Assessed the recoverable value headroom by performing 
sensitivity testing of key assumptions used;

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the models;

Checked the disclosure given in Standalone financial 
statement for compliance with the Accounting standards;

Obtained management’s most recent financial results 
forecasts and liquidity analysis underlying their impairment 
assessment and tested the integrity of the forecasts, 
including mathematical accuracy;

Assessed potential changes in key drivers with management 
in order to evaluate whether the inputs and assumptions 
used in the cash flow forecasts were suitable.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT     Contd..
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters
Recoverability of deferred tax assets (refer to the summary of significant accounting policies in point 2(g) and the 
disclosure in note 9(i) of the standalone financial statements)
The Company has recognized deferred tax assets of 
Rs. 245.13 Mn on timing differences. There is inherent 
uncertainty involved in forecasting future taxable profits, 
which determines the extent to which deferred tax assets 
are recognized. 

The analysis of the recoverability of such deferred tax 
assets has been identified as a key audit matter because 
the assessment process involves judgement regarding the 
future profitability and the likelihood of the realization of 
these assets, in particular whether there will be taxable 
profits in future periods that support the recognition of 
these assets. 

There is an inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting 
future taxable profits, which determines the extent to which 
deferred tax assets are recognized. We have identified this 
matter to be a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Checked management’s calculation of the Deferred tax 
assets and the key assumptions used; 

Evaluated the design and implementation of key controls 
relating to calculation of deferred tax asset;

Checked the basis for estimating projected future profits 
and evaluated the assumptions used by management in 
these profit forecasts;

Tested the tax adjustments, with the support from tax 
specialists, which are taken into account to estimate 
taxable income, applicable tax legislation and the 
decisions concerning the possibilities of using applicable 
tax benefits with respect to the Group entities; 

Performed sensitivity analysis on projections used for 
determining future taxable income to understand and 
challenge the key assumptions used by management;

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the deferred tax 
calculation;

Checked the disclosure given in the Standalone financial 
statement for compliance with the Accounting Standards.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance including other comprehensive loss, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  Contd..
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 
a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India 
in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books;

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT     Contd..
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(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive loss, the 
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022, has been paid/provided by the 
Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone 
financial statements – Refer Note 31 to the standalone financial statements; 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company;

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed 
in note 38(x) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to 
or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries;

b)  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed 
in note 38(xi) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the company 
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and

c)  Based on such audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to the notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause 
(a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with section 123 of the Act. 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

per Sanjay Bachchani
Partner

Place of Signature: Gurugram Membership Number: 400419
Date: May 24, 2022 UDIN: 22400419AJMVLF6824
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Re: NIIT Limited (“The Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and records 
examined by us in the normal course of the audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

i. (a) (A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

 (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment are physically verified by the management according to a phased programme 
designed to cover all the items over a period of two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to 
the size of the Company and nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of property, plant and 
equipment has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have 
been noted on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the 
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or intangible assets 
during the year ended March 31, 2022.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under 
the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

ii. (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year. In our 
opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies 
of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on such physical verification. There was no 
inventory lying with third parties.

(b) As disclosed in note 38 (xii) to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits 
in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the 
Company. The quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the books 
of accounts of the Company. The Company has not availed working capital limits from financial institutions. 

iii. (a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee or provided 
security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to 
report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not provided guarantees, provided security and granted loans and advances in 
the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. The Company, during 
the year, has made investment in a subsidiary, the terms and conditions of which are not prejudicial to company 
interest.

(c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships 
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or 
without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other 
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iv. There are no loans in respect of which provisions of sections 185 of the Act is applicable. Loans, investments, guarantees 
and security in respect of which provisions of section 186 of the Act is applicable have been complied with by the 
Company.

ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH UNDER HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” 
OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
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v. The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be 
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. 
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central 
Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act related to educational services, and 
are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, 
however, made a detailed examination of the same.

vii. (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including goods and 
services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, value-
added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to duty of excise are not applicable 
to the Company. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures 
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year-
end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) The dues of income tax, work contract tax, sales tax and duty of custom have not been deposited on account of 
any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the 
statute

Nature of the 
dues

Amount
(Rs. in Mn)

Period Forum where the dispute is 
pending

Andhra Pradesh 
General Sales Tax 
Act, 1957

Works 
Contract tax

31.32 2002 - 2005 Supreme Court of India

Central Sales Tax 
Act, 1956

Sales tax 44.57* 2005 – 2011 VAT Appellate Tribunal 

Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income Tax 3.09 AY 2009-10 CIT (Appeals)

Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income Tax 14.17 AY 1999 -00 to 2005 - 06 High Court/ Income Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income Tax 15.87 AY 2010 - 11 CIT (A) (Company appeal)

Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income Tax 11.37 AY 2011 – 12 CIT (A) (Company appeal)

Customs Act, 1962 Custom duty 4.80 2012 – 13 and 2013 – 14 Director of revenue 
intelligence

 *This includes amount paid under protest of Rs. 22.22 Mn.

viii. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the 
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on 
clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix. (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon 
to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority.

(c) No term loans were raised by the Company during the year. Term loans raised by the Company in previous years 
were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on a short-term basis have 
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from 
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.
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(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries. Hence, the 
requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x. (a)  The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer (including 
debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially or optionally 
convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b)  During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by cost auditor/ 
secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT – 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistleblower complaints received by the Company during 
the year.

xii. (a)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the requirement to report on 
clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)  The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the requirement to report on 
clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c)  The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the requirement to report on 
clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the 
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. (a)  The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b)  The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under audit have 
been considered by us.

xv. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors 
and hence the requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a)  The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the 
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)  The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtaining a 
valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. 
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d)  There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report on Clause 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 38 (viii) to the financial statements, ageing and expected dates 
of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at 
the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, 
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting 
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is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as 
and when they fall due.

xx. (a)  In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a 
fund specified in Schedule VII of the Act in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the 
Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.

(b)  There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special 
account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 
22 to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

per Sanjay Bachchani
Partner

Place of Signature: Gurugram Membership Number: 400419
Date: May 24, 2022 UDIN: 22400419AJMVLF6824
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of NIIT Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these standalone 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
with reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference 
to standalone financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only 
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Sanjay Bachchani
Partner

Place of Signature: Gurugram Membership Number: 400419
Date: May 24, 2022 UDIN: 22400419AJMVLF6824

ANNEXURE - 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 
NIIT LIMTED                                              (Contd...)



87

NIIT Limited

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated) 

 As at 

Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3  1,427.69  1,399.80 
Investment property 4  0.56  0.56 
Goodwill 5(i)  -  18.35 
Other intangible assets 5(i)  136.25  169.32 
Right-of-use assets 7(ii)  68.88  94.82 
Intangible assets under development 6  61.11  16.42 
Financial assets

Investments 8(i)  2,269.36  1,436.97 
Other financial assets 8(ii)  44.93  3.68 

Deferred tax assets (net) 9(i)  245.13  106.35 
Income tax assets (net) 9(ii)  318.06  394.77 
Other non-current assets 10  18.23  0.25 
Total non-current assets  4,590.20  3,641.29 
Current assets 
Inventories 11  -  0.26 
Financial assets

Investments 8(i)  7,135.16  8,534.43 
Trade receivables 8(iii)  889.90  728.62 
Cash and cash equivalents 8(iv)  57.99  57.64 
Bank balances other than above 8(v)  940.66  2,941.86 
Other financial assets 8(ii)  1,524.07  1,160.43 

Other current assets 10  142.97  120.80 
Total current assets  10,690.75  13,544.04 
TOTAL ASSETS  15,280.95  17,185.33 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 12 267.74  284.70 
Other equity 13

Reserves and surplus 13(i)  13,344.87  15,357.28 
Other reserves 13(ii)  8.30  9.62 

TOTAL EQUITY  13,620.91  15,651.60 
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 14(i)  5.31  - 
Lease liabilities 7(ii)  58.65  75.21 

Other financial liabilities 14(iii)  0.52  0.52 
Other non-current liabilities 16  0.79  1.17 
Total non-current liabilities  65.27  76.90 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 14(i)  4.86  70.72 
Lease liabilities 7(ii)  18.73  26.33 

Trade payables 14(ii)
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  33.48  8.13 
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises & small enterprises  567.97  515.20 

Other financial liabilities 14(iii)  398.80  340.64 
Other current liabilities 16  262.72  159.93 
Provisions 15  308.21  327.67 
Income tax liabilities (net) 9(ii)  -  8.21 
Total current liabilities  1,594.77  1,456.83 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  1,660.04  1,533.73 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  15,280.95  17,185.33 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date.

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of NIIT Limited 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004 

Sanjay Bachchani Rajendra S Pawar  Vijay K Thadani 

Partner Chairman  Vice-Chairman & Managing Director 

Membership No. 400419 DIN - 00042516  DIN - 00042527 

Sapnesh Kumar Lalla  Sanjay Mal  Deepak Bansal 

Place: Gurugram 
Executive Director &
Chief Executive Officer

 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary 

Date : May 24, 2022 DIN - 06808242
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 Year ended 

Continuing and Discontinued Operations Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
INCOME

Revenue from operations 17  4,451.90  3,680.85 
Other income 18  1,533.04  1,125.86 

Total income  5,984.94  4,806.71 
EXPENSES

Purchase of stock-in-trade  3.45  10.61 
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 11  0.26  4.63 
Employee benefits expenses 19  2,428.15  1,886.38 
Professional & technical outsourcing expenses  1,147.01  1,061.61 
Finance costs 20  9.35  32.28 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 5(ii)  211.37  267.04 
Other expenses 21  749.21  478.18 

Total expenses  4,548.80  3,740.73 
Profit before exceptional items and tax  1,436.14  1,065.98 
Exceptional items 24  (23.35)  (386.96)
Profit before tax  1,412.79  679.02 
Tax expense: 25
- Current tax  61.71  7.21 
- Deferred Tax (credit) / charge  (111.01)  104.67 
Total tax expenses  (49.30)  111.88 
Profit after tax for the year from continuing operations  1,462.09  567.14 
Loss after tax for the year from discontinued operations 37  (38.92)  (31.03)
Profit for the year  1,423.17  536.11 
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

a) Remeasurement of the defined benefit obligation 26  (67.05)  (51.53)
b) Fair value changes on cash flow hedges, net 13(ii)  0.14  3.87 
c) Income tax effect 9(i)  16.88  12.97 

 (50.03)  (34.69)
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

a) Fair value changes on cash flow hedges, net 13(ii)  (1.46)  31.70 
b) Income tax effect  -  - 

 (1.46)  31.70 
Total other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax  (51.49)  (2.99)
Total comprehensive income for the year  1,371.68  533.12 
Earnings per equity share (Face Value Rs. 2 each) for Continuing Operations: 34
- Basic  10.88  4.00 
- Diluted  10.63  3.95 
Loss per equity share (Face Value Rs. 2 each) for Discontinued Operations:
- Basic  (0.29)  (0.22)
- Diluted  (0.29)  (0.22)
Earnings per equity share (Face Value Rs. 2 each) for Continuing and 
 Discontinued Operations:
- Basic  10.59  3.78 
- Diluted  10.34  3.73 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date.

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of NIIT Limited 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004 

Sanjay Bachchani Rajendra S Pawar  Vijay K Thadani 

Partner Chairman  Vice-Chairman & Managing Director 

Membership No. 400419 DIN - 00042516  DIN - 00042527 

Sapnesh Kumar Lalla  Sanjay Mal  Deepak Bansal 

Place: Gurugram 
Executive Director &
Chief Executive Officer

 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary 

Date : May 24, 2022 DIN - 06808242

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated) 
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated) 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities:
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and Tax
  From Continuing Operations 1,436.14  1,065.98 
  From Discontinued Operations  (50.10)  (31.03)

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
 Depreciation and Amortisation  211.41  267.68 
 Advances from customers written back  (2.01)  (3.82)
 Allowance for doubtful debts (net of reversal)  (3.80)  3.22 
 Allowance for Unbilled Revenue  43.28  19.87 
 Allowance for Doubtful Advances and other receivables (net of reversal)  5.12  7.84 
 Allowance for Slow / Non-moving Inventory (Net)  (1.04)  (18.56)
 Unrealised Foreign Exchange Loss (Net)  33.92  20.31 
 Finance Cost  8.46  31.08 
 Unwinding of Discount on deferred payment liability  0.89  1.27 
 Share based payments  89.68  22.79 
 Interest Income  (185.55)  (375.59)
 Rent Concession  (1.21)  - 

 Gain on termination of Leases (Net)  (0.89)  (0.18)

 Dividend Income from Subsidiary  (743.64)  - 

 Gain on sale / disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets (Net)  (3.33)  (12.45)

 Net gain on Investment carried at fair value through profit and loss  (257.97)  (468.10)

Operating cash flow before changes in working capital  579.36  530.31 

Working Capital Adjustments
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables  (188.10)  171.26 
Decrease  in Inventories  1.30  23.19 
(Increase) / Decrease  in Non-Current Financial Assets  (0.99)  40.42 
Decrease in Current Financial Assets  29.13  105.90 
Increase in Other Non-Current Assets  (1.47)  (0.15)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets  (22.23)  59.39 
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables  59.36  (13.75)
(Decrease) / Increase in Short Term Provisions  (86.51)  40.27 
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  104.80  (12.42)
Decrease in Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities  -   (0.25)
Decrease in Other Non Current Liabilities  (0.38)  (1.62)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current Financial Liabilities  48.18  (58.33)

 (56.91)  353.91 
Net Cash flow generated from operations before tax  522.45  884.22 
Direct Tax- (paid including TDS) / refund received (Net)  9.68  0.19 
Net Cash flow generated from Operating activities before exceptional items  532.13  884.41 
Exceptional Items (Other than those disclosed in movement in working capital)  -   (37.77)
Net Cash flow generated from operating activities     (A)  532.13  846.64 

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Capital Work-in-progress, internally 
developed intangibles and Capital Advances)

 (203.15)  (118.39)

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  4.45  15.02 
Loans given to Subsidiary  -   (50.00)
Loan given to Subsidiary received back  -   350.00 
Interest received  311.28  435.57 
Dividend received from Subsidiary  743.64  - 
Encashment / Placement of Fixed Deposits from / with Banks (Net)  1,457.09  (800.29)
Encashment of Deposits from other Financial Institution (Net)  773.78  476.22 
Purchase of Mutual Funds  (4,106.80)  (2,339.49)
Sale of Mutual Funds  4,990.26  2,222.53 
Investment in Subsidiaries  (832.39)  (811.95)
Expenses in relation to Investment in Subsidiary  (2.56)  - 
Expenses in relation to Scheme of arrangement  (5.33)  - 
Net cash flow generated from / (used in) investing activities  (B)  3,130.27  (620.78)
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 Year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities:

Issue of Shares under Employee stock options scheme  108.51  50.44 

Purchase of shares under buyback scheme  (2,370.00)  - 

Tax on buyback  (552.12)  - 

Expenses in relation to buyback  (15.12)  (16.57)

Term Loan repaid  (66.67)  (133.33)
Payment of Lease Liabilities  (31.25)  (51.28)
Interest Paid on Term Loan  (1.01)  (15.13)

Dividend Paid  (734.82)  (279.47)

Net Cash flow used in financing activities (C)  (3,662.48)  (445.34)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A) + (B) + (C)  (0.08)  (219.48)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Footnote 1)  68.50  287.98 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Footnote 1)  68.42  68.50 

Notes: Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement

 As at 

1 Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

Composition of Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows
comprise of the following balance sheet amounts:
Cash and cash equivalents as per the balance sheet [Refer note 8(iv)]  57.99  57.64 

Add: Dividend accounts [Refer note 8(v)]  10.43  10.86 

Total  68.42  68.50 

2 Figures in parenthesis indicate cash outflow.

3 The cash flows statement has been prepared using the indirect method as set out in Ind-AS 7.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of NIIT Limited 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004 

Sanjay Bachchani Rajendra S Pawar  Vijay K Thadani 
Partner Chairman  Vice-Chairman & Managing Director 
Membership No. 400419 DIN - 00042516  DIN - 00042527 

Sapnesh Kumar Lalla  Sanjay Mal  Deepak Bansal 

Place: Gurugram 
Executive Director &
Chief Executive Officer

 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary 

Date : May 24, 2022 DIN - 06808242

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS     Contd...
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated) 
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1 Company Information
 NIIT Limited (‘the Company’) is a talent development Company which was set up in 1981. NIIT Limited currently offers 

learning and knowledge solutions across the globe to individuals, enterprises and various institutions. The Company 
is a public listed Company and is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange (NSE). 
The current registered place of business of the Company is : Plot No. 85, Sector - 32, Institutional Area, Gurugram - 
122001 (Haryana) India.

 During the year, the Company’s registered office has been shifted to Plot No. 85, Sector - 32, Institutional Area, 
Gurugram - 122001 (Haryana) India, w.e.f. November 5, 2021, pursuant to the approval of Regional Director, 
Northern Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi.

2 Significant Accounting Policies
 This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. 

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.a) Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
 These financial statements (‘financial statements’) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standard (‘Ind AS’) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules as amended from time to time by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’).

 The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial 
Statements’ and division II of schedule III of the Companies Act 2013. Further, for the purpose of clarity, various items 
are aggregated in the statement of profit and loss and balance sheet. Nonetheless, these items are dis-aggregated 
separately in the notes to the financial statements, where applicable or required. All the amounts included in the 
financial statements are reported in millions of Indian Rupees (‘Rupees’ or ‘Rs.’) and are rounded to the nearest Million 
with two decimals, except per share data and unless stated otherwise. 

 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on May 24, 2022.

(ii) Basis of measurement

 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

•  Financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) are measured at fair value or amortised cost

•  Defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at fair value

•  Share-based payments (ESOP’s) are measured at fair value

b) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in 

which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.), which 
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of 

the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at period end exchange rates are 
generally recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow 
hedges.

 Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and 
loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
on a net basis within other gains/ (losses).

 Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the 
date when the fair value was determined.

c) Current and non-current classification
 Assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current as follows :
 Assets
 An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

• it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
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• it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
•  it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or
•  it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 

months after the reporting period.
 Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets (including deferred tax 

assets) are classified as non-current.

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
•  it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
•  it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
•  it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or
•  the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 

the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the 
issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

 Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities (including 
deferred tax liabilities) are classified as non-current.

 Operating cycle

 The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash 
equivalents. Based on the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle being a period of 12 months 
for the purpose of classification of assets and liabilities as current and non- current.

d) Revenue recognition
 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net 

of returns, trade allowances, rebates, discounts and taxes. 

 When two or more revenue generating activities or deliverables are provided under a single arrangement, each 
deliverable that is considered to be a separate deliverable is accounted separately. Where the contracts include multiple 
performance obligations, the transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on the standalone 
selling prices. Where the standalone selling prices are not directly observable, these are estimated based on expected 
cost plus margin or residual method to allocate the total transaction price. In cases of residual method, the standalone 
selling price is estimated by reference to the total transaction price less the sum of the observable standalone selling 
prices of other goods or services promised in the contract.

 Services are provided under time and material contracts and fixed price contracts. Revenue from providing services is 
recognised over a period of time in the accounting period in which services are rendered. The revenue from time and 
material contracts is recognised at the amount to which the Company has right to invoice.

 In respect of fixed price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the technical evaluation of utilization of services as 
per the proportionate completion method when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration 
that will be determined from rendering the service. The customer pays the fixed amount based on a payment schedule. 
If the services rendered by the Company exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. If the payment exceed the 
services rendered, a contract liability is recognised. Revenue from training is recognised over the period of delivery. The 
foreseeable losses on completion of contract, if any, are provided for. 

 Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting 
increase or decrease in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances 
that give rise to the revision become known to management.

 On certain contracts, where the Company acts as agent, only commission and fees receivable for services rendered 
are recognised as revenue. Any third party costs incurred on behalf of the principal that are rechargeable under the 
contractual arrangement are not included in revenue.

 Revenue in respect of sale of courseware and other physical deliverables is recognised at a point in time when these are 
delivered, the legal title is passed and the customer has accepted the courseware and other physical deliverables. 

 In other cases, where courseware is not considered a separate component under a contract, revenue from the composite 
course is recognised over the period of the training or the contract period, depending upon the terms and conditions.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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 Revenue for providing Technical Information and Reference Material (TIRM) to the business partners is recognised over 
the period of the contract.

e) Other Income

(i) Interest income
 Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is 

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross 
carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected 
cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call 
and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

(ii) Dividend income
 It is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

f) Segment reporting
 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating 

Decision Maker (CODM).

 The CEO & CFO of the Company are considered as chief operating decision makers who assess the financial 
performance and position of the Company, and make strategic decisions.

g) Income taxes
 Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the 

year. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that 
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

 Current income taxes
 The current income tax expense includes income taxes payable by the Company. The current tax payable by the 

Company  in India is Indian income tax payable on worldwide income after taking credit for tax relief available.

 Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax 
paid and income tax provision. 

 Deferred income taxes
 Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases 

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using 
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected 
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable 
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

h) Leases
 A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period 

of time in exchange for consideration.

 (a)  Company as a lessee 

 The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components 
of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative 
standalone price of the lease component and the aggregate standalone price of the non-lease components. 

 The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the 
lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the 
initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date 
less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the 
lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. 
The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment 
losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the 
straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The 
estimated useful lives of right-of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. 
Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be 
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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 The Company has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 116 for the first time in the previous year. The amendments 
provide practical relief to lessees in accounting for rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19, by 
introducing a practical expedient to Ind AS 116. The practical expedient permits a lessee to elect not to assess whether 
a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election shall account for any 
change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19-related rent concession the same way it would account for the 
change applying Ind AS 116 if the change were not a lease modification.

 The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19 and only if all 
of the following conditions are met:
(a)  The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less 

than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;
(b)  Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before June 30, 2022 (a rent concession 

meets this condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or before June 30, 2022 and increased lease 
payments that extend beyond June 30, 2022); and

(c)  There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

 (b) Company as a lessor 

 At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. 
The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting 
a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease. When the Company is an intermediate 
lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a 
sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. 
If a head lease is a short term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the 
sub-lease as an operating lease.

 If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts 
with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

i) Business Combinations
 Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as 

the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Company elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. 
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

 At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition 
date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation 
and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits is not probable.

 Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount 
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed.

 After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the 
Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets 
or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

 Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their 
present value as on the acquisition date. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate 
at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions. 

 If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held 
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such 
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. 

 If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the 
combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. 
Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets 
or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the 
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date. These adjustments are called 
as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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 When the consideration transferred by the Company in a business combination includes a contingent consideration 
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the 
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as 
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against Goodwill/capital 
reserve. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the 
‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that 
existed at the acquisition date.

 The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as 
measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration 
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted 
for within equity. Other contingent consideration is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates with changes 
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

j) Investments and other financial assets 

(i) Classification

 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

•  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or 
loss), or

• those measured at amortised cost.

 The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the cash flows.

 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive 
income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For 
investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time 
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

 The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(ii) Measurement

 At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not 
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

 Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows 
are solely payment of principal and interest.

 Debt instruments

 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and 
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its 
debt instruments:

• Amortised Cost : Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent 
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is 
subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when 
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using 
the effective interest rate method.

 • Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of the contractual 
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the asset’s cash flow represents solely payments of principal and 
interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount 
are taken through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI), except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, 
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss.When the financial asset 
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss 
and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the 
effective interest rate method.

 • Fair value through profit or loss : Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI) are measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). A gain or loss on a debt 
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investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is 
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/(losses) in the period 
in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets
 The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments that are 

measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI, trade receivables and contract assets, financial guarantee contracts, and 
certain other financial assets measured at amortised cost such as deferred consideration receivable on disposal of 
subsidiaries. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since 
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

 The Company recognises lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) for trade receivables and contract assets. The expected 
credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Company’s historical credit 
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment 
of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money 
where appropriate.

 For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly 
since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 
12-month ECL.  

 Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life 
of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from 
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets
 A financial asset is derecognised only when

•  The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
• Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation 

to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.
 Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 

rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

 Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of 
the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. 
Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of 
continuing involvement in the financial asset.

k) Cash and cash equivalents 
 For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, 

deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. Bank overdrafts are shown as borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

l) Trade receivables
 Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently adjusted for expected credit loss using the 

effective interest method.

m) Inventories
 Traded goods are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost of traded goods comprises cost of purchases 

and  all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned to 
individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average method. Costs of purchased inventory are determined 
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

n) Derivatives and hedging activities
 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 

re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value 
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged 
and the type of hedge relationship designated.
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 For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
•  Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an 

unrecognised firm commitment;
•  Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular 

risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction.

 At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to 
which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking 
the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, 
the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio 
and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure 
to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to 
be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to 
determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were 
designated.

 The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of 
the hedged item is more than 12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the 
hedged item is less than 12 months.

(i) Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting
 The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges 

is recognised in the other comprehensive income in cash flow hedging reserve within equity, limited to the cumulative 
change in fair value of the hedged item on a present value basis from the inception of the hedge. The gain or loss 
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss, within other gains/(losses).

 Forward contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions, the Company generally designates only the change in fair 
value of the forward contract related to the spot component as the hedging instrument. Gains or losses relating to the 
effective portion of the change in the spot component of the forward contracts are recognised in other comprehensive 
income in cash flow hedging reserve within equity. The change in the forward element of the contract that relates to 
the hedged item (‘aligned forward element’) is recognised within other comprehensive income in the costs of hedging 
reserve within equity. In some cases, the entity may designate the full change in fair value of the forward contract 
(including forward points) as the hedging instrument. In such cases, the gains and losses relating to the effective portion 
of the change in fair value of the entire forward contract are recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve within equity.

 Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss 
(for example, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place).

 When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge 
accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging in equity at that time remains in equity 
until the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain 
or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported in equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss within 
other gains/(losses).

 If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk management objective remains 
unchanged and the hedge continues to qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship will be rebalanced by 
adjusting either the volume of the hedging instrument or the volume of the hedged item so that the hedge ratio aligns 
with the ratio used for risk management purposes. Any hedge ineffectiveness is calculated and accounted for in profit or 
loss at the time of the hedge relationship rebalancing.

(ii) Fair value hedges
 The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The change in the 

fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item 
and is also recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance costs.

 For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is amortised through 
profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. EIR amortisation may 
begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its 
fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

 If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.
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(iii) Derivatives that are not designated as hedges
 The Company enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. Such contracts 

are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other gains/(losses).

o) Property, plant and equipment
 The Company had applied for the one-time transition exemption of considering the carrying cost on the transition date 

i.e. April 01, 2016 as the deemed cost under Ind AS, regarded thereafter as historical cost. 

 Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost 
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is 
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period 
in which they are incurred. 

 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
 Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their 

estimated useful lives as follows: 

Description of Assets Useful life
Buildings 58 years
Leasehold Land 99 years or lease period, whichever is lower
Plant and Equipment including:
- Computers, Printers and related Accessories 3 years
- Computer Servers and Networks 5 years
- Electronic Equipments 8 years
- Air Conditioners 10 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Furniture & Fixtures 7 years
Leasehold Improvements 3-5 years or lease period, whichever is  lower
Assets under employee benefits scheme except vehicles 3 years
All other assets (including vehicles) Lives prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 

2013
 Freehold land is not depreciated.
 Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets. The 

depreciation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The residual values is considered 
as nil.

 The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting 
period.

 An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is 
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in 
profit or loss within other income / (expenses).

p) Investment property
 Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the 

Company, is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related 
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying 
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

 An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from 
use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of 
the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.
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q) Intangible assets
Computer software, Educational content/products - Acquired

 These Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Education content/products-Internally generated

 Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. Development costs 
that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the 
Company are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:
• it is technically feasible to complete the development so that it will be available for use;
•  management intends to complete the content / products and use or sell it;
•  there is an ability to use or sell the content / products;
• it can be demonstrated how the content / products will generate probable future economic benefits;
•  adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the content / 

products are available, and
•  the expenditure attributable to the content / products during its development can be reliably measured.

 Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the intangible include employee costs and an appropriate 
portion of relevant overheads.

 Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is 
available for use.

 Goodwill

 Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for 
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is 
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying 
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

 Amortisation methods and periods

 Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives which are as follows:
Particulars Useful life

Internally generated (Content and products) 3-5 years

Acquired (Software, content and products) 3-5 years

r) Impairment testing of goodwill and intangible assets  
 Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those 

cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units 
are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored. 

 Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount 
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value 
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). 

 An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. 
Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

s) Trade and other payables

 These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial 
year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 
12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

t) Borrowings

 Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount 
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is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the 
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some 
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment 
for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

 Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or 
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, 
is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term 
loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on 
demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting 
period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the 
breach.

u) Borrowing costs
 General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 

a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its 
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale.

 Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing cost includes exchange 
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

v) Provisions
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 

it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably 
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

 Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined 
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with 
respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

 Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

 Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a 
contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. The provision is 
measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost 
of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the 
assets associated with that contract.

w) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term obligations
 Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 

months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of 
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when 
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet. 

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations
 The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the 

period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected 
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the 
projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that 
have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurement as a result of experience adjustments 
and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

 The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is 
expected to occur.
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(iii) Post-employment obligations  
 The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

-  Defined benefit plans such as Gratuity and Compensated Absences.
-  Defined contribution plan such as Provident fund, Superannuation Fund, Pension fund and National Pension 

system.

 Gratuity
 The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of 

the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit 
obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

 The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in Rs. is determined by discounting the estimated future 
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms 
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

 The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and 
the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained 
earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the balance sheet.

 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

 Compensated absences
 Liability in respect of compensated absences is provided for both encashable leave and those expected to be availed. 

The Company has defined benefit plans for compensated absences for employees, the liability for which is determined 
on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the end of the year using projected unit credit method. Any gain or loss arising 
out of such valuation is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as income or expense as the case may be.

 Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed within twelve months from the end of the year 
are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is measured at the expected undiscounted 
cost of accumulated compensated absences expected to be availed based on the unutilised entitlement at the year end.

 Provident fund

 The Company makes contribution to the “NIIT Limited Employees’ Provident Fund Trust” for certain entities in India, 
which is a defined benefit plan to the extent that the Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, 
between the return from the investments of the trust and the notified interest rate. The Company’s obligation in this 
regard is actuarially determined using projected unit credit method and provided for if the circumstances indicate that 
the Trust may not be able to generate adequate returns to cover the interest rates notified by the Government.

 The Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Superannuation fund
 The Company makes defined contribution to the Trust established for the purpose by the Company towards 

superannuation fund maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company has no further obligations 
beyond its monthly contributions. Contribution made during the year is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Pension Fund
 The Company makes defined contribution to a government administered pension fund towards it’s pension plan on 

behalf of its employees. The Company has no further obligations beyond its monthly contributions. The contribution 
towards Employee Pension Scheme is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

National Pension System 

 The Company makes defined contribution towards National Pension System for certain employees for which Company 
has no further obligation. Contributions made during the year are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

x) Share based payments - Employee stock option plan (ESOP)

 The Company operates equity settled employee share based employee settled plan. The fair value of options granted 
under the ‘NIIT Employee Stock Option Plan 2005’ is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding 
increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted: 

•  including any market performance conditions (e.g., the entity’s share price) 
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•  excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales growth 
targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period), and 

•  including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees to save or holdings shares 
for a specific period of time). 

 The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting 
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that 
are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to 
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

y) Share capital
 Equity share capital
 Issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as equity share capital in equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the 

issuance of new equity shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

z) Dividends
 The final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends 

are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors. 

 The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. Companies are required to pay/distribute dividend after 
deducting applicable taxes. The remittance of dividends outside India is governed by Indian law on foreign exchange 
and is also subject to withholding tax at applicable rates.

aa) Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share
 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. 

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
 Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

•  the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
•  the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the 

conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

ab) Fair value measurement
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

-  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

-  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.

 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
as a whole:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity 
instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including 
bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual 
funds are valued using the closing net asset value.

 Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example foreign exchange 
forward contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and 
rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are 
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in 
level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in 
level 3. 
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 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

 The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments (other than investment in subsidiaries), at fair value 
at each reporting date.

ac) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

 In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates.

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised prospectively.

 Information about significant areas of estimation/uncertainty and judgements in applying accounting policies that have 
the most significant effect on the financial statements are as follows:

 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions - refer notes 2w and 26.

 - measurement of useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment -refer note 2o and 3.

 - judgement required to determine grant date fair value technique -refer notes 2x and 27.

 - fair value measurement of financial instruments - refer notes 2ab and 28.

 - judgement required to determine probability of recognition of deferred tax assets - refer note 2g.

 There are no assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment 
within the next financial year.

ad) Exceptional items

 Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the income statement that are of such size, nature or 
incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance for the period.

 Materiality threshold can be used to select items to be disclosed as exceptional on case to case basis. This threshold 
would be applied separately for standalone as well as consolidated financial statements. However, in case an item 
qualifies for disclosure in standalone financial statements but not in consolidated financial statements or vice versa, this 
would need to be evaluated on case to case basis.

 Basis the above analysis, mainly following items would be evaluated for disclosure as exceptional items:

a) Business Combination: Impact of one-time accounting policy alignment / unusual write off / impairment of 
assets arising as a result of business combination, including transaction cost.

b) Fair valuation gains on business combination.

c) Reassessment / Change in life of asset (in case of re-evaluation of business/product,  impact of all assets 
specific to that business/product to be considered for applying the threshold).

d) Disputed regulatory / tax levies including tax rate change having retrospective impact (other than impact 
on account of restatement of deferred tax asset / liability for tax rate change) – only impact for the past periods to 
be disclosed as exceptional.

e) Provision for other than temporary diminution in the value of non-current investment.

f) Shareholders’ dispute settlement arising out of merger / acquisition transactions.

g) Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value or of property, plant and equipment to recoverable amount, as 
well as reversals of such write-downs.

h) Restructurings of the activities of an entity and reversals of any provisions for the costs of restructuring.

 In case of other significant item of income or expense, not covered above, the same would be evaluated on a case to 
case basis for disclosure under exceptional items.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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ae) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

 Non-current assets (or disposal Company) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They 
are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax 
assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which 
are specifically exempt from this requirement.

 An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal Company) to fair 
value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increase in fair value less costs sell of an asset (or 
disposal Company), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not 
previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal Company) is recognised at the date 
of derecognition.

 Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal Company) are not depreciated or amortised while they 
are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal Company classified 
as held for sale continue to recognised.

 Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal Company classified as held for sale are 
presented separately from the other assets in balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal Company classified as held for 
sale are presented separately from other liabilities in balance sheet.

 A discontinued operations is a component of the entity that has been disposed off or is classified as held for sale and 
that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated 
plan to dispose off such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to 
resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the statement of profit and loss.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

4 Investment Property
Particulars  Amount 
Year ended March 31, 2021
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 0.56
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 0.56
Year ended March 31, 2022
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 0.56
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 0.56

 (i)  The Company has not generated any rental income from the investment property, since inception.
 (ii) The Company’s investment property consist of one piece of Land in district Mehsana, Gujarat, India. The management has determined that the 

5(i) Intangible Assets, Goodwill and Intangible assets under development

Particulars

Educational
Content/
Products 
Internally

Generated

Software
Acquired

 Total intangibles 
assets other 

than Goodwill 
and intangibles 

assets under 
development

Goodwill
(refer

footnote
iii)

Intangible
assets under 
development
(footnote i)

 Total 
Intangible

assets

Year ended March 31, 2021
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount  584.08  191.24  775.32  18.35  76.32  869.99 
Additions  112.48  -   112.48  -   52.58  165.06 
Transfer  -   -   -   -   112.48  112.48 
Disposals/Sale  -   75.95  75.95  -   -  75.95 
Closing gross carrying amount (A)  696.56  115.29  811.85  18.35  16.42  846.62 
Accumulated amortisation and 
impairment
Opening accumulated amortisation 
and impairment

 414.69  156.71  571.40  -   -   571.40 

Amortisation charge for the year  115.64  31.19  146.83  -   -  146.83 
Disposals/Sale  -   75.70  75.70  -   -  75.70 
Closing accumulated amortisation (B)  530.33  112.20  642.53  -   -   642.53 
Net carrying amount (A-B)  166.23  3.09  169.32  18.35  16.42  204.09 
Year ended March 31, 2022
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount  696.56  115.29  811.85  18.35  16.42  846.62 
Additions  52.05  14.73  66.78  -   96.74  163.52 
Transfer  -   -   -   -   52.05  52.05 
Disposals/Sale  -   -   -   -   -  - 
Closing gross carrying amount (C)  748.61  130.02  878.63  18.35  61.11  958.09 
Accumulated Amortisation and 
Impairment
Opening accumulated amortisation 
and impairment

 530.33  112.20  642.53  -   -   642.53 

Amortisation charge for the year  92.28  7.57  99.85  -   -  99.85 
Impairment charge for the year  -   -   -   18.35  -  18.35 
Disposals/Sale  -   -   -   -   -  - 
Closing accumulated amortisation (D)  622.61  119.77  742.38  18.35  -   760.73 
Net carrying amount (C-D)  126.00  10.25  136.25  -   61.11  197.36 

Footnotes:-
(i)   Refer note 6 for cost incurred during the year on internally generated intangible assets.
(ii)  For details of assets pledged as security [Refer note 14(i)].
(iii) The recoverable amount of the Perceptron Labs CGU has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections approved by senior management. Based on which, it was concluded that the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount.
As a result of this analysis, the Company has recognised an impairment charge of Rs. 18.35 Million against goodwill in the statement
of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022. The Company has considered discount rate of 11.75% and long term growth 
rate as nil.
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5(ii) Reconciliation of Depreciation and Amortisation charged to Statement of Profit and 

Loss (Continuing and discontinued operations) 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Depreciation and amortisation recognised in statement of profit and loss under the 

head depreciation and amortisation expenses

(i) Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment  66.25  69.19 

(ii) Amortisation/Impairment on Intangible assets  118.20  146.83 

(iii) Depreciation on Right-of-use Assets  26.96  51.66 

Total (A)  211.41  267.68 

Depreciation / Amortisation recognised in statement of profit and loss of Discontinued 

operations

(i) Depreciation / Amortisation on Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets  0.04  0.36 

(ii) Depreciation on Right-of-use Assets  -   0.28 

Total (B)  0.04  0.64 

Depreciation / Amortisation recongnised in statement of profit and loss as continuing 

operations (A-B)
 211.37  267.04 

6 Intangible assets under development
 The Company internally develops software tools, platforms and content / courseware. The management estimates 

that this would result in enhanced productivity and offer more technology based learning products / solutions to the 
customers in future. The Company is confident of its ability to generate future economic benefits out of the above 
mentioned assets. The costs incurred during the year towards the development are as follows:

Year ended 

Description March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Opening Balance  16.42  76.32 

Add:-Expenses capitalised during the year

Salary and other Employee Benefits  62.97  34.45 

Professional & Technical Outsourcing Expenses  26.13  18.13 

Other expenses  7.64  - 

Less:-Intangible assets capitalised during the year  (52.05)  (112.48)

Closing Balance  61.11  16.42 

Ageing of Projects

Projects in progress Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

March 31, 2022 50.95 10.16  -    -   61.11

March 31, 2021 16.42  -    -    -   16.42

7 Leases
7(i) The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss for short term leases:

Year ended 

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

In respect of Premises* 2.51  2.67 

In respect of Equipments**  50.86  39.99 

In respect of Vehicles  1.97  2.94 

 55.34  45.60 
* Includes payment in respect of premises for office and employee accommodation.
** Includes payment in respect of computers, printers and other equipments.
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7(ii) Right-of-use Assets / (Lease Liabilities)

The following are the carrying amount of right-of-use assets recognised and movement :
Particulars Building Vehicle Total
As at April 1, 2020
Additions / Modifications
Deletion [Refer note 24(i)] 
Depreciation

 380.31
 18.04

  (292.35)
 (36.61)

 36.24 
7.43

 (3.19)
 (15.05)

 416.55 
25.47

 (295.54)
 (51.66)

As at March 31, 2021  69.39  25.43  94.82 
Additions / Modifications
Deletion
Depreciation

5.57
 (5.50)

 (14.70)

3.94
 (2.99)

 (12.26)

9.51
 (8.49)

 (26.96)

As at March 31, 2022 54.76 14.12 68.88

The following are the carrying amount of lease liabilities and movement:
Particulars Total
As at April 01, 2020
Additions / Modifications
Deletion [Refer note 24(i)]
Accretion of interest
Payments
Rent concession* 

 428.56 
24.77

 (309.05)
16.46

 (51.28)
(7.92)

As at March 31, 2021  101.54 

Additions / Modifications
Deletion
Accretion of interest
Payments
Rent concession* 

9.38
 (9.06)

7.98
 (31.25)

(1.21)
 As at March 31, 2022  77.38 
*During the year, the Company has availed rent concessions of Rs. 1.21 Million (Previous year Rs. 7.92 Million) from lessors on
account of COVID-19 and recorded the same as other income and exceptional income respectively in the statement of profit and loss
consequent to amendment in Ind AS 116 “Leases” [Refer notes 18 and 24(ii)].

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:-

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current Lease liabilities  18.73  26.33 
Non-Current Lease liabilities  58.65  75.21 
Total  77.38  101.54 

The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:-

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation expenses of right-of-use assets*  26.96  51.38 
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer note 20)**  7.98  16.39 
Gain on termination of Leases (Net) [Refer notes 18 and 24(i)] #  (0.89)  (25.60)
Total  34.05  42.17 
There are only fixed rental payable as per the terms of the contracts.

*Excluding depreciation charged in discontinued operations in statement of profit and loss Rs. Nil  (Previous year Rs. 0.28 Million).
**Excluding Interest on lease liabilities charged in discontinued operations in statement of profit and loss Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. 0.07 
Million).
#Includes Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. 25.42 Million) recognised as exceptional items in the statement of profit and loss [Refer note 24(i)].

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities:

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Less than one year  18.73  26.33 

One to two years  14.43  20.71 

More than two years  44.22  54.50 

Total  77.38  101.54 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)
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8 Financial Assets

8(i) Investments 

A. Non-Current Investment
 As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Investments in equity instruments (fully paid)
Unquoted in subsidiary companies:
In Subsidiary Companies
-Equity
(Valued at cost)
10,662,113 (Previous year : 10,662,113) shares of US $ 1 each fully paid-up in NIIT 
(USA) Inc., USA [Refer footnote (v)]

 478.15  478.15 

10,000,000 (Previous year : 10,000,000) Equity Shares of  NGN 1 each fully paid-up 
in NIIT West Africa Limited, Nigeria

 8.37  8.37 

Less: Provision for impairment in value of Investment  (8.37)  (8.37)
 -   - 

5,541,000 (Previous year : 5,541,000) shares of MYR 1 each fully paid-up in NIIT 
Malaysia SDN. BHD, Malaysia

 91.66  91.66 

2,400,000 (Previous year : 2,400,000) shares of US$ 1 each fully paid-up in NIIT GC 
Limited, Mauritius

 389.07  389.07 

4,150,000 (Previous year : 4,150,000) shares of Euro 1 each fully paid-up in NIIT 
Ireland Limited, Ireland  357.73  357.73 

155,000 (Previous year : 155,000) shares of GBP 1 each fully paid-up in NIIT Limited, UK  13.10  13.10 
115,564,072 (Previous year : 115,564,072) shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in 
NIIT Learning Systems Limited, India  [Formerly known as Mindchampion Learning 
Systems Limited] [Refer footnote (iii)]

 1,274.78  1,274.78 

Less: Provision for impairment in value of Investment [Refer note 24(iii)]  (1,253.50)  (1,253.50)
 21.28  21.28 

8,162,500 (Previous year : 8,162,500) shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in  NIIT 
Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited, India  85.98  85.98 

22,000,000 (Previous year : 22,000,000) shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in NIIT 
Institute of Process Excellence Limited, India  220.00  220.00 

Less:- Interim Amount received pursuant to liquidation process of entity [Refer footnote (i)]  (220.00)  (220.00)
 -   - 

Nil (Previous year : 60,000,000) shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in NIIT Yuva Jyoti 
Limited, India [Refer footnote (ii)] - 482.55

Less: Provision for impairment in value of Investment [Refer footnote (ii)] -  (482.55)
 -   - 

525,000 (Previous year : Nil) shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in  RPS Consulting 
Private Limited, India [Refer footnote (iv)]  832.39 -

Total Non-Current Investments  2,269.36  1,436.97 

B. Current Investment 
(i) Carried at Fair Value through statement of profit and loss [Quoted]

Investment in Mutual Funds  5,688.16  6,313.65 

(ii) Carried at amortised cost [Unquoted] 
Investment in term deposits with Financial Institution  1,447.00  2,220.78 
Total Current Investments  7,135.16  8,534.43 

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments  5,198.23  5,622.17 
Less: Aggregate of Interim Amount received pursuant to liquidation process of entity  (220.00)  (220.00)
Less: Aggregate Provision for impairment in the value of Investments  (1,261.87)  (1,744.42)
Total Unquoted Investments  3,716.36  3,657.75 
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments at market value  5,688.16  6,313.65 
Total Quoted Investments  5,688.16  6,313.65 
Total Investments  9,404.52  9,971.40 
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Footnotes:-
(i) On February 19, 2020, the members of the NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited  passed a special resolution at the extra-ordinary 

general meeting of the Company to liquidate the Company by way of voluntary liquidation. The Company shall from the date of the
commencement of liquidation i.e. February 19, 2020, cease to carry on its business except as far as required for the beneficial winding up 
of its business. During the process of liquidation, the Liquidator had distributed an interim amount of Rs. 220 Million to the Shareholder
(NIIT Limited), post realisation of assets and payment of liabilities. The voluntary liquidation of NIPE is in progress.

(ii) On February 19, 2020, the members of the NIIT Yuva Jyoti Limited (NYJL) passed a special resolution at the extra-ordinary general meeting 
of the Company to liquidate the Company by way of voluntary liquidation. The Company shall from the date of the commencement of
liquidation i.e. February 19, 2020, cease to carry on its business except as far as required for the beneficial winding up of its business. 

 During the year, NCLT vide its order dated February 25, 2022, read with the rectification order dated March 23, 2022 approved the
dissolution of NYJL with effect from February 25, 2022. Consequent to the above, all the shares held by the Company in NYJL were
cancelled.

(iii) During the financial year 2019-20, the Company decided to divest NIIT Learning Systems Limited  (NLSL) [Formerly known as Mindchampion 
Learning Systems Limited], to a strategic or financial investor. Therefore as per provisions of Ind AS 105 - ‘Non-current assets held for sale 
and Discontinued Operations’,  the investment made by the Company in  NLSL was classified as ‘Asset held for Sale’.

 The Board of Directors in its meeting held on January 28, 2022  decided not to pursue the process of divestment of NLSL and leverage its 
assets and resources of the company for its offerings in the education sector and house the CLG Business Undertaking under the Scheme.
Consequently, as per Ind AS 105 the investment of  NLSL has been reclassified as non-current investment with corresponding restatement
in the previous year [Refer note 38(ix)].

(iv) During the year, the Company entered into Share Purchase Agreement and other transaction documents with RPS Consulting Private Limited 
(“RPS”) and promoters/existing shareholders of RPS to acquire 70% equity shareholding (on a fully diluted basis) for a consideration of Rs. 
826.61 Million. The remaining 30% shareholding of RPS will be acquired by the Company in next 2 tranches based on achievement of
certain financial milestones in terms of the transaction documents. Acquisition related cost of Rs. 5.78 Million that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition of investment in RPS, has been added to the cost of the investment and other indirect cost has been recognised as an 
exceptional item in the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022.

(v) The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on June 4, 2021, approved the merger of Eagle International Institute, Inc., USA 
(step down subsidiary of the Company) with its holding company i.e. NIIT (USA) Inc., USA (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company).
The merger has been made effective from July 1, 2021.

As at
8(ii) Other Financial Assets March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non-Current Current
a) Security Deposits 

 Unsecured, considered good  5.48  3.68  2.20  7.87 
 Unsecured, considered doubtful  14.39  14.39  -   - 
 Less: Allowance for doubtful deposits  (14.39)  (14.39)  -   - 

 5.48  3.68  2.20  7.87 
b) Contract Assets - Unbilled Revenue

 Unsecured, considered good (Refer note 17.1) *  -   -   158.48  140.94 
 Unsecured, considered doubtful  -   -   91.31  48.03 
 Less: Allowance for doubtful unbilled revenue 
   (Refer note 29)

 -   -   (91.31)  (48.03)

-  -   158.48  140.94 
c) Interest Receivable

 Interest Accrued on bank and other deposits  0.20  -   106.15  232.71 
 0.20  -   106.15  232.71 

d) Derivative Assets (Refer note 29) -  -   16.20 26.34 
-  -   16.20 26.34 

e) Other Receivables
 Other Receivables -   -   196.77  269.57 
 Receivables from related parties -   -   166.77  109.93 
 Unsecured, considered doubtful -   -   11.47  7.23 
 Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables -   -   (11.47)  (7.23)

-  -   363.54  379.50 
f) Bank deposits

With remaining maturity of less than 12 months  -   -   877.50 373.07
With remaining maturity of more than 12 months**  39.25  -   -   - 

 39.25  -   877.50  373.07 
 44.93  3.68  1,524.07  1,160.43 

*Includes unbilled revenue from related parties Rs. 1.80 Million (Previous year Rs. Nil).
**Deposit of  Rs. 0.25 Million (Previous year Rs. Nil) pledged as margin money with bank for issuance of bank guarantees.
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Ageing of unbilled revenue from transaction date as at March 31, 2022

Particulars
Less than 6 

Months
6 months - 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 
3 years

Total

Undisputed Unbilled revenue - Considered 
Good

 150.77  7.71  -   -   -   158.48 

Undisputed Unbilled revenue - Credit impaired  -   -   0.30  1.83  89.18  91.31 
Total  150.77  7.71  0.30  1.83  89.18  249.79 
Less: Allowance for doubtful unbilled revenue  (91.31)
Total Unbilled Revenue  158.48 

Ageing of unbilled revenue from transaction date as at March 31, 2021

Particulars
Less than 6 

Months
6 months - 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 
3 years

Total

Undisputed Unbilled revenue - Considered 
Good

 101.36  2.73  1.83  -   35.02  140.94 

Undisputed Unbilled revenue - Credit impaired  -   -   -   -   48.03  48.03 
Total  101.36  2.73  1.83  -   83.05  188.97 
Less: Allowance for doubtful unbilled revenue  (48.03)
Total Unbilled Revenue  140.94 

As at 
8(iii) Trade Receivables March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current

Unsecured, considered good

 Trade Receivables  425.93  250.84 

 Receivables from related parties  463.97  477.78 

Unsecured - credit impaired  312.92  329.79 

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (Refer note 29)  (312.92)  (329.79)

 889.90  728.62 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

Ageing of Trade Receivables as at March 31, 2022

Particulars  Not due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

TotalLess than 
6 Months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

3 years
Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Considered Good

 816.95  67.63  4.68  -  0.64  -  889.90 

Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit 
impaired

 0.18  0.39  0.91  0.37  11.56  299.51  312.92 

Total  817.13  68.02  5.59  0.37  12.20  299.51  1,202.82 
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts  (312.92)
Total Trade Receivables   889.90 

Ageing of Trade Receivables as at March 31, 2021

Particulars  Not due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

TotalLess than 
6 Months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

3 years
Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Considered Good

 624.47  38.55  21.81  43.79  -  -  728.62 

Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit 
impaired

 0.19  0.18  1.75  19.04  6.46  302.17  329.79 

Total  624.66  38.73  23.56  62.83  6.46  302.17  1,058.41 
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts  (329.79)
Total Trade Receivables   728.62 
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As at 
8(iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current
Balance with banks
 -Current accounts  57.99  32.64 
 -Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months*  -   25.00 

 57.99  57.64 
*Short term Deposits are made with banks for varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Company and to earn interest at the respective short term deposit rates.

As at 
8(v) Bank Balances other than above March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Bank deposits
 -With original maturity of more than 3 months and upto 12 months*  930.23  2,931.00 
Dividend accounts  10.43  10.86 

 940.66  2,941.86 

*Deposit of  Rs. 0.10 Million (Previous year Rs. 2.24 Million) pledged as margin money with bank for issuance of bank guarantees.
Deposits are made with banks for varying periods, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company and to earn 
interest at the respective term deposit rates.

9 Tax Assets (Net) As at 
9(i) Deferred tax assets/ liabilities March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Deferred Tax Assets
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Provision for Employee benefits 69.22 74.01
Provision for Doubtful debts, Unbilled revenue, inventory & other assets 106.08 99.99
Provision for Contingency 11.22 11.22
Difference between carrying value of Property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets in the financial statements and as per the Income Tax

 75.74  94.36 

Difference between carrying value of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as per Ind 
AS 116 in the financial statements and as per the Income Tax

 2.14  1.69 

Long Term Capital Loss upon  NIIT Yuva Jyoti Limited (NYJL) Liquidation  [Refer notes 
(b) below and 8(i)]

 179.51  - 

Scheme related expenses  4.91  - 
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Unrealised gain on Investment marked to market  (203.51)  (174.92)
Others  (0.18)  - 
Net Deferred Tax Assets recognised  245.13  106.35 

a) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are being offset as they relate to taxes on income levied by the tax jurisdiction in India.
b) Based on the expected return on investments as per future business plan, the Company has recognised Deferred Tax Asset of Rs. 179.51

Million on long term capital losses on cancellation of shares of NYJL [Refer note 25(b)].

  The movement in deferred tax assets during the year is as follows:

Particulars Amount

Opening balance as at April 1, 2020  198.05 

Movement during the year recognised in statement of profit and loss  (104.67)

Movement during the year recognised in other comprehensive income  12.97 

As at March 31, 2021  106.35 

Movement during the year recognised in statement of profit and loss  111.01 

Movement during the year recognised in other comprehensive income  16.88 

Movement during the year recognised in statement of profit and loss from discontinued operations (Refer note 37)  10.89 

As at March 31, 2022  245.13 

As at
9(ii) Income tax assets / (liabilities) (Net) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non-Current Current
  Advance Income Tax  439.52  1,911.16  -   51.05 

  Less : Provision for Income Tax  (121.46)  (1,516.39)  -   (59.26)

 318.06  394.77  -   (8.21)
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As at

10 Other Assets March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
 Non-Current  Current 

i) Capital Advances
Unsecured, considered good  16.51  -   -   - 

 16.51  -   -   - 
ii) Advances to Suppliers in cash or in kind

Unsecured, considered good  -   -   17.78  19.04 
Unsecured, considered doubtful  -   -   7.81  9.74 
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances  -   -   (7.81)  (9.74)

 -   -   17.78  19.04 
iii) Other Advances recoverable in cash or 

in kind
Unsecured, considered good*  0.28  0.05  8.17  7.45 
Unsecured, considered doubtful  -   -   0.84  1.85 
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances  -   -   (0.84)  (1.85)

 0.28  0.05  8.17  7.45 

*Includes recoverable from related parties Rs. 0.26 Million (Previous year Rs. 0.48 Million).
iv) Prepaid expenses 

 Unsecured, considered good  1.44  0.20  106.82  76.99 
 1.44  0.20  106.82  76.99 

v) Balances with Government  

Authorities (net)
 -   -   10.20  17.32 

 -   -   10.20  17.32 
 18.23  0.25  142.97  120.80 

As at

11 Inventories March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

As at the end of the year
Stock-in-trade

Education and Training Material* -  0.26 

-  0.26 
As at the beginning of the year
Stock-in-trade

Education and training material*  0.26  4.89 
 0.26  4.89 

Decrease in inventories  0.26  4.63 

* Net of provision for non-moving inventories of Rs. 0.24 Million (Previous year Rs. 1.28 Million).

12 Share Capital
a) Authorised share capital

Particulars 

 Equity shares of Rs. 2 
each

 Redeemable preference 
shares of Rs. 100 each 

 Cumulative redeemable 
preference shares of Rs. 1 each 

 Number of 
shares

 Amount  Number of 
shares

 Amount  Number of 
shares

 Amount 

As at April 1, 2020
Addition during the year
As at March 31, 2021
Addition during the year
As at March 31, 2022

411,000,000
 - 

411,000,000
 - 

411,000,000

822.00
 - 

822.00
 - 

822.00

2,500,000
 - 

2,500,000
 - 

2,500,000

 250.00 
 - 

 250.00 
 - 

 250.00 

 350,000,000 
 - 

 350,000,000 
 - 

 350,000,000 

 350.00 
 - 

 350.00 
 - 

 350.00 
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b) Movement in equity share capital

Subscribed and paid up share capital 
Equity shares

 Number of shares  Amount 
As at April 1, 2020*  141,508,401  283.03 
Issued during the year (Refer note 27)  836,583  1.67 
As at March 31, 2021  142,344,984  284.70 
Issued during the year (Refer note 27)  1,397,263  2.79 
Shares extinguished on Buyback #  (9,875,000)  (19.75)
As at March 31, 2022  133,867,247  267.74 

 * Paid up share capital includes  Rs. 0.01 Million originally paid up towards 6,000 forfeited shares.
#During the year, the Company has concluded the buyback of 9,875,000 equity shares at a price of Rs. 240 per equity share (“Buyback”) 
as approved earlier by the Board of Directors on December 24, 2020. Buyback was completed on May 7, 2021 and the equity shares 
bought back were extinguished on May 11, 2021. Total outflow of Rs. 2,370 Million has been utilised from the share capital, securities
premium account and retained earnings, in line with the requirement under the Companies Act 2013. Further tax on Buyback and 
Buyback related expenses amounting to Rs. 552.12 Million and Rs. 15.12 Million (Previous year: Rs. 16.57 Million) respectively have
also been utilised from retained earnings. Additionally, Capital Redemption Reserve of Rs. 19.75 Million (equivalent to nominal value of 
the equity shares bought back) has been created out of retained earnings, in line with the requirement under the Companies Act 2013.
Consequent to extinguishment of shares so bought back, the paid-up equity share capital has been reduced by Rs. 19.75 Million (Refer 
note 13).

c) Terms / rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 2 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote 
per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend (excluding interim dividend) proposed by the Board
of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

d) Shares reserved for issue under options
Information relating to Employee Stock Option Plan, including details of options issued, granted, exercised and lapsed during the
financial year and options outstanding at the end of the reporting year, is set out in Note 27.

e) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

 Number of 
shares

%
of holding

 Number of 
shares

% of 
holding

Rajendra Singh Pawar as Trustee of Pawar Family Trust  22,445,644 16.77%  23,280,989 16.36%

Vijay Kumar Thadani as Trustee of Thadani Family Trust  22,994,229 17.18%  23,830,065 16.74%

Nippon Life India Trustee Ltd - A/c Nippon India Small Cap Fund  10,139,961 7.57%  10,130,712 7.12%

Massachusetts Institute of Technology  7,714,530 5.76%  8,820,000 6.20%

Total  63,294,364 47.28%  66,061,766 46.42%

f) Other details of equity shares for a period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2022
 Equity shares extinguished on buyback
 During the financial year 2019-20, the Company bought back 26,800,000 equity shares for an aggregate amount of Rs. 3,350 Million

(excluding taxes, fees and expenses) at a price of Rs. 125 per equity share. The equity shares bought back were extinguished on December 
23, 2019.

g) Details of shares held by promoters and Promoter Group 
 As at March 31, 2022

Particulars

No. of 
shares at the 
beginning of 

the year

Change
during the 

year

No. of shares 
at the end of 

the year

% of Total 
Shares

% change 
during the 

year

Promoters      

Rajendra Singh Pawar  155,000  -  155,000 0.12% 0.00%

Vijay Kumar Thadani  155,000  -  155,000 0.12% 0.00%

Promoter Group      

Rajendra Singh Pawar as Trustee of Pawar Family Trust  23,280,989  (835,345)  22,445,644 16.77% (3.59%)

Vijay Kumar Thadani as Trustee of Thadani Family Trust  23,830,065  (835,836)  22,994,229 17.18% (3.51%)
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Particulars

No. of 
shares at the 
beginning of 

the year

Change
during the 

year

No. of shares 
at the end of 

the year

% of Total 
Shares

% change 
during the 

year

Arvind Thakur  606,508  (39,679)  566,829 0.42% (6.54%)

Neeti Pawar and Rajendra Singh Pawar  427,326  -  427,326 0.32% 0.00%

Urvashi Pawar  56,250  -  56,250 0.04% 0.00%

Unnati Pawar  56,242  -  56,242 0.04% 0.00%

Udai Pawar  7,500  -  7,500 0.01% 0.00%

R S Pawar HUF  2,527  -  2,527 0.00% 0.00%

V K Thadani HUF  2,527  -  2,527 0.00% 0.00%

Renu Kanwar and Vandana Katoch  2,339  -  2,339 0.00% 0.00%

Santosh Dogra  1,687  -  1,687 0.00% 0.00%

Renuka Vijay Thadani and Vijay Kumar Thadani  1,000  -  1,000 0.00% 0.00%

Kailash K Singh and Yogesh Singh  750  -  750 0.00% 0.00%

Janki Jamwal and Neeti Pawar  652  -  652 0.00% 0.00%

Janki Jamwal and Pramod Singh Jamwal  562  -  562 0.00% 0.00%

Janki Jamwal and Keerti Katoch  562  -  562 0.00% 0.00%

Rasina Uberoi  15,464  -  15,464 0.01% 0.00%

Rubika Vinod Chablani*  1,687  -  1,687 0.00% 0.00%
*Mr. Chablani Vinod passed away on November 12, 2021 and shares were transmitted in the name of Second shareholder i.e. Rubika 
Vinod Chablani on January 7, 2022.

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars 

No. of 
shares at the 
beginning of 

the year

Change
during the 

year

No. of shares 
at the end of 

the year

% of Total 
Shares

% change 
during the 

year

Promoters      

Rajendra Singh Pawar  155,000  -  155,000 0.11% 0.00%

Vijay Kumar Thadani  155,000  -  155,000 0.11% 0.00%

Promoter Group      

Rajendra Singh Pawar as Trustee of Pawar Family Trust  23,280,989  -  23,280,989 16.36% 0.00%

Vijay Kumar Thadani as Trustee of Thadani Family 
Trust 

 23,830,065  -  23,830,065 16.74% 0.00%

Arvind Thakur  606,508  -  606,508 0.43% 0.00%

Neeti Pawar and Rajendra Singh Pawar  427,326  -  427,326 0.30% 0.00%

Urvashi Pawar  56,250  -  56,250 0.04% 0.00%

Unnati Pawar  56,242  -  56,242 0.04% 0.00%

Udai Pawar  7,500  -  7,500 0.01% 0.00%

R S Pawar HUF  2,527  -  2,527 0.00% 0.00%

V K Thadani HUF  2,527  -  2,527 0.00% 0.00%

Renu Kanwar and Vandana Katoch  2,339  -  2,339 0.00% 0.00%

Santosh Dogra  1,687  -  1,687 0.00% 0.00%

Renuka Vijay Thadani and Vijay Kumar Thadani  1,000  -  1,000 0.00% 0.00%

Kailash K Singh and Yogesh Singh  750  -  750 0.00% 0.00%

Janki Jamwal and Neeti Pawar  652  -  652 0.00% 0.00%

Janki Jamwal and Pramod Singh Jamwal  562  -  562 0.00% 0.00%

Janki Jamwal and Keerti Katoch  562  -  562 0.00% 0.00%

Rasina Uberoi  15,464  -  15,464 0.01% 0.00%

Vinod Chablani and Rubika Vinod Chablani  1,687  -  1,687 0.00% 0.00%
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13 Other Equity As at 

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Reserves and Surplus [Refer note 13(i)]

Capital Reserve   4,962.46  4,962.46 

Securities Premium  148.13  67.18 

Employees Stock Option Outstanding  264.28  150.90 

Retained Earnings  7,896.65  10,123.14 

Capital Redemption Reserve  73.35  53.60 

 13,344.87  15,357.28 

Other Reserves [Refer note 13(ii)]

Hedging Reserve Account   8.30  9.62 

Total Other Equity  13,353.17  15,366.90 

 As at 

13(i) Reserves and Surplus March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

a) Capital Reserve [Refer footnote (i)]

Opening Balance  4,962.46  4,962.46 

Add: Increase / (decrease) during the year  -  4,962.46  -  4,962.46 

b) Securities Premium [Refer footnote (ii)]

Opening Balance  67.18  - 

Add / (less) :- 

Additions during the year on account of exercise of ESOP  105.72  48.77 

Transferred from ESOP reserve on ESOP exercised  42.41  18.41 

Utilization against buyback of shares [Refer note 12(b)]  (67.18)  148.13  -   67.18 

c) Employees Stock Option Outstanding 

Opening Balance  150.90  134.60 

Add / (less) :- 

Transferred to retained earnings [Refer footnote (iii)]  (2.36)  (5.98)

Transferred to securities premium on exercise of ESOP  (42.41)  (18.41)

Share based payments (Refer note 27)  89.68  22.79 

Share based payments recovered from Subsidiaries  68.47  264.28  17.90  150.90 

d) Retained Earnings 

Opening Balance 10,123.14  9,919.51 

Add / (less) :- 

Profit for the year  1,423.17  536.11 

Transferred from ESOP Reserve [Refer footnote (iii)]  2.36  5.98 

Dividend [Refer note 33]  (734.39)  (283.33)

Utilization against buyback of shares [Refer note 12(b)] (2,283.07)  - 

Transferred to Capital Redemption Reserve [Refer note 12(b)]  (19.75)  - 

Tax and expenses (net of tax) on buyback [Refer note 12(b)]  (564.64)  (16.57)

Other Comprehensive Loss (net of tax)  (50.17)  7,896.65  (38.56) 10,123.14 

e) Capital Redemption Reserve [Refer footnote (iv)]

 Opening Balance  53.60   53.60 

 Add:-Transferred from retained earnings [Refer note 12(b)]  19.75  73.35 -  53.60 

 Total Reserves and Surplus  13,344.87  15,357.28 
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As at 
13(ii) Other Reserves March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Hedging Reserve Account (Cash flow Hedge) [Refer footnote (v)]
Opening Balance  9.62  (25.95)
Add / (less) :- 
Impact of restatement of derivative on Receivables  (1.46)  31.70 
Impact of restatement of derivative on Term Loan  4.05  14.47 
Impact of restatement of interest  (0.14)  (0.26)
Movement in Derivative Instrument Fair Value Asset/ (Liability)   (3.77)  8.30  (10.34)  9.62 
Total Other Reserves    8.30  9.62 

Footnotes:
(i) Capital reserve represents the reserve created on Amalgamation and Business Combinations. 
(ii) The amount represents the additional amount shareholders paid for their issued shares that was in excess of the par value of those shares. 

The same can be utilised for the items specified  under section 52 of Companies Act, 2013.
(iii) During the year, the Company has transferred employee stock option outstanding of Rs. 2.36 Million (Previous year Rs. 5.98 Million) to 

retained earnings on account of lapse of vested options. 
(iv) As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when Company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or 

security premium. A sum equal to the nominal value of shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve can 
be utilised in accordance with the provisions of Section 69 of Companies Act, 2013.

(v) The Company uses hedging instruments as part of its management of foreign currency risk associated with its highly probable forecasted 
transactions, i.e., revenue, as described in Note 29. The Company uses Foreign Currency Forward Contracts which are designated as
Cash Flow Hedges for hedging foreign currency risk. To the extent these hedges are effective, the change in fair value of the hedging
instrument is recognised in the Cash Flow Hedging Reserve. Amount recognised in the Cash Flow Hedging Reserve is reclassified to profit 
or loss when the hedged item effects profit and loss, i.e., Revenue.

14 Financial Liabilities As at

14(i) Borrowings March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

 Non-Current  Current Maturities 

 Secured

 Term Loans from Banks

    - Foreign Currency Term Loans#  -   -   -   70.72 

 -   -   -   70.72 

Unsecured

   From other Parties 

 - Deferred payment liabilities  5.31  -   4.86  - 

 5.31  -   4.86  - 

 5.31  -   4.86  70.72 

 #Details of Interest and Security given against loans :-

During the year, the Company has repaid foreign currency loan of USD 0.96 Million equivalent to Rs. 66.67 Million which was fully
hedged by converting it from the floating rate in USD 3 Month Libor with spread of 135 bps into fixed rate Rupee loan through a currency 
swap at a spot reference (USD INR) exchange rate of USD 1 = INR 68.98, through full maturity of the loan. The said loan was secured
by way of whole of the Company’s tangible and intangible, moveable fixed assets, both present and future, land and building of the
Company at Sector-34, Gurugram. The rate of interest on fully hedged equivalent loan amount was fixed at 9.25% p.a. for the tenure of 
the loan. 

As at 

14(ii) Trade Payables March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  368.91  294.96 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  33.48  8.13 

Trade Payables to related parties  199.06  220.24 

 601.45  523.33 

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 45 days term.
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Parties covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) have been identified on the basis of
information available with the Company. Disclosures as per Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED)
Act, 2006 are as follows:

As at 

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier

i) Principal amount  33.48  8.13 
ii) Interest thereon  0.00  0.00 

b) The amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day and the interest 
thereon, during an accounting year

 i) Principal amount  12.81  13.14 
 ii) Interest thereon  0.03  0.08 
c) The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which 

have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
interest specified under this Act

 -   - 

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year 0.00  0.00 
e) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 

such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small investor  -   - 

Ageing of trade payables as at March 31, 2022

Particulars Not due

Outstanding for following periods from due date 
of payment

Total
Less than 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 
3 years

Undisputed outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

 33.48  -   -   -   -   33.48 

Undisputed outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises

 148.42  133.95  2.05  1.46  31.32  317.20 

Total  181.90  133.95  2.05  1.46  31.32  350.68 
Add: Unbilled dues  250.77 
Total trade payables  601.45 

Ageing of trade payables as at March 31, 2021

Particulars  Not due

Outstanding for following periods from due date 
of payment

Total
Less than 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 
3 years

Undisputed outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

 7.99  0.14  -   -   -   8.13 

Undisputed outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises

 158.35  115.77  5.61  1.04  31.26  312.03 

Total  166.34  115.91  5.61  1.04  31.26  320.16 
Add: Unbilled dues  203.17 
Total trade payables  523.33 

 As at

14(iii) Other Financial Liabilities March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

 Non-Current  Current

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  -   -   -   0.39 

Unpaid dividends *  -   -   10.43  10.86 

Security Deposits  0.52  0.52  -   - 

Other Payables **  -   -   388.37  329.39 

 0.52  0.52  398.80  340.64 

* There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Protection Fund as at the year end.

** Includes Payable to Employees amounting to Rs. 307.50 Million (Previous year Rs. 251.90 Million ), Payables to related parties
Rs. 7.52 Million (Previous year Rs. 29.70 Million) and Capital Creditors amounting to Rs. 13.84 Million (Previous year Rs. 3.04 Million).
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 As at
15 Provisions March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

 Current
Provision for Employee Benefits :  
  -Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 26)  170.60  203.99 
  -Provision for Compensated Absences  93.04  79.11 
Provision for indirect tax under litigation   44.57  44.57 

 308.21  327.67 
The movement of provision towards indirect tax litigation is as below:- 

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Opening balance  44.57  49.60 
Utilised/(written back) during the year  -   (5.03)
Closing balance  44.57  44.57 

16 Other Liabilities As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non-Current Current
Contract Liabilities (Refer note 17.1) 

-Deferred Revenue  0.79  1.17  11.25  9.44 
-Advances from Customers  -   -   145.86  79.11 

Statutory Dues*  -   -   105.61  71.38 
 0.79  1.17  262.72  159.93 

*Statutory Dues mainly includes withholding tax and Contribution to Provident fund etc.

Year ended
17 Revenue From Operations March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Sale of products : Courseware  45.62  46.56 
Sale of Services  4,406.71  3,634.50 
Less: Discounts & Rebates  (0.43)  (0.21)

 4,451.90  3,680.85 

17.1 Disclosure under Ind AS - 115 (Revenue from contracts with customers)
a. Disaggregated revenue information 

Type of Services 
Sale of Courseware and Training Material  45.62  46.56 
Sale of Services  4,406.28  3,634.29 

 4,451.90  3,680.85 
Timing of Revenue Recognition 
Goods (Courseware, Training Material) transferred at a point in time  45.62  46.56 
Services transferred over time  4,406.28  3,634.29 

 4,451.90  3,680.85 
b. Contract Balances

Trade Receivables [Refer note 8(iii)]  889.90  728.62 
Contract Assets [Refer note 8(ii)]  158.48  140.94 
Contract Liabilities (Refer note 16)  (157.90)  (89.72)

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 - 90 days. A sum of Rs. (3.80) Million (Previous year Rs. 3.22 Million) 
is recognised as allowance for doubtful debts (net of reversal) on trade receivables during the year.
Unbilled revenues are billed in a terms of 30 - 90 days. A sum of Rs. 43.28 Million (Previous year Rs. 19.87 Million) is recognised as provision 
for expected credit losses on unbilled revenue during the year.
The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue.
A receivables is right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time.
Revenue for ongoing services at the reporting date yet to be invoiced is recorded as unbilled revenue.

c. Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price: 
Revenue as per contracted price  4,417.89  3,671.22 
Adjustments
Gain on hedging contracts  34.44  9.84 
Discount  (0.43)  (0.21)

 4,451.90  3,680.85 
d. Performance obligation and remaining performance obligation 

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as at
the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. As on 
March 31, 2022, there were no remaining performance obligation as the same is satisfied upon delivery of goods/services.
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Year ended

18 Other Income March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Interest Income

 -Interest Income on Bank and other Deposits carried at amortized cost  168.54  327.60 

- Unwinding of Interest on Security Deposit  0.62  1.41 

- Others  15.99  46.02 

Dividend Income from Subsidiaries  743.64  - 

Net gain on Investment carried at fair value through profit and loss  257.97  468.10 

Gain on sale / disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets (Net)  3.27  12.24 

Gain on termination of Leases (Net)  0.89  0.18 

Gain on foreign currency translation and transaction (Net)  21.60  0.73 

Recovery from Subsidiaries for Corporate and Management Support Services (Refer note 35)  298.43  243.63 

Provision for Doubtful debts written back (Refer note 29)  3.30  - 

Advances from customers written back  2.01  3.82 

Rent concession  1.21  - 

Other non-operating income  15.57  22.13 

 1,533.04  1,125.86 

Year ended
19 Employee Benefits Expenses# March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Salary, Wages and Bonus  2,140.85  1,728.78 

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds* (Refer note 26)  142.35  108.29 

Share Based Payments (Refer note 27)  89.66  22.66 

Staff Welfare expense  55.29  26.65 

 2,428.15  1,886.38 

# Net of Rs. 62.97 Million (Previous year Rs. 34.45 Million) capitalised in intangible assets (Refer note 6).
* There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident fund dated February 28, 2019. As 
a matter of caution, the Company has implemented the provisions on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order. The Company
will assess its position, on receiving further clarity on the subject.

 Year ended 
20 Finance Costs March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Interest expense  1.37  15.89 

Interest on lease liabilities [Refer note 7(ii)]  7.98  16.39 

 9.35  32.28 

Year ended

21 Other Expenses * March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Equipment Hiring [Refer note 7(i)]  50.86  39.99 

Software Subscriptions  54.01  - 

Royalties  29.11  14.37 

Freight and Cartage  3.43  5.17 

Rent [Refer note 7(i)]  4.48  5.61 

Rates and Taxes  1.55  1.71 

Power & Fuel  15.04  20.88 

Communication  29.51  30.51 

Legal and Professional (Refer note 23)  238.63  139.48 

Travelling and Conveyance  18.21  8.07 

Allowance for Doubtful Debts (Refer note 29)  -  3.22 
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Year ended

21 Other Expenses * March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Bad Debts Written off  13.07 510.05
Less:- Provision for Doubtful debts written back (13.07)  - (510.05)  - 
Allowance for Doubtful Advances and other receivables  4.30  7.99 
Advances written off 3.00 0.49
Less:- Provision for advances written back (3.00)  - (0.49)  - 
Provision for doubtful unbilled revenue (Refer note 29)  -  4.67 
Insurance  8.12  7.71 
Repairs and Maintenance
- Plant and Machinery  15.55  15.53 
- Buildings  5.46  2.13 
- Others  19.07  28.33 
Consumables  16.75  32.71 
Security and Administration Services  22.44  27.97 
Bank Charges  1.52  3.58 
Donation  -  10.20 
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities (Refer note 22)  5.70  3.10 
Marketing and Advertising Expenses  199.29  61.03 
Sundry Expenses  6.18  4.22 

 749.21   478.18 
* Net of Rs. 7.64 Million (Previous year Rs. Nil) capitalised in intangible assets (Refer note 6).

Year ended

22 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year  5.60  3.03 

b) Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year  5.70  3.10 

c) Amount spent during the year: 

-Construction/acquisition of any asset  -   - 

-On purposes other than above  5.70  3.10 

d) Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure

-Contribution to NIIT Institute of Information Technology  5.70  3.10 

e) The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of the amount 
required to be spent by the Company during the year

 -   - 

f) Total of previous years shortfall  -   - 

g) Reason for above shortfall  -   - 

h) Nature of CSR activities:  Education 
(Grant of Scholarship to meritorious students at 

NIIT University during the financial year 2021-22 
& 2020-21) 

Year ended
23 Payment To Auditors (included in legal and professional fees and 

exceptional items)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Audit Fee  8.07  6.69 

Tax Audit Fee  0.52  0.49 

Limited Review Fee  3.68  3.41 

For other Certification#  2.48  1.10 

For reimbursement of expenses (excluding GST)  0.69  0.78 

 15.44  12.47 

# Fees of Rs. 0.12 Million (Previous year Rs. 0.30 Million) for buyback certification has been charged to retained earnings as part of buyback 
expenses. Further Fee of Rs. 1.75 Million towards Composite Scheme related certification has been charged to Exceptional items.
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Year ended

24 Exceptional Items March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Income :

Gain on termination of leases  [Refer footnote (i) below]  -   25.42 
Lease discount received  [Refer footnote (ii) below]  -   7.92 
Expenses :
Expenses against committed contracts and other related expenses
[Refer footnote (i) below]  -   (28.77)

Compensation to Vendors  [Refer footnote (i) below]  -   (9.00)
Provision for Impairment of Investment / Loan in NIIT Learning Systems 
Limited (net) [Formerly known as Mindchampion Learning Systems Limited] 
[Refer footnote (iii) below]

 -   (382.53)

Legal and professional cost towards acquisition [Refer note 8(i)]  (3.85)  - 
Legal and professional cost towards scheme of arrangement [Refer note 38(ix)]  (19.50)  - 

 (23.35)  (386.96)
Footnotes:
(i) During the previous year, the Company continued to accelerate transition from face to face learning to Digital in its Skills & Careers 

business. Based on student choices in the changed environment and considering viability of Company operated education centres, the
Company had decided to vacate some of its leased premises in India. Accordingly, net carrying amount of right-of-use assets, lease
liabilities and security deposit in respect of such leased premises amounting to Rs. 25.42 Million had been reversed as exceptional income 
and the Company had also incurred additional expenses amounting to Rs. 28.77 Million for committed  contracts, other related expenses
and compensation to vendors amounting to Rs. 9.00 Million recognised as exceptional expenses.

(ii) During the previous year, the Company had availed rent concessions of Rs. 7.92 Million from lessors on account of COVID-19 and 
recorded the same as exceptional income in the statement of profit and loss consequent to amendment in Ind AS 116 “Leases”.

(iii) Based on the reassessment of carrying value of its investment and loan in NLSL, the Company had made an additional provision for 
impairment of investment for Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. 682.53 Million) and also (reversed) the provision of impairment of loan amounting 
to Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. 300 Million) as exceptional item in the statement of profit and loss for the year [Refer note 8(i)].

25 Tax Expense  Year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(a) Income tax expense

Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year  60.67  59.26 
Adjustments for current tax for earlier years  1.04  (52.05)

Total current tax expense  61.71  7.21 
Deferred tax

Deferred tax (credit) / charge  (111.01)  104.67 
Total deferred tax (credit) / charge  (111.01)  104.67 
Income tax expense  (49.30)  111.88 

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate: 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit before tax  1,412.79 679.02
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.17% (Previous year 25.17%)  355.60 170.91
Adjustments for:
Taxes relating to earlier years  1.04  (52.05)
Taxes Relating to Non deductible expenses  2.41  3.35 
Deferred tax assets recognised on timing differences  -   (85.07)
Tax Impact due to impairment of Loan and Investments in Subsidiaries  -   96.28 
Tax Impact of Deduction of Dividend Received from Foreign Subsidiary  (184.84)  - 
Tax Impact of difference in Tax rates on account of Section 80M deduction  (26.52)  - 
Tax Impact of difference in Tax rates on other timing differences  2.89  - 
Reversal of Deferred Tax Liability on Mark to Market Gains  (20.37)  - 
Deferred Tax on Long Term Capital Loss (Cancellation of Investment in 
Subsidiary) [Refer note 9(i)]

 (179.51)  - 

Tax Impact of other adjustments  -   (21.54)
Income tax expense  (49.30)  111.88 
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26 Employee Benefits
A) Defined Contribution Plans
 The Company makes contribution towards Superannuation Fund and Pension Scheme to the defined contribution plans for eligible 

employees.

 The Company has charged the following costs in Contribution to Superannuation and Other Funds in the Statement of Profit and Loss:-

Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Employers’ Contribution to Superannuation Fund  13.51  10.16 
Employers’ Contribution to Employees Pension Scheme  31.27  27.30 
Employers’ Contribution to Employee National Pension System  2.72  1.63 
Total **  47.50  39.09 

 **Includes Rs. 0.19 Million (Previous year Rs. 0.50 Million) recognised in statement of profit and loss from discontinued operations.
 The Company has charged the following costs in Contribution to Other Funds in the Statement of Profit and Loss for Key Management

Personnel:

Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund  3.12   1.10 
Employers’ Contribution to Superannuation Fund  2.28  0.45 
Employers’ Contribution to Employees Pension Scheme  0.03   0.04 
Total  5.43   1.59 

B) Defined Benefit Plans
I. Provident Fund

The Company makes contribution to the “NIIT LIMITED EMPLOYEES’ PROVIDENT FUND TRUST” (”the Trust”). The 
Company contributed Rs. 54.19 Million (Previous year Rs. 37.44 Million) including Rs. 3.12 Million (Previous year Rs. 
1.10 Million) in respect of Key Management personnel during the year to the Trust. The same has been recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss under the head employee benefit expenses. The Company contributed Rs. 0.09 Million 
(Previous year Rs. 0.23 Million) to the trust. The same has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss from 
discontinued operations.
The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the investments of the Trust 
and the notified interest rate. The Company’s obligation in this regard is actuarially determined and provided for if the 
circumstances indicate that the Trust may not be able to generate adequate returns to cover the interest rates notified 
by the Government.
The guidance on implementing Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits , issued by Accounting Standards Board (ASB) of The 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, states that benefits involving employer established provident fund trust, which 
require interest shortfall to be compensated by the employer is required to be considered as Defined Benefits Plans. The 
actuary has provided a valuation and based on the below mentioned assumptions, determined that there is no short 
fall as at March 31, 2022.
Each year, the board of trustees reviews the level of funding in the provident fund plan. Such a review includes the 
assets-liability matching strategy and investment risk management policy. This includes employing  the use of annuities 
and longevity swaps to manage the risks. The board of trustees decides its contribution based  on the result of this 
annual review.

As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

i) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation 

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at the beginning of the year  1,449.64  1,237.95 

Current service cost  54.45  39.71 

Acquisition cost  53.52  21.39 

Interest Cost  92.25  80.97 

Benefit paid  (151.33)  (107.76)

Employee Contribution  95.99  77.17 

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on Obligations  1.54  100.21 

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at the end of the year  1,596.06  1,449.64 
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Year ended
(ii) Change in Fair value of Assets:- March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Fair value of Plan Assets as at the beginning of the year  1,665.19  1,639.88 
Benefit paid  (151.33)  (107.76)
Employee Contribution  95.99  77.17 
Acquisition Adjustment  53.52  21.39 
Interest Income on Plan Assets  92.25  80.97 
Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate  6.66  (86.17)
Employers’ Contribution  54.45  39.71 
Fair value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year  1,816.73  1,665.19 

(iii) Estimated Net Asset/ (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet : Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation  1,596.06  1,449.64 
Fair Value of Plan Assets  1,816.73  1,665.19 
Funded Status [Surplus/(Deficit)] with the trust  220.67  215.55 
Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet  -   - 

(iv) Assumptions used in accounting for provident fund:- As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount Rate (per annum) 6.75% 6.25%
EPFO Rate 8.10% 8.50%
Expected return of exempt fund 7.50% 7.60%

(v) Investment details of Plan Assets:- As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Government Securities 60.81% 52.54%
Debt Instruments 32.50% 40.01%
Equities 1.06% 0.94%
Short term Debt Instruments 5.63% 6.51%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

II. Gratuity Fund - Funded As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
i) Change in Present value of Obligation:-

Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year  270.72  199.42 
Interest cost  16.08  12.40 
Current service cost  32.48  24.38 
Benefits paid  (27.09)  (16.94)
Acquisiton cost / (credit)  0.22  (0.02)
Actuarial loss on experience  9.37  30.88 
Actuarial loss on financial assumption  55.13  20.60 
Present value of obligation as at the year end  356.91  270.72 

As at
(ii) Change in Fair value of Plan Assets:- March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Fair value of Plan Assets as at the beginning of the year  66.73  75.60 
Expected return on Plan Assets  7.75  4.48 
Contributions  141.25  3.66 
Acquisition adjustment  0.22  (0.02)
Benefits Paid  (27.09)  (16.94)
Return on plan assets lesser than discount rate  (2.55)  (0.05)
Fair value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year  186.31  66.73 

 Estimated contributions for the year ended on March 31, 2023 is Rs. 170.60 Million (Previous year Rs. 203.99 Million).

(iii) Amount of Asset/ (Liability)
recognised in the Balance Sheet:-

Fair value of Plan Assets 
as at the end of the year

Present value of obligation as 
at the end of the year

Liability recognised in 
Balance Sheet

As at March 31, 2022  186.31  356.91  (170.60)

As at March 31, 2021  66.73  270.72  (203.99)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)



126

NIIT Limited

(iv) Gratuity Cost recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:- Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current service cost  32.48  24.38 
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset)  8.33  7.92 
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss*  40.81  32.30 

*Includes Rs. (0.04) Million (Previous year Rs. 0.04 Million) recognised in statement of profit and loss from discontinued operations.

(v) Gratuity Cost recognised through Other Comprehensive Income:- Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Actuarial loss on experience  9.37  30.88 
Actuarial loss on financial assumption  55.13  20.60 
Return on plan assets lesser than discount rate  2.55  0.05 
Expense recognised through other comprehensive income  67.05  51.53 

(vi) Assumptions used in accounting for gratuity plan:- As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount Rate (Per Annum) 6.75% 6.25%
Future Salary Increase 16% for next 2 years 

and 10% thereafter
12% for next 2 years 

and 8% thereafter
Expected Rate of return on plan assets 7.15% 7.05%

 Estimates of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

vii) Investment details of Plan Assets:-

 The plan assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India Gratuity Scheme. The details of investment 
maintained by Life Insurance Corporation are not available with the Company and have not been disclosed.

 The expected return on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors mainly the compensation of plan 
assets held, assessed risk of asset management, historical result of the return on plan assets. 

 Sensitivity analysis
 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Change in assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
Discount rate 0.50% (13.88) 14.87 
Salary growth rate 0.50% 13.97 (13.18)
Withdrawal rate 5.00% (25.54) 26.08 

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Change in assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
Discount rate 0.50% (9.95) 10.63 
Salary growth rate 0.50% 10.00 (9.44)
Withdrawal rate 5.00% (11.49) 11.55 

 The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. 
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the 
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the 
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been 
applied for calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.
Risk exposure

 Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are 
market volatility, changes in inflation, changes in interest rates, rising longevity, changing economic environment, 
regulatory changes etc. The Company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-liability 
matching framework that has been developed to achieve investments which are in line with the obligations under the 
employee benefit plans. Within this framework, the Company’s asset-liability matching objective is to match assets to the 
obligations by investing in securities to match the benefit payments as they fall due. 

 The Company actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected 
cash outflows arising from employee benefit obligations. The Company has not changed the processes used to manage 
its risks from previous periods. Investments are well diversified, such that failure of any single investment should not have 
a material impact on the overall level of assets.
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27 Share Based Payments
(a) Employee option plan
 During the year 2005-06, the Company had established NIIT Employee Stock Option Plan 2005 “ESOP 2005” and the same was 

approved at the General Meeting of the Company held on May 18, 2005. The plan was set up so as to offer and grant, for the benefit
of employees (excluding promoters) of the Company, who are eligible under “Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Employee
Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999”, options of the Company in one or more tranches, and 
on such terms and conditions as may be fixed or determined by the Board, in accordance with the provisions of law or guidelines issued 
by the relevant authorities in this regard.

 As per the plan, each option is exercisable for one equity share of face value of Rs. 2 each (Rs. 10 each pre bonus and split) fully paid 
up on payment to the Company, at a price to be determined in accordance with ESOP 2005. ESOP information is given for the number
of shares after sub-division and Bonus issue.

i) Summary of options granted under plan:

Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Average exercise price 

per share option
Number of options

Average exercise price 

per share option
Number of options

Opening balance 89.14 5,637,204 80.45 4,942,121
Granted during the year 289.49 3,260,000 100.94 1,755,000
Exercised during the year 77.66 1,397,263 60.30 836,583
Forfeited/ Lapsed during the year 92.32 311,047 97.55 223,334
Closing balance 182.09  7,188,894 89.14  5,637,204 
Vested and Exercisable  2,778,894  3,180,496 

ii) Share options outstanding at the end of year have following expiry date and exercise prices

Grant Vests Grant date
Vesting 

date
Expiry date

Exercise
price

Share options outstanding

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Grant 9  Vest I 21-May-14 21-May-15 21-May-20 35.40  -  - 
 Vest II 21-May-14 21-May-16 21-May-21 35.40  -  83,300 
 Vest III 21-May-14 21-May-17 21-May-22 35.40  -  123,400 

Grant 10  Vest I 28-Aug-14 28-Aug-15 28-Aug-20 49.75  -  - 
 Vest II 28-Aug-14 28-Aug-16 28-Aug-21 49.75  -  - 
 Vest III 28-Aug-14 28-Aug-17 28-Aug-22 49.75  2  20,002 

Grant 12  Vest I 24-Jun-15 24-Jun-16 24-Jun-21 41.60  -  13,000 
 Vest II 24-Jun-15 24-Jun-17 24-Jun-22 41.60  45,000  155,000 
 Vest III 24-Jun-15 24-Jun-18 24-Jun-23 41.60  146,844  150,000 

Grant 13  Vest I 17-Jul-15 17-Jul-16 17-Jul-21 52.15  -  26,664 
 Vest II 17-Jul-15 17-Jul-17 17-Jul-22 52.15  33,336  75,334 
 Vest III 17-Jul-15 17-Jul-18 17-Jul-23 52.15  66,684  135,022 

Grant 16  Vest I 16-Jun-16 16-Jun-17 16-Jun-22 83.30  13,332  33,330 
 Vest II 16-Jun-16 16-Jun-18 16-Jun-23 83.30  13,332  39,996 
 Vest III 16-Jun-16 16-Jun-19 16-Jun-24 83.30  20,672  40,676 

Grant 17  Vest I 05-Feb-17 05-Feb-18 05-Feb-23 73.60  6,666  6,666 
 Vest II 05-Feb-17 05-Feb-19 05-Feb-24 73.60  6,666  6,666 
 Vest III 05-Feb-17 05-Feb-20 05-Feb-25 73.60  13,336  24,336 

Grant 18  Vest I 23-Jun-17 23-Jun-18 23-Jun-23 92.55  140,664  263,460 
 Vest II 23-Jun-17 23-Jun-19 23-Jun-24 92.55  207,330  316,660 
 Vest III 23-Jun-17 23-Jun-20 23-Jun-25 92.55  233,340  316,680 

Grant 19  Vest I 27-Jul-17 27-Jul-18 27-Jul-23 88.85  93,333  93,333 
 Vest II 27-Jul-17 27-Jul-19 27-Jul-24 88.85  93,333  93,333 
 Vest III 27-Jul-17 27-Jul-20 27-Jul-25 88.85  93,334  93,334 

Grant 20  Vest I 24-Oct-17 24-Oct-18 24-Oct-23 108.10  -  89,199 
 Vest II 24-Oct-17 24-Oct-19 24-Oct-24 108.10  -  89,999 
 Vest III 24-Oct-17 24-Oct-20 24-Oct-25 108.10  -  90,002 

Grant 21  Vest I 25-Jun-18 25-Jun-19 25-Jun-24 96.15  120,000  145,000 
 Vest II 25-Jun-18 25-Jun-20 25-Jun-25 96.15  140,000  165,000 
 Vest III 25-Jun-18 25-Jun-21 25-Jun-26 96.15  140,000  165,000 
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Grant Vests Grant date
Vesting 

date
Expiry date

Exercise
price

Share options outstanding

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Grant 22  Vest I 19-Jul-18 19-Jul-19 19-Jul-24 89.65  82,324  117,754 
 Vest II 19-Jul-18 19-Jul-20 19-Jul-25 89.65  100,000  166,650 
 Vest III 19-Jul-18 19-Jul-21 19-Jul-26 89.65  154,366  206,708 

Grant 23  Vest I 23-Jan-19 23-Jan-20 23-Jan-25 93.65  -  16,700 
 Vest II 23-Jan-19 23-Jan-21 23-Jan-26 93.65  20,000  50,000 
 Vest III 23-Jan-19 23-Jan-22 23-Jan-27 93.65  50,000  50,000 

Grant 24  Vest I 16-Jul-19 16-Jul-20 16-Jul-25 99.00  140,000  140,000 
 Vest II 16-Jul-19 16-Jul-21 16-Jul-26 99.00  140,000  140,000 
 Vest III 16-Jul-19 16-Jul-22 16-Jul-27 99.00  140,000  140,000 

Grant 25  Vest I 10-Jul-20 10-Jul-21 10-Jul-26 94.40  385,000  505,000 
 Vest II 10-Jul-20 10-Jul-22 10-Jul-27 94.40  425,000  505,000 
 Vest III 10-Jul-20 10-Jul-23 10-Jul-28 94.40  425,000  505,000 

Grant 26  Vest I 28-Sep-20 28-Sep-21 28-Sep-26 127.65  55,000  55,000 
 Vest II 28-Sep-20 28-Sep-22 28-Sep-27 127.65  55,000  55,000 
 Vest III 28-Sep-20 28-Sep-23 28-Sep-28 127.65  55,000  55,000 

Grant 27  Vest I 07-Dec-20 07-Dec-21 07-Dec-26 174.20  25,000  25,000 
 Vest II 07-Dec-20 07-Dec-22 07-Dec-27 174.20  25,000  25,000 
 Vest III 07-Dec-20 07-Dec-23 07-Dec-28 174.20  25,000  25,000 

Grant 28  Vest I 03-Jun-21 03-Jun-22 03-Jun-27 187.85  50,000  - 
 Vest II 03-Jun-21 03-Jun-23 03-Jun-28 187.85  50,000  - 
 Vest III 03-Jun-21 03-Jun-24 03-Jun-29 187.85  50,000  - 

Grant 29  Vest I 18-Jun-21 18-Jun-22 18-Jun-27 264.25  356,666  - 
 Vest II 18-Jun-21 18-Jun-23 18-Jun-28 264.25  356,666  - 
 Vest III 18-Jun-21 18-Jun-24 18-Jun-29 264.25  356,668  - 

Grant 30  Vest I 23-Aug-21 23-Aug-22 23-Aug-27 310.20  680,000  - 
 Vest II 23-Aug-21 23-Aug-23 23-Aug-28 310.20  680,000  - 
 Vest III 23-Aug-21 23-Aug-24 23-Aug-29 310.20  680,000  - 

iii) Fair value of options granted
 The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes Model as per an independent valuer’s report, having 

taken into consideration the market price being the latest available closing price prior to the date of the grant, exercise 
price being the price payable by the employees for exercising the option and other assumptions as annexed below:

Grant Vests Market price Volatility
Average life 
of the option

Risk less 
interest rate

Dividend
yield rate

Fair value

Grant 9  Vest I 35.40 39.04% 3.50 8.68% 3.96% 10.66
 Vest II 35.40 37.65% 4.50 8.73% 3.96% 11.45
 Vest III 35.40 48.22% 5.50 8.78% 3.96% 14.35

Grant 10  Vest I 49.75 40.75% 3.50 8.78% 3.96% 15.50
 Vest II 49.75 39.51% 4.50 8.73% 3.96% 16.61
 Vest III 49.75 46.99% 5.50 8.70% 3.96% 19.78

Grant 12  Vest I 41.60 42.73% 3.50 7.95% 3.50% 13.45
 Vest II 41.60 41.13% 4.50 7.93% 3.50% 14.38
 Vest III 41.60 39.89% 5.50 7.92% 3.50% 15.07

Grant 13  Vest I 52.15 43.53% 3.50 7.79% 3.50% 17.01
 Vest II 52.15 41.89% 4.50 7.86% 3.50% 18.21
 Vest III 52.15 40.55% 5.50 7.90% 3.50% 19.08

Grant 16  Vest I 83.30 48.89% 3.50 7.52% 3.01% 30.30
 Vest II 83.30 45.98% 4.50 7.52% 3.01% 31.88
 Vest III 83.30 44.05% 5.50 7.52% 3.01% 33.17

Grant 17  Vest I 73.60 48.75% 3.50 6.41% 3.01% 25.87
 Vest II 73.60 45.93% 4.50 6.41% 3.01% 27.13
 Vest III 73.60 44.36% 5.50 6.41% 3.01% 28.29

Grant 18  Vest I 92.55 47.76% 3.50 6.45% 2.35% 33.47
 Vest II 92.55 46.09% 4.50 6.45% 2.35% 36.08
 Vest III 92.55 43.93% 5.50 6.45% 2.35% 37.61

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)



129

NIIT Limited

Grant Vests Market price Volatility
Average life 
of the option

Risk less 
interest rate

Dividend
yield rate

Fair value

Grant 19  Vest I 88.85 47.64% 3.50 6.45% 2.35% 32.06

 Vest II 88.85 45.78% 4.50 6.45% 2.35% 34.46

 Vest III 88.85 43.85% 5.50 6.45% 2.35% 35.05

Grant 20  Vest I 108.10 47.45% 3.50 6.80% 2.35% 39.30

 Vest II 108.10 46.90% 4.50 6.80% 2.35% 43.14

 Vest III 108.10 44.66% 5.50 6.80% 2.35% 44.96

Grant 21  Vest I 96.15 44.86% 3.50 7.80% 1.43% 36.79

 Vest II 96.15 47.55% 4.50 7.80% 1.43% 42.81

 Vest III 96.15 46.15% 5.50 7.80% 1.43% 45.76

Grant 22  Vest I 89.65 45.06% 3.50 7.77% 1.43% 34.37

 Vest II 89.65 47.63% 4.50 7.77% 1.43% 39.92

 Vest III 89.65 46.30% 5.50 7.77% 1.43% 42.71

Grant 23  Vest I 93.65 43.80% 3.50 7.53% 1.43% 34.98

 Vest II 93.65 45.29% 4.50 7.53% 1.43% 40.12

 Vest III 93.65 46.75% 5.50 7.53% 1.43% 44.53

Grant 24  Vest I 99.00 42.39% 3.50 6.53% 1.10% 35.79

 Vest II 99.00 44.87% 4.50 6.53% 1.10% 41.88

 Vest III 99.00 47.04% 5.50 6.53% 1.10% 47.12

Grant 25  Vest I 94.40 43.86% 3.50 5.82% 2.67% 30.65

 Vest II 94.40 42.96% 4.50 5.82% 2.67% 33.31

 Vest III 94.40 44.66% 5.50 5.82% 2.67% 36.83

Grant 26  Vest I 127.65 45.58% 3.50 6.00% 3.07% 41.84

 Vest II 127.65 43.43% 4.50 6.00% 3.07% 44.24

 Vest III 127.65 45.53% 5.50 6.00% 3.07% 49.02

Grant 27  Vest I 174.20 46.55% 3.50 5.92% 3.07% 57.92

 Vest II 174.20 44.09% 4.50 5.92% 3.07% 60.91

 Vest III 174.20 45.80% 5.50 5.92% 3.07% 66.99

Grant 28  Vest I 187.85 46.77% 3.50 6.01% 3.15% 62.53

 Vest II 187.85 45.32% 4.50 6.01% 3.15% 66.86

 Vest III 187.85 44.62% 5.50 6.01% 3.15% 70.55

Grant 29  Vest I 264.25 48.34% 3.50 6.01% 3.15% 90.34

 Vest II 264.25 46.57% 4.50 6.01% 3.15% 96.06

 Vest III 264.25 45.60% 5.50 6.01% 3.15% 100.87

Grant 30  Vest I 310.20 48.68% 3.50 6.23% 3.52% 104.83

 Vest II 310.20 47.25% 4.50 6.23% 3.52% 111.63

 Vest III 310.20 45.32% 5.50 6.23% 3.52% 114.89

b) Expense arising from share-based payment transactions

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Expenses charged to statement of Profit and Loss based on fair value of options* 89.66 22.66

       *Excluding Share based payments expenses charged in discontinued operations in statement of profit and loss Rs. 0.02 Million (Previous 
year Rs. 0.13 Million).
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28 Fair value measurements
(i) Fair value hierarchy
 To provide indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its 

financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard explained below:
 Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity 

instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including 
bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual 
funds are valued using the closing net asset value.

 Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example foreign exchange 
forward contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely 
as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 
3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3. 

 The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of reporting 
period.

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
 Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
 - The use of quoted market prices for similar instruments.
 - The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using Mark to Market Valuation by the respective 

   bank at the balance sheet date.
 - The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

 Financial instruments by category and hierarchy of measurement

Particulars

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
FVTPL FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 

cost
FVTPL FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 

cost
Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2 Level 2

Financial assets 
Investments  5,688.16  -   -   1,447.00  6,313.65  -   -   2,220.78 
Trade receivables  -   -   -   889.90  -   -   -   728.62 
Cash and cash equivalents  -   -   -   57.99  -   -   -   57.64 
Bank balances other than above  -   -   -   940.66  -   -   -   2,941.86 
Other financial assets  -   -   -   1,552.80  -   -   -   1,137.77 
Derivative assets  -   7.91  8.29  -   -   12.82  13.52  - 
Total financial assets  5,688.16  7.91  8.29  4,888.35  6,313.65  12.82  13.52  7,086.67 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings  -   -   -   10.17  -   -   -   70.72 
Lease liabilities  -   -   -   77.38  -   -   -   101.54 
Trade payables  -   -   -   601.45  -   -   -   523.33 
Other financial liabilities  -   -   -   399.32  -   -   -   341.16 
Total financial liabilities  -   -   -   1,088.32  -   -   -   1,036.75 

 As of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the fair value of cash and bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets and
liabilities, borrowings, trade payables approximate their carrying amount largely due to the nature of these instruments.

29 Financial Risk Management
 The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other 

payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide 
guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and 
cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations.

 The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the 
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises 
on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The finance committee 
provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by 
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with 
the Company’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by 
specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Company’s policy that no trading 
in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for 
managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:
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(A) Credit risk
 Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counter party resulting in a financial loss. The maximum 

exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to Rs. 889.90 Million as of 
March 31, 2022 (Previous year Rs. 728.62 Million) and unbilled revenue amounting to Rs. 158.48 Million as of March 
31, 2022 (Previous year Rs. 140.94 Million). Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are typically unsecured and are 
derived from revenue earned through individual subsidiaries, government customers and other corporate customers. 
The Company has used the expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain on trade receivables and 
unbilled revenue, and has provided it wherever appropriate. The following table gives the movement in allowance for 
expected credit loss for the year ended March 31, 2022:

 Reconciliation of loss allowance provision 
Particulars Trade Receivables Unbilled Revenue
Loss allowance as on April 1, 2020  836.62  28.16 
Less: Bad Debts written off  (510.05)  - 
Add: Provision for Expected credit loss*  3.22  19.87 
Loss allowance as on March 31, 2021  329.79  48.03 
Less: Reversal of Provision for Expected credit loss*  (3.80)  - 
Less: Bad Debts written off  (13.07)  - 
Add: Provision for Expected credit loss*  -   43.28 
Loss allowance as on March 31, 2022  312.92  91.31 

*Provision (net of reversal) for expected credit loss in unbilled revenue and trade receivables includes Rs. 42.78 Million 
(Previous year Rs. 15.20 Million) recognised in statement of profit and loss in discontinued operations. 

(B) Liquidity risk
 The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from 

operations. The Company has outstanding borrowings as term loans and working capital limits from banks. The term 
loans are secured by a first charge on the book debts and movable & immovable assets of the Company. However, the 
Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is 
perceived.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities
 The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities: 
 Contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

Less than 
1 year

Between
1 and 2 years

Beyond
2  years

Total

March 31, 2022
Borrowings  4.86  5.31  -   10.17 
Trade payables  601.45  -   -   601.45 
Lease liabilities  18.73  14.43  44.22  77.38 
Other financial liabilities  398.80  -   0.52  399.32 

 1,023.84  19.74  44.74  1,088.32 
March 31, 2021
Borrowings  70.72  -   -   70.72 
Trade payables  523.33  -   -   523.33 
Lease liabilities  26.33  20.71  54.50  101.54 
Other financial liabilities  340.64  -   0.52  341.16 

 961.02  20.71  55.02  1,036.75 
(C) Market risk
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 

in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk, 
such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, 
deposits, investments measured at FVTPL and derivative financial instruments.

(i) Interest rate risk
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market interest rates. The Company’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the foreign currency term loan 
carrying at floating rate of interest. These obligations exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The Company 
has mitigated the interest rate risk on foreign currency term loan by converting it from floating rate to fixed rate through 
currency swap. Hence, there is no significant challenge of interest rate risk.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)



132

NIIT Limited

(ii) Foreign currency risk

 The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, 
primarily with respect to the USD, GBP, EUR, CAD, CNY and NOK. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial 
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the company’s functional currency. 
The Company evaluates its exchange rate exposure arising from these transactions and enters into foreign exchange 
forward contracts to hedge forecasted cash flows denominated in foreign currency and mitigate such exposure.

 The company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in Rs., are as follows

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Financial assets

Trade receivables

USD  511.69 451.41 

GBP  63.93 54.57 

EUR  96.08 93.43 

CAD  66.77 0.00 

CNY  16.69 0.00 

Others  9.05 97.20 

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets)  764.21  696.61 

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

USD 101.50 99.90

GBP 30.44 80.08

NOK 33.74 23.32

EUR 17.04 27.51

Others 2.83 4.32

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 185.55 235.13

 Sensitivity
 The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated 

financial instruments.

Particulars

Impact on Profit and Loss 

for the year ended March 31, 2022

Impact on Profit and Loss 

for the year ended March 31, 2021

Gain / (Loss) on 

Appreciation

Gain / (Loss) on 

Depreciation

Gain / (Loss) on 

Appreciation

Gain / (Loss) on 

Depreciation

1% appreciation / depreciation in Indian 
Rupees against following foreign currencies *:

USD 4.10 (4.10) 3.52 (3.52)

GBP 0.33 (0.33) (0.26) 0.26 

NOK (0.34) 0.34 (0.23) 0.23 

EUR 0.79 (0.79) 0.66 (0.66)

CAD 0.67 (0.67)  -   - 

CNY 0.17 (0.17)  -   - 

Others 0.06 (0.06) 0.93 (0.93)

Total 5.78 (5.78) 4.62 (4.62)

 * Holding all other variables constant
 USD: United States Dollar, GBP: Great Britain Pound sterling, NOK: Norwegian Krone, EUR: Euro, CAD: Canadian 

Dollar, CNY: Chinese yuan renminbi

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)



133

NIIT Limited

N
ot

es
 t

o 
th

e 
St

an
da

lo
ne

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
 f

or
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

en
de

d 
M

ar
ch

 3
1

, 
2

0
2

2
 

C
on

td
..

(A
m

ou
nt

 in
 R

s.
 M

ill
io

ns
, 

un
le

ss
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
st

at
ed

)

(D
) 

Im
pa

ct
 o

f 
he

dg
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
(a

) 
D

is
cl

os
ur

e 
of

 e
ff

ec
ts

 o
f 

he
dg

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

on
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

os
iti

on

Ty
pe

 o
f 

he
dg

e 
an

d 
ri

sk
s

N
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
C

ar
ry

in
g 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 

he
dg

in
g 

in
st

ru
m

en
t

M
at

ur
ity

 d
at

e
H

ed
ge

Ra
tio

*

W
ei

gh
te

d 

av
er

ag
e 

st
ri

ke
 

pr
ic

e/
ra

te

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 

fa
ir

 v
al

ue
 

of
 h

ed
gi

ng
 

in
st

ru
m

en
t

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 t

he
 

va
lu

e 
of

 h
ed

ge
d 

ite
m

 u
se

d 
as

 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
fo

r 

re
co

gn
is

in
g 

he
dg

e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s

A
ss

et
s

Li
ab

ili
tie

s
A

ss
et

s
Li

ab
ili

tie
s

M
ar

ch
 3

1
, 
2
0
2
2

Fo
re

ig
n 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 R
is

k

(i)
Fo

re
ig

n 
ex

ch
an

ge
 fo

rw
ar

d 
co

nt
ra

ct
s

 1
,4

38
.9

6 
 -

  
 1

6.
20

 
 -

 
 A

pr
il 

20
22

 to
 

M
ar

ch
 2

02
3 

 1
:1

 

Eu
ro

:-
 8

9.
83

 
U

SD
:-

 7
7.

77
 

G
BP

:-
 1

04
.4

3 
C

AD
:-

 6
1.

31

 (1
.4

6)
 1

.4
6 

(ii
)

Fo
re

ig
n 

cu
rr

en
cy

 b
or

ro
w

in
g

-
 -

  
-

 -
  

 1
:1

 
 (4

.0
5)

 4
.0

5 

In
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
ri

sk

(i)
In

te
re

st
 r

at
e 

sw
ap

-
-

-
 -

 
 A

pr
il 

20
21

 to
Ap

ril
 2

02
1 

1:
1

9.
25

%
 3

.7
7 

 (3
.7

7)

M
ar

ch
 3

1
, 
2
0
2
1

Fo
re

ig
n 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 R
is

k

(i)
Fo

re
ig

n 
ex

ch
an

ge
 fo

rw
ar

d 
co

nt
ra

ct
s

 1
,1

79
.4

8 
 -

  
 2

2.
57

 
 -

 
 A

pr
il 

20
21

 to
 

M
ar

ch
 2

02
2 

 1
:1

 

Eu
ro

:-
 9

1.
75

 
U

SD
:-

 7
6.

49
 

G
BP

:-
 1

02
.7

5 
C

AD
:-

 5
8.

94

 3
1.

70
 

 (3
1.

70
)

(ii
)

Fo
re

ig
n 

cu
rr

en
cy

 b
or

ro
w

in
g

-
 6

6.
67

 
 7

0.
72

 
 A

pr
il 

20
21

 to
Ap

ril
 2

02
1 

 1
:1

 
U

SD
:-

68
.9

8 
 (1

4.
47

)
 1

4.
47

 

In
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
ri

sk

(i)
In

te
re

st
 r

at
e 

sw
ap

-
In

te
re

st
 o

n
Rs

. 6
6.

67
 m

ill
io

n 
pr

in
ci

pa
l a

m
ou

nt
 3

.7
7 

 -
 

Ap
ril

 2
02

0 
to

Ap
ril

 2
02

1
1:

1
9.

25
%

 1
0.

34
 

 (1
0.

34
)

*T
he

 fo
re

ig
n 

ex
ch

an
ge

 fo
rw

ar
d 

ar
e 

de
no

m
in

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

cu
rr

en
cy

 a
s 

th
e 

hi
gh

ly
 p

ro
ba

bl
e 

fu
tu

re
 s

al
es

, t
he

re
fo

re
 th

e 
he

dg
e 

ra
tio

 is
 1

:1
. T

he
 e

nt
ire

 a
m

ou
nt

 
of

 fo
re

ig
n 

cu
rr

en
cy

 lo
an

 (U
SD

) i
s 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 a

s 
he

dg
e 

of
 n

et
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
nd

 h
en

ce
 th

e 
he

dg
e 

ra
tio

 is
 1

:1
. T

he
 n

ot
io

na
l a

m
ou

nt
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t r
at

e 
sw

ap
 is

 e
qu

al
 

to
 th

e 
po

rti
on

 o
f v

ar
ia

bl
e 

ra
te

 lo
an

s 
th

at
 is

 b
ei

ng
 h

ed
ge

d,
 a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e 

th
e 

he
dg

e 
ra

tio
 fo

r 
in

te
re

st
 r

at
e 

sw
ap

 is
 a

ls
o 

1:
1.

 



134

NIIT Limited

30 Capital management
 The primary objective of the management of the Company’s capital structure is to maintain an efficient mix of debt and equity in order to 

achieve a low cost of capital, while taking into account the desirability of retaining financial flexibility to pursue business opportunities and 
adequate access to liquidity to mitigate the effect of unforeseen events on cash flows. To maximise the shareholder value the management
also monitors the return on equity.

 The Board of directors regularly review the Company’s capital structure in light of the economic conditions, business strategies and future 
commitments.

 For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued share capital, securities premium, all other reserves and 
debts.

 During the financial year, no significant changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes relating to the management of the 
Company’s capital structure.

 Loans availed by the Company are subject to certain financial covenants and the Company is compliant with these financial covenants
on the reporting date as per the terms of the loan agreement.

 There is no default on the repayment of borrowings (including interest thereon) during the year ended March 31, 2022.

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Borrowings [Refer note 14(i)]  10.17  70.72 
Lease liabilities[Refer note7(ii)]  77.38  101.54 
Total Debt (A)  87.55  172.26 
Equity share capital [Refer note 12(b)]  267.74  284.70 
Other equity (Refer note 13)  13,353.17  15,366.90 
Total Equity (B)  13,620.91  15,651.60 
Profit after tax (C) 1,423.17 536.11
Opening Shareholders equity  15,651.60  15,327.25 
Closing Shareholders equity  13,620.91  15,651.60 
Average Shareholder’s Equity (D)  14,636.26  15,489.43 
Debt equity ratio (A/B)  0.01  0.01
Return on equity Ratio (%) (C/D) 9.7% 3.5%

31 Contingent Liabilities

a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:- As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021

Customers  6.49  6.49 
Indemnification related to sale of investments in Coforge Limited (Formerly 
Known as NIIT Technologies Limited)

 2,393.22  2,307.00 

Works Contract Tax  31.32  31.32 
Customs Duty  4.80  4.80 
Income Tax  44.50  44.50 
Others*  17.98  17.98 

 2,498.31  2,412.09 
 *It pertains to alleged dues towards provident fund payable by vendors of the Company which the Company is also contesting. 
 The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above.

b) The Company had received Show Cause Notices under section 263 of the Income Tax Act, 1961, issued by the 
Commissioner of Income Tax (CIT) for the Assessment years 1999-00 to 2005-06, who later issued Orders directing 
the Assessing Officer for re-assessment on certain items.  The orders passed by the CIT u/s 263 for AY 1999-00 to AY 
2005-06 have been challenged by the Company in the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (‘the Tribunal’). The Tribunal has 
since passed order for AY 1999-00 wherein the Tribunal has decided the issue of assumption of jurisdiction against the 
Company and on merits, the Tribunal has allowed some of the issues and dismissed others which were referred back to 
the assessing officer for fresh examination. The Company has filed an appeal before the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi 
against the aforesaid order of the Tribunal which is pending for disposal. At this stage there is no ascertained/quantified 
demands. Based on legal opinion, the Company has fair chances of obtaining adequate relief before the Appellate 
Authorities.

 It is not practical for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending 
resolution of the respective proceedings. Management does not foresee any financial implication based on advice of 
legal counsel.

 Serious Fraud Investigation Office (‘SFIO’) has filed a case against one of the past vendors, from whom the Company 
has obtained certain services during FY 2002-05, which are also the subject matter of the above-mentioned matter u/s 
263. Recently, the Company has received a copy of partial complaint from the Court of ACMM, Delhi, who has made 
the Company also a party to the above case. While the Company has requested for a complete copy of complaint, which 
is yet to be received, based on the legal advice the matter is not maintainable and accordingly the Company has filed 
a revision petition challenging the summoning order of the Court, which is pending to be heard.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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c) Guarantees

i.  Bank Guarantees issued by Bankers outstanding at the end of the year Rs. 8.99 Million (Previous year Rs. 9.47 
Million).

ii.  Corporate Guarantee issued to ICICI Bank Canada to secure loan of Rs. 304.02 Million [CAD 5.00 Million] 
(Previous year Rs. 291.00 Million [CAD 5.00 Million]), [Amount Outstanding at the end of the year Rs. 48.64 
Million [CAD 0.80 Million], (Previous year Rs. 139.68 Million [CAD 2.40 Million]) availed by NIIT Learning Solutions 
(Canada) Limited.

iii.  Corporate Guarantee issued to ICICI Bank UK for availing working capital limits on behalf of NIIT Limited, UK Rs. 
419.28 Million (GBP 4.20 Million) (Previous year Rs. 424.02 Million (GBP 4.20 Million), [Amount Outstanding at 
the end of the year Rs. Nil  (Previous year Rs. Nil)].

32 Capital and Other Commitments

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) not provided for Rs. 22.68 
Million (Previous year Rs.7.68 Million).

(b) For commitments related to lease arrangements, Refer note 7.

(c) The Company has issued letter of supports to provide need based financial support to its subsidiary company, namely, 
NIIT Learning Systems Limited [Formerly known as Mindchampion Learning Systems Limited]. 

33 Dividend Year ended
Declared and paid during the year and previous year March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Cash dividends on equity shares declared and paid:

Final dividend for the F.Y. 2020-21: Rs. 2.50 per share  
(F.Y. 2019-20: Rs. 2.00 per share)

 333.17  283.33 

Interim dividend for the F.Y. 2021-22 Rs. 3.00 per share (F.Y. 2020-21: Nil)  401.22  - 

 734.39  283.33 

34 Earnings Per Share Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

From Continuing operations

Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. Million) (A)  1,462.09  567.14 

From Discontinued operations

Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. Million) (B)  (38.92)  (31.03)

From Continuing and Discontinued operations

Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. Million) (C)  1,423.17  536.11 

Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) – (D)  134,430,448  141,777,217 

Add : Effect of Potential Dilutive Shares (being Stock options) (Nos.)  3,209,571  1,834,146 

Weighted average shares outstanding considered for determining Diluted Earnings per 
Share (Nos.) - (E)

 137,640,019  143,611,363 

Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.)  2  2 

From Continuing operations

Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) (A/D)  10.88  4.00 

Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.) (A/E)  10.63  3.95 

From Discontinued operations

Basic loss per Share (Rs.) (B/D)  (0.29)  (0.22)

Diluted loss per Share (Rs.) (B/E)  (0.29)  (0.22)

From Continuing and Discontinued operations

Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) (C/D)  10.59  3.78 

Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.) (C/E)  10.34  3.73 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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35 Related Party Transactions :
A. Related party relationship where control exists:
 Subsidiaries
1 NIIT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited
2 NIIT Learning Systems Limited (Formerly known as Mindchampion Learning Systems Limited, name changed w.e.f 

January 18, 2022)
3 NIIT Yuva Jyoti Limited (Liquidated on February 25, 2022)
4 NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited (Under Voluntary Liquidation w.e.f. February 19, 2020)
5 NIIT USA Inc, USA
6 Stackroute Learning Inc, USA (subsidiary of entity at serial no. 5 - incorporated on December 29, 2020)
7 NIIT Limited, UK 
8 NIIT Malaysia Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia
9 NIIT West Africa Limited
10 NIIT GC Limited, Mauritius
11 NIIT (Ireland) Limited
12 NIIT Learning Solutions (Canada) Limited (subsidiary of entity at serial no. 11)
13 Eagle international Institute Inc. USA (subsidiary of entity at serial no. 5 till June 30, 2021, merged with NIIT (USA) Inc,

USA w.e.f. July 01, 2021)
14 Eagle Training Spain, S.L.U (subsidiary of entity at serial no. 13 till June 30, 2021, Subsidiary of Entity at Serial no. 5 

w.e.f. July 01, 2021)
15 PT NIIT Indonesia, Indonesia  (under liquidation)
16 NIIT China (Shanghai) Limited, Shanghai (subsidiary of entity at serial no. 10)
17 NIIT Wuxi Service Outsourcing Training School, China (Deregistered on June 24, 2020)  (subsidiary of entity at serial 

no. 16)
18 Wuxi NIIT Information Technology Consulting Limited, China (entity closed on October 30, 2020) (subsidiary of entity at 

serial no. 16)
19 Su Zhou NIIT Information Technology Consulting Limited, China (subsidiary of entity at serial no. 18, ceases to exist as 

step-down subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. October 30, 2020)
20 Changzhou NIIT Information Technology Consulting Limited (subsidiary of entity at serial no. 18, ceases to exist as step-

down subsidiary of the Company subsidiary w.e.f. October 30, 2020)
21 Chengmai NIIT Information Technology Company Limited, China (Under process of closing)  (subsidiary of entity at 

serial no. 16)
22 Chongqing An Dao Education Consulting Limited, China  (subsidiary of entity at serial no. 16)
23 Chongqing NIIT Education Consulting Limited, China (Closed on January 20, 2021) (subsidiary of entity at serial no. 16)
24 NingXia NIIT Education Technology Company Limited, China (subsidiary of entity at serial no. 16) 
25 Guizhou NIIT information technology consulting Co., Limited, China (subsidiary of entity at serial no. 16)
26 NIIT (Guizhou) Education Technology Co., Limited, China (subsidiary of entity at serial no. 16)
27 RPS Consulting Private Limited (w.e.f. October 01, 2021)

B. Other related parties with whom the Company has transacted:
a) Key Management Personnel
1 Mr. Rajendra S Pawar (Chairman)
2 Mr. Vijay K Thadani (Vice-Chairman & Managing Director)
3 Mr. P Rajendran (Joint Managing Director)
4 Mr. Sapnesh Kumar Lalla (Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. August 05, 2021)
5 Mr. Anand Sudarshan (Independent Director)
6 Mr. Ashish Kashyap (Independent Director- resigned w.e.f. August 30, 2021)
7 Ms. Geeta Mathur  (Independent Director)
8 Mr. Ravinder Singh  (Independent Director)
9 Ms. Sangita Singh (Independent Director w.e.f. June 05, 2021)
10 Ms. Avani Vishal Davda (Independent Director w.e.f. June 05, 2021)
11 Mr. Udai Singh Pawar (Non executive Director w.e.f. August 05, 2021)
12 Ms. Leher Vijay Thadani (Non executive Director w.e.f. August 05, 2021)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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13 Mr. Ravindra Babu Garikipati (Independent Director w.e.f. November 11, 2021)
14 Mr. Amit Roy (Chief Financial Officer -Till June 04, 2020)
15 Mr. Sanjay Mal (Chief Financial Officer-w.e.f. June 05, 2020)
16 Mr. Deepak Bansal (Company secretary)

b) Relatives of Key Management Personnel
1 Ms. Renuka Thadani (Wife of Vijay K Thadani)

c) Parties in which the Key Management Personnel of the Company are deemed to be interested
1 NIIT Institute of Information Technology
2 NIIT University
3 Naya Bazaar Novelties Private Limited
4 NIIT Foundation
5 NIIT Network Services Limited

C. Key management personnel compensation Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Short-term employee benefits*  130.76  30.16 
Post-employment benefits  5.55  1.43 
Commission, Sitting fees, Remuneration and Other reimbursements paid to 
Non Executive & Independent Directors

 28.91  15.32 

Total compensation  165.22  46.91 
*Excludes value of employee stock options.

D. Terms and conditions
 Transactions relating to dividends, subscriptions for new equity shares were on the same terms and conditions that 

applied to other shareholders.
 Transactions with related parties during the year were based on terms that would be available to third parties. All other 

transactions were made in ordinary course of business and at arm’s length price.
 ordinary course of business and at arm’s length price.
 All outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash.

E. Details of significant transactions and balances with related parties :

Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries
Key 

Management
Personnel

Relatives 
of Key 

Management
Personnel

Parties in which 
Key Management 
Personnel of the 
Company are 
deemed to be 

interested

Total

Purchase of Goods  -  -  -  0.14  0.14 

  (0.14)  -  -  (0.27)  (0.41)

Purchase of Property, Plant and equipment  0.40  -  -  -  0.40 

  (0.72)  -  -  -  (0.72)

Sale of Services  2,210.46  -  -  -  2,210.46 

  (2,124.80)  -  -  -  (2,124.80)

Purchase of Services-Professional Technical & 
Outsourcing expenses and others

 374.04  -  0.98  -  375.02 

 (510.42)  -  (0.98)  -  (511.40)

Recovery from subsidiaries for Corporate and 
Management Support Services

 298.43  -  -  -  298.43 

 (243.63)  -  -  -  (243.63)

Recovery of share based payments from  68.47  -  -  -  68.47 

  (17.90)  -  -  -  (17.90)

Recovery of other expenses from  7.12  -  -  2.07  9.19 

  (13.59)  -  -  (1.94)  (15.53)

Recovery of other expenses from (under the head 
other income)

 8.63  -  -  0.29  8.92 

 (5.46)  -  -  (0.75)  (6.21)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries
Key 

Management
Personnel

Relatives 
of Key 

Management
Personnel

Parties in which 
Key Management 
Personnel of the 
Company are 
deemed to be 

interested

Total

Recovery of Professional Technical & Outsourcing 
expenses by

36.13  -  -  - 36.13

 (14.92)  -  -  -  (14.92)

Recovery of Employee Benefits expenses by  -  -  -  -  - 

 (1.08)  -  -  -  (1.08)

Recovery of other expenses by  0.64  0.19  -  1.83 2.66

  (1.40)  (0.12)  -  (7.00)  (8.52)

Royalty paid  24.19  -  -  -  24.19 

  (10.09)  -  -  -  (10.09)

Interest Income  -  -  -  -  - 

  (17.72)  -  -  -  (17.72)

Dividend Income  743.64  -  -  -  743.64 

 -  -  -  -  - 

Corporate Guarantee Charges (included in Other 
Non-Operating Income)

 3.60  -  -  -  3.60 

 (1.84)  -  -  -  (1.84)

Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) activities

 -  -  -  5.70  5.70 

 -  -  -  (3.10)  (3.10)

Donation paid  -  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  (10.00)  (10.00)

Investment made  -  -  -  -  - 

 (811.94)  -  -  -  (811.94)

Provision for impairment of Investments  -  -  -  -  - 

  (682.53)  -  -  -  (682.53)

Reversal of provision for impairment of Loan to 
Subsidiary

 -  -  -  -  - 

 (300.00)  -  -  -  (300.00)

Loans Given  -  -  -  -  - 

  (50.00)  -  -  -  (50.00)

Loans Given Received Back  -  -  -  -  - 

  (350.00)  -  -  -  (350.00)

 Previous year figures of March 31, 2021 are given in parenthesis.
 Refer notes 31 and 32 for Guarantees, collaterals and commitments.

F. Outstanding Balances :

Particulars Subsidiaries
Key 

Management
Personnel

Parties in which Key 
Management Personnel of the 
Company are deemed to be 

interested

Total

Receivables

March 31, 2022  631.83  0.26  0.71 632.80

March 31, 2021  (586.83)  (0.48)  (0.88)  (588.19)

Payables

March 31, 2022  194.88  11.37  0.33 206.58

March 31, 2021  (241.18)  (8.45)  (0.31)  (249.94)

 Refer notes 31 and 32 for Guarantees, collaterals and commitments as at the year end.
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36 Segment Information
 The Company is engaged in providing Education & Training Services in a single segment. Based on “Management 

Approach”, as defined in Ind AS 108 – Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the 
performance and allocates resources based on the analysis of performance of the Company as a whole. Its operations 
are, therefore, considered to constitute a single segment in the context of Ind AS 108 – Operating Segments. 

 As per Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, where the financial report contains both the consolidated financial statements 
of a parent as well as the parent’s separate financial statements, segment information is required only in the consolidated 
financial statements, Accordingly, no segment information is disclosed in these standalone financial statements of the 
Company.

37 Discontinued operations

 During the year 2019-20, in line with its stated long term strategy of reducing exposure to low margin, capital intensive 
government business, the Company had decided not to pursue new skills contracts and decided to discontinue operations 
post completion of continuing commitments. These contracts were transferred from its wholly owned subsidiary NIIT Yuva 
Jyoti Limited (Liquidated on February 25, 2022) through an agreement.

 In pursuance of applicable accounting standard (IND AS - 105), the net results (i.e. revenue minus expenses) of such 
operations are disclosed separately as loss from  ‘Discontinued Operations’.

  Net results of Discontinued Operations :

Particulars
Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue  0.39  1.08 
Other Income  1.11  0.77 
Expenses  (51.60)  (32.88)
Loss before tax from discontinued operations  (50.10)  (31.03)
Tax Expenses*  (11.18)  - 
Loss after tax from discontinued operations  (38.92)  (31.03)

*Includes deferred tax credit amounting to Rs. 10.89 Million.

Cash flow from Discontinued Operations

Particulars
Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Net Cash flow used in operating activities  (5.49)  (17.87)
Net Cash flow generated from investing activities  0.42  2.84 
Net Cash flow used in financing activities  -   (0.34)

38  Additional Regulatory Information 
i)  There are no immovable properties included in Property Plant and Equipment, whose title deeds are not held in the 

name of the Company. 
ii)  The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) and intangible assets 

during the year ended March 31, 2022. 
iii) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 

Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made 
thereunder. 

iv)  The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority, as per the available information. 

v) Relationship with Struck off Companies:

Name of the struck off company 

Nature of 
transactions

with struck off 
company

Balance
outstanding as on  
March 31, 2022

Balance
outstanding as on 
 March 31, 2021

Relationship with 
the struck off 

company, if any, 
to be disclosed 

P2RL Institute Of Computer Studies Private 
Limited

Trade Receivable  -   1.17 None

Shriiram Infocons Private Limited Trade Receivable  -   1.20 None

Shreya Automobile Services Private Limited Trade Receivable  -   1.05 None

Ajay IT Solutions Private Limited Trade Receivable  -   1.58 None

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)
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Name of the struck off company 

Nature of 
transactions

with struck off 
company

Balance
outstanding as on  
March 31, 2022

Balance
outstanding as on 
 March 31, 2021

Relationship with 
the struck off 

company, if any, 
to be disclosed 

Dolce Data Systems Private Limited, Coral 
Inforech Private Limited, Prasad Software Private 
Limited, Ask Infotech Private Limited, Couto Data 
Systems Private Limited, Sri Sai Prabhu Computer 
Education Private Limited, Study Web Computers 
Private Limited, Anudeep Infotech Private Limited, 
Ramana Systems Private Limited, Rifson Infotech 
Private Limited, Surbhi Computers Private Limited, 
Edutech Centre Private Limited, Venkata Bayamma 
Infotech Private Limited, Unique Computech 
Private Limited, U D Info Education Centre Private 
Limited, O.S. Business Solutions Private Limited, 
Singrauli Infotech Private Limited, Crux Career Labs 
Private Limited, Saraswati Vidya Private Limited, 
Sudharsanam IT Academy Private Limited, Bss 
Software Services Private Limited, JMG Computer 
Education Private Limited, Intuitive IT Labs Private 
Limited, Noble Career Solutions Private Limited, 
Jayamatha Technological Centre Private Limited, 
Divinity Infotech Private Limited, Culverin Infotech 
Solutions Private limited, Suhas Computers Private 
Limited, Vaishnavi Techno Solutions Private limited, 
Suvipr Infotech PrivateLimited, Bytestream Infotech 
Private Limited, Anchor Education Private Limited, 
Jeen Career Solution Private Limited, Shambhvi 
Education Private Limited, Glenmoor Technologies 
Private Limited, Vishalakshi Education Systems 
Private Limited, Kokom Info Private Limited, 
Pinnacle New Era Education PrivateLimited, 
Wakode Technologies Private Limited, White 
Orchid IT Solutions Private Limited, Bran Eduvision 
Private Limited, Saq Institute Private Limited, PRS 
Techno Solutions Private Limited, Cognistyx 
Business Solutions Private limited, PH Informatics 
Private Limited, ABR Infotech Private Limited, E2E 
Educomp Private Limited, 2S Systems Learning 
Private Limited, Ayurda Arjit Multiservices Private 
Limited, Tirumala Tanaya Soft Solutions Private 
Limited, U D Info education Centre Private Limited, 
Snowflakes Educations Private Limited, Netspyder 
Networks Private Limited, Academic Campus 
Connections Private Limited, B Basaveshwara IT 
Solutions Private Limited

Trade Receivable  -   10.35* None

S One Technologies Private Limited Trade Payable  (1.59)  (1.59) None

Dhan Sree Computers Private Limited Trade Payable  (1.60)  (1.60) None

Softline Informatics Private Limited, Sathya Sudha 
Computers Private Limited, Insoft Technologies 
Private Limited, Joshison's Computers Private 
Limited, Sri Veerabhadra Infotech Private Limited, 
Vegi's Computers Private Limited, Rhino Infotech 
Private Limited, Assam Computer Services Private 
Limited, Cognistyx Business Solutions Private, 
Hariharan Technologies Private Limited, Tatwamasi 
Infotech Bijapur Private Limited

Trade Payable  (2.81)*  (2.89)* None

*Individual Companies with balance less than Rs. 1 Million.

vi)  The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

vii)  The Company has not traded or invested in cryptocurrency transactions during the financial year and there is no balance as at year 
end.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)
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ix)  The Board of Directors of the Company, in its meeting held on January 28, 2022 has approved a Composite Scheme of Arrangement
under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 between NIIT Limited (Transferor Company) and
NIIT Learning Systems Limited (Formerly known as Mindchampion Learning Systems Limited) (Transferee Company) a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Company and their respective shareholders and creditors (”Scheme”). The Scheme inter-alia provides for, (i) Transfer
and Vesting of CLG Business Undertaking by the Transferor Company to Transferee Company, (ii) Reduction and cancellation of Share
Capital of Transferee Company held by Transferor Company, (iii) Issuance and allotment of shares by the Transferee Company to the
shareholders of Transferor Company in consideration of transfer of CLG Business undertaking.

 The Appointed Date for the Scheme is April 1, 2022 or such other date as directed by the Hon’ble Chandigarh Bench of the National
Company Law Tribunal (”NCLT”). The Scheme is subject to receipt of regulatory and other approvals inter-alia approval from BSE Limited,
National Stock Exchange of India Limited, SEBI, shareholders, creditors, NCLT and others, as may be applicable.

 Pending regulatory approvals and other compliances, the financial statements of the Company does not have impact of the Scheme.
Expenses related to the Scheme have been recognised as an exceptional item in the statement of Profit and loss.

 These financial statements include revenue from operations of CLG Business Undertaking of Rs. 3,193.91 Million for the year ended
March 31, 2022.

x)  The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

xi)  The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a)  Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b)  Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

xii)  The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 50 Million in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis 
of security of current assets of the Company. The quarterly returns / statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement
with the books of accounts of the Company.

39  The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Company
will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period when the Code becomes
effective.

40  Previous year/ period figures have been regrouped / reclassified to conform the current period classification.

 Signatures to Notes ‘ 1 ‘ to ‘ 40 ‘ above of these Financial Statements.

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of NIIT Limited 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004 

Sanjay Bachchani Rajendra S Pawar  Vijay K Thadani 
Partner Chairman  Vice-Chairman & Managing Director 
Membership No. 400419 DIN - 00042516  DIN - 00042527 

Sapnesh Kumar Lalla  Sanjay Mal  Deepak Bansal 

Place: Gurugram 
Executive Director &
Chief Executive Officer

 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary 

Date : May 24, 2022 DIN - 06808242

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)
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To the Members of NIIT Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of NIIT Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding 
Company”), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) comprising of 
the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31 2022, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including the Other 
Comprehensive Income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the 
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration 
of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries, the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the 
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at March 31, 2022, their consolidated profit including other 
comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 
on that date. 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the 
Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided 
in that context. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have 
fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures 
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The 
results of audit procedures performed by us and by other auditors of components not audited by us, as reported by them in 
their audit reports furnished to us by the management, including those procedures performed to address the matters below, 
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters
Revenue recognition and recoverability from trade receivables and unbilled revenue (refer to the summary of 
significant accounting policies in point 2(e), (l) (iii) and (n) and the disclosure in note 7 (ii), 7 (iii) and 16 of the consolidated
financial statements)
The Company derives a significant portion of its revenue 
from long-term and fixed-price projects. Estimation of effort 
is a critical estimate to determine revenues for fixed-price 
contracts. This estimate has a high inherent uncertainty as 
it requires consideration of the progress of the contract, 
efforts incurred till date, and efforts required to complete 
the remaining contract performance obligations. Some of 
the contracts have complex terms and conditions requiring 
management analysis, judgement and application of 
guidance for appropriate recognition of revenue and the 
corresponding balances of accounts receivables, unbilled 
revenues and deferred revenues. 

In consideration of certain key judgements and principles 
used for the recognition of revenue, we have identified this 
matter to be a key audit matter.

Further, the Company has a significant amount of trade 
receivables and unbilled revenue of Rs 2,876.69 Mn 
in the balance sheet. The Company has determined 
the allowance for the expected credit losses based on 
historical loss experience adjusted to reflect current and 
estimated future economic conditions. We focused on this 
risk as the balances are material and there are significant 
judgments involved in assessing the recoverability of 
trade receivables and unbilled revenue for calculating the 
expected credit losses.

Our audit procedures included the following:

We have performed a walkthrough and obtained an 
understanding of the process and tested the operating 
effectiveness of key controls associated with the revenue 
recognition and accounts receivable process.

We made enquiries to management and analysed contracts on 
sample basis to evaluate revenue recognition in accordance 
with the terms and conditions of the contract. We have:

Assessed the Company’s accounting policies relating to 
revenue recognition;

Checked the revenue recognition from fixed price contracts 
by reading the supporting documents including inspection 
of contracts/statement of work/purchase orders from 
customers and documents evidencing delivery, on a test 
check basis;

Checked, pre and post year-end, sample of revenue 
recognized, with the supporting documents;

Circulated the confirmations for outstanding trade 
receivables on a sample basis on year-end, and performed 
alternate procedures for the confirmations not received;

We have obtained calculation of estimated efforts budgeted 
by management and performed a comparative analysis to 
the actual efforts;

Tested the ageing of trade receivables for a sample of 
invoices;

Checked the subsequent collection made from the trade 
receivables and subsequent billing for unbilled revenue 
and inquired of management for the reasons of any 
long outstanding amounts and correspondences with the 
customers;

Checked the calculation of expected credit loss model, 
based upon the past trend and forward-looking scenarios 
and ensured that recognition of the calculation of expected 
credit loss is in accordance with the provision of Ind AS 
109;

Tested the journal entries impacting revenue, using 
data extracted from the accounting system, made in the 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

Checked the adequacy of disclosure given in the 
consolidated financial statement for compliance with the 
Accounting Standards.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  Contd..
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters
Impairment of intangible assets and goodwill (refer to the summary of significant accounting policies in points 2 (s), (t) 
and the disclosure in note 5 of the consolidated financial statements)
Annually, the management assesses the impairment of 
internally generated intangible assets for each cash-
generating Unit (CGU) and goodwill for an impairment 
test.

As at the reporting date, the Company has internally 
generated intangible assets (including intangible 
assets under development) for which management has 
evaluated future economic benefits in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS’) 36, “Impairment of 
Assets”.

In consideration of the judgments required in particular 
with reference to the forecast of CGU cash flows and the 
assumptions used in estimating the value-in-use of these 
intangible assets and goodwill, we have identified this 
matter to be a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:
We assessed the key information used in determining the 
valuation including the weighted average cost of capital, cash 
flow forecasts and the implicit growth. We have:

Assessed the Company’s valuation methodology applied in 
determining the value in use;

Inspected and assessed with the help of our valuation 
specialists, management’s most recent forecasts and the 
underlying assumptions/calculations having considered 
information on capacity, and expected growth rates from 
recent industry sources;

Assessed historical accuracy of management’s budgets and 
forecasts by comparing them to actual performance;

Assessed the recoverable value headroom by performing 
sensitivity testing of key assumptions used;

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the models;

Checked the disclosure given in the consolidated financial 
statement for compliance with the Accounting standards;

Obtained management’s most recent financial results 
forecasts and liquidity analysis underlying their impairment 
assessment and tested the integrity of the forecasts, 
including mathematical accuracy;

Assessed potential changes in key drivers with management 
in order to evaluate whether the inputs and assumptions 
used in the cash flow forecasts were suitable.

Recoverability of deferred tax assets (refer to the summary of significant accounting policies in point 2 (i) and the 
disclosure in note 8 (i) of the consolidated financial statements)
The Company has recognized deferred tax assets of 
Rs. 308.18 Mn on timing differences. There is inherent 
uncertainty involved in forecasting future taxable profits, 
which determines the extent to which deferred tax assets 
are recognized. 

The analysis of the recoverability of such deferred tax 
assets has been identified as a key audit matter because 
the assessment process involves judgement regarding the 
future profitability and the likelihood of the realization of 
these assets, in particular, whether there will be taxable 
profits in future periods that support the recognition of 
these assets. 

There is an inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting 
future taxable profits, which determines the extent to which 
deferred tax assets are recognized. We have identified this 
matter to be a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Checked management’s calculation of the Deferred tax 
assets and the key assumptions used; 

Evaluated the design and implementation of key controls 
relating to the calculation of deferred tax asset;

Checked the basis for estimating projected future profits 
and evaluated the assumptions used by management in 
these profit forecasts;

Tested the tax adjustments, with the support from tax 
specialists, which are taken into account to estimate 
taxable income, applicable tax legislation and the decisions 
concerning the possibilities of using applicable tax benefits 
with respect to the group entities; 

Performed sensitivity analysis on projections used for 
determining future taxable income to understand and 
challenge the key assumptions used by management;

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the deferred tax 
calculation;

Checked the disclosure given in the consolidated financial 
statement for compliance with the Accounting Standards.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  Contd..



146

NIIT Limited

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters
Business combination (refer to the summary of significant accounting policies in point 2 (k) and the disclosure in note 39 
of the consolidated financial statements) 
During the year, the Group made a strategic investment 
in RPS Consulting Private Limited on October 01, 2021.

70% stake of the Investee Company was purchased on 
October 01, 2021, and accordingly obtained control. The 
Group has determined October 01, 2021, as the date of 
acquisition of control.

The assets and liabilities acquired were recognised at fair 
value at the date of acquisition. Goodwill was recognised 
as the remaining portion of the purchase price that was 
not allocated to the acquired assets and liabilities as part 
of the purchased price allocation.

To determine fair value of individual assets acquired, 
including Customer relationships, trainer database and 
brand involves complex valuation models and assumptions 
used. This measurement was dependent on estimates of 
future cash flow as well as cost of capital applied which 
involves significant judgement.

Further as per share purchase agreement, the Group will 
be acquiring the remaining stake over the period which 
involves uncertainty in the valuation of future liability.

In this context and due to the underlying complexity of the 
valuation models, there is a risk that the fair values have 
not been determined appropriately. 

With respect to the accounting for the acquisition:

Read the share purchase agreement with the shareholders 
of RPS Consulting Private Limited for obtaining an 
understanding of the acquisition and to evaluate the 
financial statement impact;

Evaluate whether the accounting treatment is in accordance 
with Ind AS 103 and Ind AS 32;

Involved internal valuation specialist to assess the 
appropriateness of the methodology applied by the 
management to determine the fair valuation of assets and 
liabilities acquired. Key assumptions and methodologies 
used by the management specialist were evaluated like 
discount rates, growth rates including terminal growth, 
projected cash flows in line with past trends and useful 
lives assigned for identified assets with reference to our 
own independent expectations, which were based on our 
industry knowledge and experience and have tested the 
valuation for mathematical accuracy;

In addition, we assessed whether the disclosures in the 
notes to the consolidated financial statements are in line 
with the requirement of Ind AS 103 and Ind AS 32.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with 
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated 
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated 
statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding 
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group 
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
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related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group of which we are the independent auditors and whose financial information we have audited, to express 
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance 
of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we 
are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been 
audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.
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Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 17 subsidiaries, whose financial 
statements include total assets of Rs 3,968.76 Million as at March 31, 2022, total revenues of Rs 3,930.16 Million and 
net cash inflows of Rs 739.58 Million for the year ended on that date. These financial statements and other financial 
information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s 
reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far 
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports 
of such other auditors.

(b) The accompanying consolidated financial statements include unaudited financial statements and other unaudited 
financial information in respect of 2 subsidiaries, whose financial statements and other financial information reflect total 
assets of Rs 4.65 Million as at March 31, 2022, and total revenues of Rs Nil Million and net cash outflows of Rs 0.40 
Million for the year ended on that date. These unaudited financial statements and other unaudited financial information 
have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion, in so far as it relates amounts and disclosures included in 
respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates 
to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements and other unaudited financial 
information. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations are given to us by the Management, 
these financial statements and other financial information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the 
other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information certified by the Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India 
in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other 
auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary companies incorporated 
in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraph 3 (xxi) of the Order.

2.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors 
on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘other matter’ 
paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to the preparation of the aforesaid consolidation 
of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and reports of 
the other auditors;

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors 
who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group’s 
companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the subsidiaries, the 
managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022, has been paid/provided by the Holding Company, 
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its subsidiaries incorporated in India to their directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on 
separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other 
matter’ paragraph:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial 
position of the Group in its consolidated financial statements – Refer Note 29 to the consolidated financial 
statements;

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including derivative contracts 
during the year ended March 31, 2022;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, incorporated in India during the year ended 
March 31, 2022.

iv.  a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies 
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to 
us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in the note 41 (ix) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other persons or 
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or any 
of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies 
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to 
us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in the note 41 (x) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds (which are 
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the respective Holding Company 
or any of such subsidiaries from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of 
such subsidiaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c)  Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries which are 
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing 
has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v.  The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company and subsidiary companies 
incorporated in India, is in compliance with section 123 of the Act.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

per Sanjay Bachchani
Partner

Place of Signature: Gurugram Membership Number: 400419
Date: May 24, 2022 UDIN: 22400419AJMVIC9334
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Re: NIIT Limited (‘the Group’)

(xxi) Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order (CARO) reports 
of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are:

Sr. 
No

Name CIN Holding company/ 
subsidiary

Clause number of 
the CARO report 

which is qualified or 
is adverse

1 RPS Consulting Private Limited U72200KA2006PTC041205 Subsidiary Company Clause vii(a)

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

per Sanjay Bachchani
Partner

Place of Signature: Gurugram Membership Number: 400419
Date: May 24, 2022 UDIN: 22400419AJMVIC9334

ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 OF THE REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of NIIT Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding
Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
together referred to as “the Group”), which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, are 
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAI. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their 
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference 
to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
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financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, have maintained in all material respects, adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. 

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, in so far as it relates to one subsidiary, which is a 
company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor of such subsidiary, incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

per Sanjay Bachchani
Partner

Place of Signature: Gurugram Membership Number: 400419
Date: May 24, 2022 UDIN: 22400419AJMVIC9334

ANNEXURE -2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF NIIT LIMTED                                                                                                                                    (Contd...)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Notes  As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Restated refer note 38
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3  1,471.21  1,448.12 
Investment property 4  0.56  0.56 
Goodwill 5  1,179.41  354.50 
Other intangible assets 5  902.41  1,010.40 
Right-of-use assets 6(ii)  151.87  282.86 
Intangible assets under development 5  61.11  50.11 
Financial assets

Other financial assets 7(iii)  90.89  19.01 
Deferred tax assets (net) 8(i)  308.18  165.21 
Income tax assets (net) 8(ii)  453.75  486.62 
Other non-current assets 9  61.58  0.25 
Total non-current assets  4,680.97  3,817.64 
Current assets 
 Inventories 10  20.60  17.80 
 Financial assets 

 Investments 7(i)  7,223.78  8,585.49 
 Trade receivables 7(ii)  1,886.18  1,456.15 
 Cash and cash equivalents 7(iv)  3,066.74  1,757.74 
 Bank balances other than above 7(v)  1,281.08  3,232.99 
 Other financial assets 7(iii)  2,643.27  2,500.53 

 Other current assets 9  280.91  153.16 
Total current assets  16,402.56  17,703.86 
TOTAL ASSETS  21,083.53  21,521.50 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 11  267.74  284.70 
Other equity 12

Reserves and Surplus 12(i)  14,460.04  15,760.73 
Other Reserves 12(ii)  424.96  358.80 

Equity attributable to owners of NIIT Limited  15,152.74  16,404.23 
Non controlling interests 35(b)  39.76  33.52 
TOTAL EQUITY  15,192.50  16,437.75 
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

 Borrowings 13(i)  5.31  77.15 
 Lease liabilities 6(ii)  107.06  202.58 

 Other financial liabilities 13(iii)  182.98  0.52 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 8(i)  15.38  12.92 
Other non-current liabilities 15  0.79  1.17 
Total non-current liabilities  311.52  294.34 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

 Borrowings 13(i)  85.23  202.50 
 Lease liabilities 6(ii)  54.66  97.61 

 Trade payables 13(ii)  1,251.37  911.22 
 Other financial liabilities 13(iii)  2,069.67  1,753.55 

Provisions 14  418.14  412.79 
Income tax liabilities (net) 8(ii)  209.75  154.03 
Other current liabilities 15  1,490.69  1,257.71 
Total current liabilities  5,579.51  4,789.41 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  5,891.03  5,083.75 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  21,083.53  21,521.50 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of NIIT Limited 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004 
Sanjay Bachchani Rajendra S Pawar  Vijay K Thadani 
Partner Chairman  Vice-Chairman & Managing Director 
Membership No. 400419 DIN - 00042516  DIN - 00042527 

Sapnesh Kumar Lalla  Sanjay Mal  Deepak Bansal 

Place: Gurugram 
Executive Director &
Chief Executive Officer

 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary 

Date : May 24, 2022 DIN - 06808242
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 Year ended 
Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Restated refer note 38
Continuing and Discontinued Operations
INCOME
Revenue from operations 16  13,774.81  9,596.78 
Other Income 17  517.11  902.25 
Total Income  14,291.92  10,499.03 
EXPENSES
Purchase of stock-in-trade  134.22  80.62 
Change in inventories of stock-in-trade 10  (2.80)  28.58 
Employee benefit expenses 18  6,908.12  5,420.93 
Professional & technical outsourcing expenses  2,319.46  1,502.21 
Finance costs 19  20.70  59.79 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3,5 & 6(ii)  576.61  594.81 
Other expenses 20  1,451.00  953.17 
Total Expenses  11,407.31  8,640.11 
Profit before exceptional items  2,884.61  1,858.92 
Exceptional items 22  (29.30)  (54.31)
Profit before tax  2,855.31  1,804.61 
Tax expense: 23
- Current tax  621.35  214.96 
- Deferred tax charge/ (credit)  (103.76)  121.76 
Total tax expense  517.59  336.72 
Profit for the year from continuing operations  2,337.72  1,467.89 
Loss after tax for the year from discontinued operations 37  (39.11)  (31.23)
Profit for the year  2,298.61  1,436.66 
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

a) Remeasurement of the defined benefit obligation 24  (66.92)  (46.85)
b) Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 12(ii)  67.48  (26.74)
c) Income tax effect  16.95  13.24 
d) Fair value changes on cash flow hedges, net 12(ii)  0.14  3.87 

 17.65  (56.48)
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

a) Fair value changes on cash flow hedges, net 12(ii)  (1.46)  31.70 
b) Income tax effect  -  - 

 (1.46)  31.70 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  16.19  (24.78)
Total comprehensive income for the year  2,314.80  1,411.88 
Profit attributable to
Owners of NIIT Limited  2,261.96  1,430.24 
Non-controlling interests 35(b)  36.65  6.42 

 2,298.61  1,436.66 
Other comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of NIIT Limited  16.19  (24.78)

 16.19  (24.78)
Total comprehensive income attributable to 
Owners of NIIT Limited  2,278.15  1,405.46 
Non-controlling interests  36.65  6.42 

 2,314.80  1,411.88 
Earnings per equity share (Face Value Rs. 2 each) for Continuing Operations: 32
- Basic  17.12  10.31 
- Diluted  16.72  10.18 
Loss per equity share (Face Value Rs. 2 each) for Discontinued Operations:
- Basic  (0.29)  (0.22)
- Diluted  (0.29)  (0.22)
Earnings per equity share (Face Value Rs. 2 each) for Continuing and Discontinued 
Operations:
- Basic  16.83  10.09 
- Diluted  16.43  9.96 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of NIIT Limited 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004 
Sanjay Bachchani Rajendra S Pawar  Vijay K Thadani 
Partner Chairman  Vice-Chairman & Managing Director 
Membership No. 400419 DIN - 00042516  DIN - 00042527 

Sapnesh Kumar Lalla  Sanjay Mal  Deepak Bansal 

Place: Gurugram 
Executive Director &
Chief Executive Officer

 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary 

Date : May 24, 2022 DIN - 06808242

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)
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NIIT Limited

 Year ended
March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021

A.   CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 

 From Continuing Operations  2,884.61  1,858.92 
 From Discontinued Operations  (50.28)  (31.23)
 Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
 Depreciation and Amortisation  576.65  595.45 
 Finance Cost  19.11  57.35 
 Interest Income  (201.69)  (374.17)
 Rent Concession  (1.43)  - 
 Gain on termination of leases  (12.00)  (4.91)
 Unwinding of discount on borrowings and deferred payment liability  1.59  2.51 
 Profit on sale/ disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets (net)  (0.73)  (11.83)
 Net gain on Investment carried at fair value through profit and loss  (260.15)  (468.70)
 Allowance/ Write off of Doubtful Debts (net of reversal)  (11.91)  28.04 
 Allowance for Doubtful Advances (net of reversal)  0.82  2.38 
 Allowance for Unbilled Revenue  43.28  19.87 
 Allowance for Slow/ Non-moving Inventory/ (Written back) - (net)  (13.54)  (27.52)
 Liabilities/ Provisions no longer required written back  (2.06)  (1.11)
 Unrealised Foreign Exchange Gain (net)  (6.47)  (11.55)
 Share Based Payments  158.15  40.69 
 Operating cash flows before working capital changes  3,123.95  1,674.19 
 Working Capital Adjustments 
 Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables  162.00  (135.68)
 Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non Current Financial Liabilities  21.95  (0.35)
 Decrease in Other Non Current Liabilities  (0.38)  (1.64)
 Increase in Other Current Liabilities  215.19  618.78 
 (Decrease)/ Increase in Other Current Financial Liabilities  (89.75)  462.21 
 (Decrease)/ Increase in Short-Term Provisions  (75.62)  46.32 
 Increase in Current Trade Receivables  (230.65)  (12.92)
 Decrease in Non Current Trade Receivables  -  0.97 
 Decrease in Inventories  12.74  41.15 
 Increase in Other Non Current Assets  (2.29)  (2.49)
 (Increase)/ Decrease in Other Current Assets  (98.74)  133.55 
 Decrease/ (Increase) in Other Current Financial Assets  315.60  (495.96)
 Decrease in Other Non Current Financial Assets  4.71  42.57 
 Net cash flow generated from operations before tax  3,358.71  2,370.70 
 Direct Tax- (paid including TDS)/ refund received (net)  (480.60)  28.99 
 Net Cash flow generated from Operating activities before Exceptional Items  2,878.11  2,399.69 
 Exceptional Items (Other than those disclosed in movement in working capital)  -  (41.37)
 Net Cash flow generated from operating activities (A)  2,878.11  2,358.32 

B.   CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Capital Work-in-progress,  

      internally developed intangibles and Capital Advances)
 (263.99)  (302.86)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  4.88  16.21 
Encashment/ Placement of Fixed Deposits from/with Banks (Net)  1,386.58  (829.93)
Encashment of Deposits from other Financial Institution (Net)  773.78  476.22 
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds  5,077.47  2,264.72 
Purchase of mutual funds  (4,229.39)  (2,418.48)
Payment towards acquisition of businesses  (791.52)  (38.22)
Expenses in relation to acquisition of business  (8.21)  - 
Expenses in relation to scheme of arrangement  (5.33)  - 
Interest received  327.77  431.69 
Net Cash flows generated from / (used in) Investing activities (B)  2,272.04  (400.65)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated) 
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NIIT Limited

 Year ended
March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021

C.  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
 Issue of shares under Employee stock option scheme  108.51  50.44 
 Purchase of shares under buyback scheme  (2,370.00)  - 
 Tax on buyback  (552.12)  - 
 Expenses in relation to buyback  (15.12)  (16.57)
 Payment of lease liabilities  (106.50)  (153.82)
 Repayment of long term borrowings  (185.75)  (278.97)
 Proceeds from long term borrowings  -  53.39 
 Repayment of short term borrowings (net)  -  (301.47)
 Repayment of Notes Payable  -  (20.34)
 Interest paid  (5.57)  (31.97)
 Purchase/ Settlement of shares from non controlling interests  -  (0.22)
 Dividend paid to equity share holders of the Holding Company  (734.82)  (279.47)
 Net Cash flow used in Financing activities (C)  (3,861.37)  (979.00)

      Net Increase in cash & cash equivalents (A) + (B) + (C)  1,288.78  978.67 
Adjustment on account of Foreign Exchange Fluctuations  19.79  (97.78)
Cash and Cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year (Note 1)  1,768.60  887.71 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  3,077.17  1,768.60 

Notes: Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
1) Composition of Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows   
    comprise of the following balance sheet amounts:
    Cash and cash equivalents as per the balance sheet [Refer note 7(iv)]  3,066.74 1757.74

Add: Dividend accounts [Refer note 7(v)] 10.43 10.86
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 3077.17  1768.60
2)  Figures in parenthesis indicate cash outflow.
3)  The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared using the indirect method as set out in Ind-AS 7.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date
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1 Corporate Information

 NIIT Limited (‘the Company’) is a talent development Company which was set up in 1981. NIIT (‘the Company’) 
currently offers learning and knowledge solutions across the globe to individuals, enterprises and various institutions. 
The Company is a public listed Company and is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and the National Stock 
Exchange (NSE). The current registered place of business of the Company is : Plot No. 85, Sector - 32, Institutional Area, 
Gurugram - 122001 (Haryana) India.

 During the year, the Holding Company’s registered office has been shifted to Plot No. 85, Sector - 32, Institutional 
Area, Gurugram - 122001 (Haryana) India, w.e.f. November 5, 2021, pursuant to the approval of Regional Director, 
Northern Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi.

2 Significant Accounting Policies

 This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the period presented, unless otherwise stated.

a) Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

 These consolidated financial statements (‘financial statements’) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS’) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’).

 The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial 
Statements’ and division II of schedule III of the Companies Act 2013. Further, for the purpose of clarity, various items 
are aggregated in the statement of profit and loss and balance sheet. Nonetheless, these items are dis-aggregated 
separately in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, where applicable or required. All the amounts included 
in the financial statements are reported in Millions of Indian Rupees (‘Rupees’ or ‘Rs.’) and are rounded to the nearest 
Million, within two decimals, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

 Reference in these consolidated financial statements to “the Group” shall mean to include NIIT Limited, its subsidiaries 
and associate, consolidated in these financial statements, unless otherwise stated.

(ii) Basis of measurement

 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

a) financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) are measured at fair value or amortised cost.

b) defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at fair value.

c) share-based payments (ESOP’s) are measured at fair value.

b) Basis of consolidation 

(i) The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the 
Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 March each year. Control is achieved when the Company: 
• has the power over the investee; 
• is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and 
• has the ability to use its power to affects its returns.

 The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes 
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. 

 When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it considers that it has power over the 
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s 
voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including: 
•  the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote 

holders;
•  potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties; 
•  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and 
•  any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability 

to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous 
shareholders’ meetings. 
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 Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the 
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year 
are included in profit or loss from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to 
control the subsidiary. 

 Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used 
into line with the Group’s accounting policies. 

 All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between the 
members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation. 

 Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. Those interests of non-
controlling shareholders that are present ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets 
upon liquidation may initially be measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the 
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition 
basis. Other non-controlling interests are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount 
of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share 
of subsequent changes in equity. 

 Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to 
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company 
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. 

 Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity 
transactions. The carrying amount of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the 
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non- controlling 
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and 
attributed to the owners of the Company. 

 When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit or loss is calculated 
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any 
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), less liabilities of the subsidiary 
and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that 
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as required/permitted by applicable Ind ASs). The 
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value 
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under Ind AS 109 when applicable, or the cost of initial recognition of 
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

(ii) Associate: Associate is the entity over which the group has significant influence but not control or joint control. This 
is generally the case where the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associate is 
accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see (iii) below), after initially being recognised at cost.

(iii) Equity method : Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted 
thereafter to recognise the group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit and loss, and 
the group’s share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or 
receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

 When the group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including 
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations 
or made payments on behalf of the other entity. 

 Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest 
in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of 
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure 
consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

 The carrying amount of equity accounted investments are tested for impairment.

(iv) Changes in ownership interests : The group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a 
loss of control as transactions with equity owners of the group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment 
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the 
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid 
or received is recognised within equity.
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 When the group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control 
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying 
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently 
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously 
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had directly 
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive 
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

 If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to 
profit or loss where appropriate.

c) Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency 
 Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s entities are measured using the currency of the 

primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are 
presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.), which is the Group’s presentation currency.

(ii)  Transactions and balances 
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of 

the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally 
recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

 Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the consolidated statement 
of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated 
statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other gains/ (losses). 

 Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the 
date when the fair value was determined. 

(iii)  Foreign operations
 The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) 

that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as 
follows:

 -  assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet.
 -  income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the 

cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at 
the dates of the transactions), and 

 - All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.
 On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and 

of borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other 
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit 
or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

 Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities 
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate. 

d) Current - non-current classification
 Assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current as follows:
 Assets
 An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
 • it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group’s normal operating cycle;
 • it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
 • it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or
 • it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after 

the reporting period.
 Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets (including deferred tax assets) 

are classified as non-current.
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Liabilities
 A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
 • it is expected to be settled in the Group’s normal operating cycle;
 • it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
 • it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or
 • the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the 

reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of 
equity instruments do not affect its classification.

 Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities (including deferred tax 
liabilities) are classified as non-current.

 Operating cycle 
 The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash 

equivalents. Based on the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle being a period of 12 months for 
the purpose of classification of assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

e) Revenue recognition
 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net 

of returns, trade allowances, rebates, discounts and taxes. 
 When two or more revenue generating activities or deliverables are provided under a single arrangement, each 

deliverable that is considered to be a separate deliverable is accounted separately. Where the contracts include multiple 
performance obligations, the transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on the standalone 
selling prices. Where the standalone selling prices are not directly observable, these are estimated based on expected 
cost plus margin or residual method to allocate the total transaction price. In cases of residual method, the standalone 
selling price is estimated by reference to the total transaction price less the sum of the observable standalone selling 
prices of other goods or services promised in the contract. 

 Services are provided under time and material contracts and fixed price contracts. Revenue from providing services is 
recognised over a period of time in the accounting period in which services are rendered. The revenue from time and 
material contracts is recognised at the amount to which the Group has right to invoice. 

 In respect of fixed price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the technical evaluation of utilization of services as 
per the proportionate completion method when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration 
that will be determined from rendering the service. The customer pays the fixed amount based on a payment schedule. 
If the services rendered by the Company exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. If the payment exceed the 
services rendered, a contract liability is recognised. Revenue from training is recognised over the period of delivery. The 
foreseeable losses on completion of contract, if any, are provided for.

 Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting 
increase or decrease in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances 
that give rise to the revision become known to management. 

 On certain contracts, where the Company acts as agent, only commission and fees receivable for services rendered 
are recognised as revenue. Any third party costs incurred on behalf of the principal that are rechargeable under the 
contractual arrangement are not included in revenue. 

 Revenue in respect of sale of courseware and other physical deliverables is recognised at a point in time when these are 
delivered, the legal title is passed and the customer has accepted the courseware and other physical deliverables. 

 In other cases, where courseware is not considered a separate component under a contract, revenue from the composite 
course is recognised over the period of the training or the contract period, depending upon the terms and conditions.

 Revenue for providing Technical Information and Reference Material (TIRM) to the business partners is recognised over 
the period of the contract. 

f) Other Income
(i)  Interest income
 Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is 

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross 
carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash 
flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and 
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.
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(ii)  Dividend income
 It is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.
g) Segment reporting
 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating 

Decision Maker (CODM).
 The CEO & CFO of NIIT Limited are considered as chief operating decision makers who assess the financial performance 

and position of the Group, and make strategic decisions.
h) Government grants
 Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will 

be received and the group will comply with all attached conditions.
 Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period on systematic 

basis to cover the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.
 Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as 

deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets 
and presented within other income.

i) Income taxes
 Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the 

year. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that 
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

 Current income taxes
 The current income tax expense includes income taxes payable by the Company, its branches and its subsidiaries in 

India and overseas. The current tax payable by the Company and its subsidiaries in India is Indian income tax payable 
on worldwide income after taking credit for tax relief available.

 The current income tax expense for overseas subsidiaries has been computed based on the tax laws applicable to each 
subsidiary in the respective jurisdiction in which it operates.

 Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax 
paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying unit intends to settle 
the asset and liability on a net basis.

 Deferred income taxes
 Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases 

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
 Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end 

of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred 
income tax liability is settled.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable 
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

 Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of 
investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements where the group is able to 
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in 
the foreseeable future.

 Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of 
investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is not probable that the 
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against which the temporary 
difference can be utilised. 

 Deferred tax is recognised on any unrealised profits/losses arising from intra-group transactions.
 Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit entitlement under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as a 

deferred tax asset when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it in the form of adjustment of future 
income tax liability, will flow to the Company and the asset can be measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement is set off to 
the extent allowed in the year in which the Company becomes liable to pay income taxes at the enacted tax rates. MAT 
credit entitlement is reviewed at each reporting date and is recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which they can be used. MAT credit entitlement has been presented as deferred tax asset 
in Balance Sheet. Significant management judgement is required to determine the probability of recognition of MAT 
credit entitlement and deferred tax.
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j) Leases

 A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period 
of time in exchange for consideration. 

(i) Group as a lessee 

 The Group accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components 
of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative 
standalone price of the lease component and the aggregate standalone price of the non-lease components. 

 The Group recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease 
commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the 
initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date 
less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the 
lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. 
The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment 
losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the 
straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The 
estimated useful lives of right-of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. 
Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be 
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

 The Group has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 116 for the first time in the previous year. The amendments provide 
practical relief to lessees in accounting for rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19, by 
introducing a practical expedient to Ind AS 116. The practical expedient permits a lessee to elect not to assess whether 
a COVID-19 related rent concession is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election shall account for any 
change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the 
change applying Ind AS 116 if the change were not a lease modification.

 The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19 and only if all 
of the following conditions are met:

(a)  The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less 
than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

(b)  Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before June 30, 2022 (a rent concession 
meets this condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or before June 30, 2022 and increased lease 
payments that extend beyond June 30, 2022); and

(c)  There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

 (ii) Group as a lessor 

 At the inception of the lease the Group classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. The 
Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a 
constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease. When the Group is an intermediate lessor it 
accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease 
with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head 
lease is a short term lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as 
an operating lease.

 If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Group applies Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts 
with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

k) Business Combinations

 Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as 
the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. 
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

 At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition 
date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation 
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and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits is not probable.

 After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the 
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or 
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

 Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their 
present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate 
at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

 If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held 
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such 
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

 When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes a contingent consideration 
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the 
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as 
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against Goodwill/capital 
reserve. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the 
‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that 
existed at the acquisition date.

 The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as 
measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration 
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted 
for within equity. Other contingent consideration is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates with changes 
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

l) Investments and other financial assets
(i)  Classification
 The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

•  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or 
loss), and

•  those measured at amortised cost.
 The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms 

of the cash flows.
 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive 

income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For 
investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time 
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

 The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.
(ii)  Measurement
 At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at 

fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

 Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows 
are solely payment of principal and interest.
Debt instruments

 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the 
cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the group classifies its debt 
instruments:
Amortised Cost : Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent 
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is 
subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when 
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using 
the effective interest rate method.
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 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of the contractual cash flows 
and for selling the financial assets, where the asset’s cash flow represents solely payments of principal and interest, are 
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken 
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and 
losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest 
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. 

 Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair 
value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through 
profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement 
of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in other income.

(iii)  Impairment of financial assets

 The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments that are measured 
at amortised cost or at FVOCI, trade receivables and contract assets, financial guarantee contracts, and certain other 
financial assets measured at amortised cost such as deferred consideration receivable on disposal of subsidiaries. 
The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial 
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

 The Group recognises lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) for trade receivables and contract assets. The expected 
credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss 
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both 
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where 
appropriate.

 For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit 
risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since 
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month 
ECL.  

 Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life 
of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from 
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

(iv)  Derecognition of financial assets

 A financial asset is derecognised only when

•  The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

•  retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation 
to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

 Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

 Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Group has not retained control of the financial asset. 
Where the Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing 
involvement in the financial asset.

m) Cash and cash equivalents 

 For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, 
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. Bank overdrafts are shown as borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

n) Trade receivables

 Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently adjusted for expected credit loss using the 
effective interest method. 
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o) Inventories
 Traded goods are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost of traded goods comprises cost of purchases 

and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned 
to individual items of inventory on the basis weighted-average. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after 
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business 
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

p) Derivatives and hedging activities
 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 

re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value 
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged 
and the type of hedge relationship designated.

 For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
•  Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an 

unrecognised firm commitment;
•  Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular 

risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction. 
 At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which 

the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the 
hedge. The documentation includes the Group’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the 
hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and 
how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure 
to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to 
be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to 
determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were 
designated.

 The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of 
the hedged item is more than 12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the 
hedged item is less than 12 months.

(i)  Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting
 The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges 

is recognised in the other comprehensive income in cash flow hedging reserve within equity, limited to the cumulative 
change in fair value of the hedged item on a present value basis from the inception of the hedge. The gain or loss 
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss, within other gains/(losses).

 Forward contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions, the group generally designates only the change in fair value 
of the forward contract related to the spot component as the hedging instrument. Gains or losses relating to the effective 
portion of the change in the spot component of the forward contracts are recognised in other comprehensive income 
in cash flow hedging reserve within equity. The change in the forward element of the contract that relates to the hedged 
item (‘aligned forward element’) is recognised within other comprehensive income in the costs of hedging reserve within 
equity. In some cases, the Group may designate the full change in fair value of the forward contract (including forward 
points) as the hedging instrument. In such cases, the gains and losses relating to the effective portion of the change in 
fair value of the entire forward contract are recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve within equity. 

 Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss 
(for example, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place).

 When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge 
accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging in equity at that time remains in equity 
until the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain 
or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported in equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss within 
other gains/(losses).

 If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk management objective remains 
unchanged and the hedge continues to qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship will be rebalanced by 
adjusting either the volume of the hedging instrument or the volume of the hedged item so that the hedge ratio aligns 
with the ratio used for risk management purposes. Any hedge ineffectiveness is calculated and accounted for in profit or 
loss at the time of the hedge relationship rebalancing.
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(ii)  Fair value hedges

 The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs. 
The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value 
of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.  

 For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is amortised through 
profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may begin as soon as an 
adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable 
to the risk being hedged.

 If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or 
loss.

(iii)  Derivatives that are not designated as hedges

 The group enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. Such contracts are 
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other gains/(losses).

q) Property, plant and equipment

 The Group had applied for the one-time transition exemption of considering the carrying cost on the transition date i.e. 
April 01, 2016 as the deemed cost under IND AS, regarded thereafter as historical cost. 

 Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost 
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognised 
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they 
are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

 Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their 
estimated useful lives as follows : 

Description of Assets Useful Life

Buildings 58 Years

Leasehold Land 99 years or lease period, whichever is lower
Plant and Equipments including:
- Computers, Printers and related accessories
- Computer Servers and Networks
- Electronic Equipments
- Air Conditioners

3 Years
5 Years
8 Years
10 Years

Office Equipments 5 Years
Furniture, Fixtures & Electric Fittings 7 Years

Leasehold Improvements 3-5 years or lease period, whichever is lower

All other assets (including Vehicles)
Lives prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 

2013
 Freehold land is not depreciated.
 Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets. The 

depreciation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss. The residual values 
is considered as nil.

 The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting 
period.

 An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is 
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.  

 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in 
profit or loss within income/ (expense).
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r) Investment property
 Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, 

is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs
and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it 
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the group and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

 An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from 
use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of 
the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

s) Intangible Assets
Computer software, Educational content/products - Acquired

 These Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Education content/products-Internally generated 

 Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. Development costs 
that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the 
group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:
•  it is technically feasible to complete the development so that it will be available for use;
•  management intends to complete the content/products and use or sell it;
•  there is an ability to use or sell the content/products;
•  it can be demonstrated how the content/products will generate probable future economic benefits;
•  adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the content/

products are available, and
•  the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

 Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the intangible include employee costs and an appropriate 
portion of relevant overheads.

 Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is 
available for use.
Goodwill

 Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for 
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is 
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying 
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
Brand, Trainers Database and Customer Relationships

 Brand, Trainers Database and Customer Relationships acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value 
at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization 
and impairment losses.
Amortisation methods and periods

 Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives which are as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
a) Internally Generated (Content and products) 
 - School based non - IT content
 - Others

10 Years
3-5 Years

b) Acquired (Software, contents and products) 3-5 Years
c) Patents 3-5 Years
d) Brand 2 Years
e) Trainers Database 5 Years
f) Customer Relationships 3 Years
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t) Impairment testing of goodwill and intangible assets

 Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those 
cash-generating units or Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in 
which the goodwill arose. The units or Group’s units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for 
internal management purposes, which in our case are the operating segments.

 Other assets including brand are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of 
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which 
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
groups of assets (cash-generating units). 

u) Trade and other payables

 These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the group prior to the end of financial year which 
are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months 
after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method.

v) Borrowings

 Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount 
is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the 
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some 
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment 
for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

 Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or 
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, 
is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term 
loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on 
demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting 
period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the 
breach.

w) Borrowings cost

 General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its 
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale.

 Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

x) Provisions

 Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. 
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

 Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined 
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with 
respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

 Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
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 Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract 
are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at 
the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing 
with the contract. Before a provision is established the Group recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated 
with that contract.

y)  Employee benefits

I.  Short-term obligations

 Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of 
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when 
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet. 

II.  Other long-term employee benefit obligations

 The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the 
period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected 
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the 
projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that 
have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments 
and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. 

 The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is 
expected to occur.

III.  Post-employment obligations

 The group operates the following post-employment schemes:  

 - Defined benefit plans such as Gratuity and Compensated absences.

 - Defined contribution plan such as Provident fund, Superannuation fund, Pension fund, National Pension System, and 
Overseas plans.

 Gratuity

 The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of 
the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit 
obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

 The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in Rs. is determined by discounting the estimated future 
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms 
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

 The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and 
the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

 Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained 
earnings in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in the consolidated balance sheet.

 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

 Compensated absences

 Liability in respect of compensated absences is provided for both encashable leave and those expected to be availed. 
The Group has defined benefit plans for compensated absences for employees, the liability for which is determined on 
the basis of an actuarial valuation at the end of the year using projected unit credit method. Any gain or loss arising out 
of such valuation is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss as income or expense as the case may 
be.

 Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed within twelve months from the end of the year 
are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is measured at the expected undiscounted 
cost of accumulated compensated absences expected to be availed based on the unutilised entitlement at the year end.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..



171

NIIT Limited

 Provident fund

 The Group makes contribution to the “NIIT LIMITED EMPLOYEES’ PROVIDENT FUND TRUST” for certain entities in 
India, which is a defined benefit plan to the extent that the Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, 
between the return from the investments of the trust and the notified interest rate. The Group’s obligation in this regard 
is actuarially determined using projected unit credit method and provided for if the circumstances indicate that the Trust 
may not be able to generate adequate returns to cover the interest rates notified by the Government.

 The Group’s contribution towards Provident Fund is charged to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

 For employees of the entities not covered above, provident fund contributions are made to the Regional Provident Fund 
Commissioner in accordance with the Employee Provident Fund Rules and are accounted as defined contribution plans 
and charged to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Superannuation fund

 The Group makes defined contribution to the Trust established for the purpose by the Holding company towards 
superannuation fund maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Group has no further obligations 
beyond its monthly contributions. Contribution made during the year is charged to Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

 Pension fund

 The Group makes defined contribution to a government administered pension fund towards it’s pension plan on behalf 
of its employees. The Group has no further obligations beyond its monthly contributions. The contribution towards 
Employee Pension Scheme is charged to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Overseas Plans

 In respect of the subsidiaries incorporated outside India, the subsidiaries make defined contributions on a monthly 
basis towards the respective retirement plans which are charged to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. These 
subsidiaries have no further obligation towards the respective retirement benefits.

National Pension System

 The Group makes defined contribution towards National Pension System for certain employees for which Group has no 
further obligation. Contributions made during the year are charged to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

z) Share based payments - Employee stock option plan (ESOP)

 The fair value of options granted under the ‘NIIT Employee Stock Option Plan 2005’ is recognised as an employee 
benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference 
to the fair value of the options granted: 

 - including any market performance conditions (e.g., the entity’s share price).

 - excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales growth 
targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period), and 

 - including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees to save or holdings shares for 
a specific period of time). 

 The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting 
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that 
are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to 
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. 

aa) Share capital

 Equity share capital

 Issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as equity share capital in equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the 
issuance of new equity shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

ab) Dividends

 The final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends 
are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

 The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. Companies are required to pay/distribute dividend after 
deducting applicable taxes. The remittance of dividends outside India is governed by Indian law on foreign exchange 
and is also subject to withholding tax at applicable rates.
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ac) Earnings per share
i.  Basic earnings per share
 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Group by the weighted average 

number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. 
ii.  Diluted earnings per share
 Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

•  the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
•  the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the 

conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
ad) Fair value measurement
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
-  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
-  In the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Group.
 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the

fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
as a whole:
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity 
instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including 
bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual 
funds are valued using the closing net asset value.

 Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example foreign exchange 
forward contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and 
rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are 
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 
3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3. 

 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, investments (other than investment in subsidiaries), at fair value at 
each reporting date. 

ae) Critical accounting estimates and judgements
 In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 

application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates.

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised prospectively. Information about significant areas of estimation/uncertainty and judgements in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the financial statements are as follows:

 Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions-  refer notes 2y.
 Measurement of useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment -refer note 2q.
 Judgement required to determine grant date fair value technique -refer notes 2z and 25.
 Fair value measurement of financial instruments - refer notes 2ad and 26.

Judgement required to determine probability of recognition of deferred tax assets and MAT credit entitlement - refer note 2 i.
 There are no assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment 

within the next financial year.
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af) Exceptional items

 Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the income statement that are of such size, nature or 
incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance for the period.

 Materiality threshold can be used to select items to be disclosed as exceptional on case to case basis. This threshold 
would be applied separately for standalone as well as consolidated financial statements. However, in case an item 
qualifies for disclosure in standalone financial statements but not in consolidated financial statements or vice versa, this 
would need to be evaluated on case to case basis.

 Basis the above analysis, mainly following items would be evaluated for disclosure as exceptional items:

a) Business Combination: Impact of one-time accounting policy alignment / unusual write off / impairment of assets 
arising as a result of business combination, including transaction cost.

b) Fair valuation gains on business combination.

c) Reassessment / Change in life of asset (in case of re-evaluation of business/product,  impact of all assets specific 
to that business/product to be considered for applying the threshold).

d) Disputed regulatory / tax levies including tax rate change having retrospective impact (other than impact on 
account of restatement of deferred tax asset / liability for tax rate change) – only impact for the past periods to be 
disclosed as exceptional.

e) Provision for other than temporary diminution in the value of non-current investment.

f) Shareholders’ dispute settlement arising out of merger / acquisition transactions.

g) Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value or of property, plant and equipment to recoverable amount, as 
well as reversals of such write-downs.

h) Restructurings of the activities of an entity and reversals of any provisions for the costs of restructuring.

 In case of other significant item of income or expense, not covered above, the same would be evaluated on a case to 
case basis for disclosure under exceptional items.

ag) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

 Non-current assets (or disposal group) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are 
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax 
assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which 
are specifically exempt from this requirement.

 An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write –down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair 
value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increase in fair value less costs sell of an asset (or 
disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously 
recognised by the date of the sale of the non –current asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of de-
recognition.

 Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they are 
classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held
for sale continue to recognised.

 Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented 
separately from the other assets in balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are 
presented separately from other liabilities in balance sheet.

 A discontinued operations is a component of the entity that has been disposed off or is classified as held for sale and 
that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated 
plan to dispose off such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to 
resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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4 Investment property
Particulars  Amount 
Year ended March 31, 2021
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 0.56
Closing gross carrying amount 0.56
Year ended March 31, 2022
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 0.56
Closing gross carrying amount 0.56

The Group has not generated any rental income from the investment property, since inception.
The Group’s investment property consist of one piece of Land in district Mehsana, Gujarat, India. The management has determined that 

5 Intangible assets, Goodwill and Intangible assets under development

Particulars
Internally

Generated
(footnote i) 

Software
Acquired

 Brand 
[Refer note 

5(a)]

Trainers 
Database

 Customer 
Relationships 

 Total 
Intangibles

assets
other than 

Goodwill and 
Intangible

assets under 
development

 Goodwill  
[Refer 

note 5(a)] 

 Intangible 
assets under 
development
(footnote i) 

 Total 
Intangible

assets

Year ended March 31, 2021 
Gross carrying amount 
Opening gross carrying amount  1,621.07  235.98  91.19  -   -   1,948.24  364.46  211.51  2,524.21 
Additions  389.69  1.74  -   -   -  391.43  -   228.29  619.72 
Disposals  -   106.60  -   -   -  106.60  -   -  106.60 
Transfer  -   -   -   -   -  -  -   (389.69)  (389.69)
Exchange differences  64.86  (0.65)  (2.66)  -   -  61.55  (9.96)  -  51.59 
Closing gross carrying amount (A)  2,075.62  130.47  88.53  -   -   2,294.62  354.50  50.11  2,699.23 
Accumulated amortisation and 
impairment
Opening accumulated amortisation and 
impairment

 801.57  202.78  -   -   -   1,004.35  -   -  1,004.35 

Amortisation charge during the year  318.17  34.52  -   -   -  352.69  -   -  352.69 
Amortisation charge to exceptional items 
(Refer note 22) 

 23.36  -   -   -   -  23.36  -   -  23.36 

Disposals  -   106.35  -   -   -  106.35  -   -  106.35 
Exchange differences  15.10  (4.93)  -   -   -  10.17  -   -  10.17 
Closing accumulated amortisation and 
impairment (B) 

 1,158.20  126.02  -   -   -   1,284.22  -   -  1,284.22 

Net carrying amount (A-B)  917.42  4.45  88.53  -   -   1,010.40  354.50  50.11  1,415.01 
Year ended March 31, 2022 
Gross carrying amount 
Opening gross carrying amount  2,075.62  130.47  88.53  -   -   2,294.62  354.50  50.11  2,699.23 
Acquired through business combination 
(refer note 39) 

 0.07  -   3.75  76.73  49.27  129.82  830.88  -  960.70 

Additions  89.33  14.73  -   -   -  104.06  -   100.33  204.39 
Disposals  2.58  2.71  -   -   -  5.29  -   -  5.29 
Transfer  -   -   -   -   -  -  -   (89.33)  (89.33)
Exchange differences  55.19  0.23  3.31  -   -  58.73  12.38  -  71.11 
Closing gross carrying amount (C)  2,217.63  142.72  95.59  76.73  49.27  2,581.94  1,197.76  61.11  3,840.81 
Accumulated amortisation and 
impairment
Opening accumulated amortisation and 
impairment

 1,158.20  126.02  -   -   -   1,284.22  -   -  1,284.22 

Acquired through business combination 
(refer note 39) 

 0.07  -   -   -   -  0.07  -   -  0.07 

Amortisation charge during the year  347.79  8.23  0.94  7.67  8.21  372.84  -   -  372.84 
Impairment charge during the year  -   -   -   -   -  -  18.35  -  18.35 
Disposals  2.58  2.71  -   -   -  5.29  -   -  5.29 
Exchange differences  27.51  0.18  -   -   -  27.69  -   -  27.69 
Closing accumulated amortisation and 
impairment (D) 

 1,530.99  131.72  0.94  7.67  8.21  1,679.53  18.35  -  1,679.53 

Net carrying amount (C-D)  686.64  11.00  94.65  69.06  41.06  902.41  1,179.41  61.11  2,161.28 
Footnotes:
(i) Refer note 5 (i) for cost incurred during the year on internally generated intangible assets.
(ii) Refer note 13(i) for assets pledged.
(iii) Subsequent to the fair valuation of assets and liabilities pertaining to acquisition, the Group recognised intangible assets (Brand, Trainers Database and 
Customer Relationships) basis the fair valuation report obtained by the Group. The amortization has been carried out based on useful lives assessed by the 
Group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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Reconciliation of Depreciation and Amortisation charged to Consolidated Statement 

of Profit and Loss (Continuing and discontinued operations) 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(i) Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment  92.29  94.83 

(ii) Amortisation on Intangible assets  391.19  376.05 

(iii) Depreciation on Right-of-use assets  93.17  147.93 

Sub Total (A)  576.65  618.81 

Less:

(i)  Depreciation/ Amortisation charge to exceptional items (refer note 22)  -   23.36 

(ii) Depreciation/ Amortisation for discontinued operation  0.04  0.64 

Sub Total (B)  0.04  24.00 

Depreciation/ Amortisation recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

as continuing operation (A-B)
 576.61  594.81 

5(a) Impairment testing of goodwill and other intangible assets having indefinite useful lives

 For impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to a Cash Generating Unit (CGU) representing the lowest level within the 
Group at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, and which is not higher than the Group’s 
operating segment. Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with the Group’s procedure for 
determining the recoverable value of each CGU.

 The following table sets out the carrying amount of goodwill & brand allocated to CGUs:

Particulars RPS Consulting 
Business*

Life Sciences 
Practice

Perceptron 
Labs

Total

As at March 31, 2022  830.88  440.37  -  1,271.25 

As at March 31, 2021  -   424.68  18.35  443.03 
 * RPS Consulting Business’s Brand has definitive life of two year amounting to Rs. 2.81 Million not included in above table. 

 The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined on the basis of discounted cash flows (DCF). The DCF of the CGU is determined 
based on estimation of the cash flows, the Group is expected to generate in next five years projections approved by the senior 
management.

 RPS Consulting Business

 The recoverable amount of the RPS Consulting Business CGU has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections approved by senior management. Based on which, it was concluded that the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying value.
As a result of this analysis, the Group has not recognised any impairment charge against goodwill in the consolidated statement of profit 
and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022.

 Life Sciences Practice

 The recoverable amount of the Life Science Practice CGU has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections approved by senior management. Based on which, it was concluded that the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying 
value. As a result of this analysis, the Group has not recognised any impairment charge against goodwill and brand in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

 Perceptron Labs 

 The recoverable amount of the Perceptron Labs CGU has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow 
projections approved by senior management. Based on which, it was concluded that the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount
. As a result of this analysis, the Group has recognised an impairment charge of Rs. 18.35 Million against goodwill in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022.

 Key assumptions used in calculations of impairment testing: 

i) Discount rates - Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, taking into consideration the 
time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount 
rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Group and its operating segments and is derived from its weighted average 
cost of capital (WACC). The WACC takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the expected return
on investment by the Group’s investors. The cost of debt is based on the interest-bearing borrowings the Group is obliged to service.
Segment-specific risk is incorporated by applying individual beta factors. The beta factors are evaluated annually based on publicly
available market data. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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Assumptions of discount rates used in impairment testing is as under:

CGU Unit March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

RPS Consulting Business 11.75% NA

Life Sciences Practice 6.56% 5.70%

Perceptron Labs 11.75% 14.50%
 A rise in the pre-tax discount rate by 5% in the respective CGUs would not result in any impairment of assets as there is 

sufficient headroom.
ii) Growth rate estimates – Rates are based on published industry research. Management recognises that the possibility 

of new entrants can have a significant impact on growth rate assumptions. The effect of new entrants is not expected to 
have an adverse impact on the forecasts. 

 Assumptions of growth rates used in impairment testing is as under:   

CGU Unit March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

RPS Consulting Business 4% -

Life Sciences Practice 2% 2%

Perceptron Labs 0% 0%

 A reduction by 5% in the long-term growth rate in the respective CGUs would not result in any impairment.

5 (b)The Group is internally developing new software tools, platforms and content/ courseware. The investments would 
further expand the business of the Group in existing and new markets, enhance capabilities of its products and software 
and offer more technology based learning products/ solutions to the customers in future. The Group is confident of 
its ability to generate future economic benefits out of the above mentioned assets. The costs incurred towards the 
development is as follows: 

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Opening Balance  50.11  211.51 

Add:-Expenses capitalised during the year

Salary and Other Employee Benefits  64.02  87.72 

Professional & Outsourcing Expenses  28.57  137.12 

Other Expenses  7.74  3.45 

Less:-Intangible assets capitalised during the year  (89.33)  (389.69)

Closing Balance  61.11  50.11 

Ageing of projects

Projects in progress Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

March 31, 2022  50.95  10.16  -    -    61.11 

March 31, 2021  50.11  -    -    -    50.11 

6 Leases
6(i) The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss for short term leases:

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

In respect of Premises*  46.76  50.70 

In respect of Equipments**  70.73  40.38 

In respect of Vehicles  1.97  2.99 

 119.46  94.07 
* Includes payment in respect of premises for office and employee accommodation.
** Includes payment in respect of computers, printers and other equipments.
Aggregate amount during the year under discontinued operations for short term leases in respect of equipments, vehicles and 
premises for office and employees accommodation amounting to Rs. 0.12 Million (Previous year Rs. 0.42 Million).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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6(ii) Right-of-use assets/ (Lease Liabilities)
The following are the carrying amount of right-of-use assets recognised and movement during the year  :
Particulars Building Vehicle Total
As at April 1, 2020
Additions / Modifications
Deletion
Depreciation
Translation difference

 763.56 
 (9.63)

 (366.14)
 (132.23)

1.34

36.76
8.36

(3.46)
(15.70)

-

 800.32 
(1.27)

 (369.60)
 (147.93)

 1.34 
As at March 31, 2021  256.90  25.96  282.86 
Acquired through business combination (refer note 39)
Additions / Modifications
Deletion
Depreciation
Translation difference

 19.01 
40.90

(86.88)
(80.51)
(12.14)

-
4.28

(2.99)
(12.66)

-

 19.01 
 45.18 

 (89.87)
 (93.17)
 (12.14)

As at March 31, 2022  137.28  14.59  151.87 

The following are the carrying amount of Lease liabilities and movement during the year :
Particulars Total
As at April 01, 2020
Additions / Modifications
Deletion
Accretion of interest
Payments
Rent concession* 
Translation difference

 800.32 
 (3.09)

 (362.46)
 28.95 

 (153.82)
 (9.07)
 (0.64)

As at March 31, 2021  300.19 
Acquired through business combination (refer note 39)
Additions / Modifications
Deletion
Accretion of interest
Payments
Rent concession* 
Translation difference

 20.00 
 45.57 

 (97.89)
 14.15 

 (106.50)
 (1.43)

 (12.37)
 As at March 31, 2022  161.72 
*During the year, the Holding Company has availed rent concessions of Rs. 1.43 Million (Previous year Rs. 9.07 Million) from lessors on 
account of COVID-19 and recorded the same as other income and exceptional income respectively in the statement of profit and loss
consequent to amendment in Ind AS 116 “Leases” (Refer notes 17 and 22).
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Lease Liabilities (Non-current)  107.06  202.58 
Lease Liabilities (Current)  54.66  97.61 
Total 161.72 300.19

The following are the amounts recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss:
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation expense*  93.17  147.65 
Interest expense on Lease Liabilities**(refer note 19)  14.15  28.88 
Gain on termination of Lease Assets (Net) (refer notes 17 and 22)  (12.00)  (28.84)
Total  95.32  147.69 

*Excluding depreciation expense charged in discontinued operations in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss is Nil (Previous year 
Rs 0.28 Million).
**Excluding Interest on lease liabilities charged in discontinued operations in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss is Nil (Previous 
year Rs 0.07 Million).
There are only fixed rental payable as per the terms of the contracts.
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities:

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Less than one year 54.66  97.61 
One to two years 35.83 57.06
More than two years 92.91 145.52
Total Amount  183.40  300.19 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)



179

NIIT Limited

7 Financial assets As at
7(i) Investment March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current
Carried at Fair Value through statement of profit and loss [Quoted] 
Investment in Mutual Funds*  5,776.78  6,364.71 
Carried at amortised cost [Unquoted] 
Investment in term deposits with Financial Institution  1,447.00  2,220.78 

 7,223.78  8,585.49 
*Market Value of Quoted Investments  5,776.78  6,364.71 

As at
7(ii) Trade receivables March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current

Unsecured, considered good  1,886.18  1,456.15 

Unsecured - credit impaired  610.45  680.52 

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts [Refer note 27(A)]  (610.45)  (680.52)

 1,886.18  1,456.15 
(i) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

(ii) Refer note 13(i) for assets pledged.

Ageing of trade receivables as at March 31, 2022

Particulars

Current
but not 

due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

TotalLess than 
6 months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Undisputed trade receivables - considered 
Good

1,437.45 436.06 6.32  5.33  1.02  -   1,886.18 

Undisputed trade receivables – credit 
impaired

0.23 0.44  1.27  5.33 34.52  568.66  610.45 

Total 1,437.68  436.50  7.59  10.66  35.54  568.66  2,496.63 
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts  (610.45)
Total  1,886.18 

Ageing of trade receivables as at March 31, 2021

Particulars

Current
but not 

due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

TotalLess than 
6 months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Undisputed trade receivables - considered 
Good

1,075.94  224.99  53.75  83.41  11.09  6.97  1,456.15 

Undisputed trade receivables – credit 
impaired

 0.61  1.00  21.52  33.76  11.09  612.54  680.52 

Total  1,076.55  225.99  75.27  117.17  22.18  619.51  2,136.67 
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts  (680.52)
Total  1,456.15 

 As at 

7(iii) Other financial assets March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non-Current Current
a) Security Deposits

Unsecured, considered good 17.49 17.13  5.53  11.76 
Unsecured, considered doubtful 15.28 15.25  -   - 
Less: Allowance for doubtful deposits  (15.28)  (15.25)  -   - 

 17.49  17.13  5.53  11.76 
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 As at 

7(iii) Other financial assets March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non-Current Current
b) Contract assets - Unbilled Revenue

Unsecured, considered good (Refer note 16.1)  -   -   990.51  776.83 
Unsecured, considered doubtful  -   -   91.31  48.03 
Less: Provision for doubtful unbilled revenue  -   -   (91.31)  (48.03)

 -   -   990.51  776.83 
c) Interest receivable

Interest Accrued on bank and other deposits  0.69  0.05  109.39  237.12 
d) Derivative asset (refer note 27 D)  -   -   16.20  26.34 
e) Other receivables  -   -   641.01  1,061.87 
f) Bank deposits

With remaining maturity of more than 12 months*  72.71  1.83  -   - 
With remaining maturity of less than 12 months  -   -   880.63  386.61 
Total  90.89  19.01  2,643.27  2,500.53 

Refer note 13(i)(A) for assets pledged.

*Deposit of  Rs. 20.01 Million (Previous year Rs. Nil) pledged as margin money with bank for issuance of bank guarantees.

Ageing of unbilled revenue from transaction date as at March 31, 2022

Particulars Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

Undisputed unbilled revenue - considered good  982.80  7.71  -    -    -    990.51 
Undisputed unbilled revenue - credit impaired  -    -    0.30  1.83  89.18  91.31 
Total  982.80  7.71  0.30  1.83  89.18  1,081.82 
Less: Allowance for doubtful unbilled revenue  (91.31)
Total  990.51 

Ageing of unbilled revenue from transaction date as at March 31, 2021

Particulars Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

Undisputed unbilled revenue - considered good  737.25  2.73  1.83  -    35.02  776.83 
Undisputed unbilled revenue - credit impaired  -    -    -    -    48.03  48.03 
Total  737.25  2.73  1.83  -    83.05  824.86 
Less: Allowance for doubtful unbilled revenue  (48.03)
Total  776.83 

As at
7(iv) Cash and cash equivalents March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current
Balance with banks
 -Current Accounts  3,006.51  1,718.70 
 -Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months*  59.77  38.00 
Cheques and drafts on hand  -   0.86 
Cash on hand  0.46  0.18 

 3,066.74  1,757.74 
*Short term Deposits are made with banks for varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group and to earn interest at the respective short term deposit rates.

As at
7(v) Bank balances other than above March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current
Bank deposits
 -With original maturity of more than 3 months and upto 12 months*  1,270.65  3,222.13 
Dividend Accounts  10.43  10.86 

 1,281.08  3,232.99 
*Deposit of  Rs. 3.38 Million (Previous year Rs. 2.24 Million) pledged as margin money with bank for issuance of bank guarantees.
Deposits are made with banks for varying periods, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and to earn interest
at the respective term deposit rates.
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8 Tax Assets (Net)

8(i) Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred Tax Assets
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Provisions  44.15  54.00 
Tax impact of difference between carrying amount of Property, plant and equipments and 
Intangible assets in the financial statements and as per Income Tax

 67.36  83.58 

Difference between carrying value of Right of use of assets and lease liabilities as per Ind AS 
116 in the financial statements and as per the Income Tax

 2.11  4.80 

Provision for gratuity and compensated absences  87.15  61.50 
Carry forward losses [refer footnote (c) ]  209.16  29.39 
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances  83.84  89.27 
Others  2.58  3.92 
Total deferred tax assets  496.35  326.46 
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Unrealised gain on Investment marked to market  (203.54)  (174.92)
Others  (0.01)  0.75 
Total deferred tax liabilities  (203.55)  (174.17)
Net deferred tax assets  292.80  152.29 
Deferred tax assets recognised in Consolidated Balance Sheet  308.18  165.21 
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in Consolidated Balance Sheet  (15.38)  (12.92)

 (a)  Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are being offset as they relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.
 (b)  Deferred tax asset on brought forward losses has been recognised to the extent of availability of probable future taxable income

to set off the losses.
 (c)  Based on the expected return on investments as per future business plan, the Holding Company has recognised Deferred Tax Asset 

of Rs. 179.51 Million on long term capital losses on cancellation of shares of NYJL (refer notes 23(b) and 40). 

Movement in Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)

Movement in deferred tax assets / 
(liabilities) (net)

Property, Plant 
and Equipments 
and Intangible 

Assets

Provision for 
Gratuity and 

Compensated
Absence

Provisions Others
Minimum

Alternate Tax 
(MAT)

Right-of-use 
assets/ Lease 

Liabilities
Total

As at April 1, 2020  89.50  39.38  189.23  (62.66)  31.29  5.54  292.28 
(charged)/credited:
 - to profit or loss  (5.92)  8.88  (42.06)  (81.92)  -   (0.74)  (121.76)
 - to other comprehensive income  -   13.24  -   -   -   -   13.24 
 - Utilisation of MAT/ Exchange differences  -   -   -   (0.18)  (31.29)  -   (31.47)
As at March 31, 2021  83.58  61.50  147.17 (144.76)  -   4.80  152.29 
Acquired through business combination 
(refer note 39)

 3.46  3.57  -   -   -   -   7.03 

(charged)/credited:
 - to profit or loss  (18.44)  5.19  (13.81)  133.54  -   (2.72)  103.76 
 - to other comprehensive income  -   16.95  -   -   -   -   16.95 
 - Exchange differences  (1.24)  (0.06)  (0.01)  14.05  -   0.03  12.77 
As at March 31, 2022  67.36  87.15  133.35  2.83  -   2.11  292.80 

Note :

a)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been determined by applying the income tax rates of respective countries. Deferred tax assets 
and liabilities in relation to taxes payable under different tax jurisdictions have not been offset in consolidated financial statements.

8(ii) Income Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)(net) As at

Taxes recoverable
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non-Current Current 

Advance Income Tax  798.38  2,042.29  191.22  52.34 

Less : Provision for Income Tax  (344.63)  (1,555.67)  (400.97)  (206.37)

 453.75  486.62  (209.75)  (154.03)
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9 Other assets As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non-Current  Current 
i) Capital Advances

Unsecured, considered good  59.86  -   -   - 
 59.86  -   -   - 

ii) Advances recoverable in cash or in kind

Unsecured, considered good  1.72  0.25  212.01  125.56 

Unsecured, considered doubtful  62.53  102.26  0.89  1.85 

Less: Allowance for doubtful advances  (62.53)  (102.26)  (0.89)  (1.85)

 1.72  0.25  212.01  125.56 

iii) Balances with Government Authorities (net)  -   -   68.90  27.60 

 -   -   68.90  27.60 

 61.58  0.25  280.91  153.16 

Refer note 13(i)(A) for assets pledged.

As at
10 Inventories (Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

As at the end of the year
Stock-in-trade
Education and Training  Material*  20.60  17.80 

 20.60  17.80 
As at the beginning of the year
Stock-in-trade
Education and Training  Material*  17.80  46.38 

 17.80  46.38 
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories  (2.80)  28.58 

 * Net of provision for non-moving inventories of Rs. 27.92 Million (Previous year - Rs. 26.60 Million).

11 Share capital

a) Authorised Share Capital

Particulars 

Equity Shares of Rs. 2 
each

Redeemable Preference 
Shares of Rs. 100 each 

Cumulative Redeemable 
Preference Shares of  

Rs. 1 each 
Number of 

Shares
Amount

Number of 

Shares
Amount

Number of 

Shares
Amount

As at April 1, 2020  411,000,000  822.00  2,500,000  250.00  350,000,000  350.00 

Addition during the year  -   -   -   -   -   - 

As at March 31, 2021  411,000,000  822.00  2,500,000  250.00  350,000,000  350.00 

Addition during the year  -   -   -   -   -   - 

As at March 31, 2022  411,000,000  822.00  2,500,000  250.00  350,000,000  350.00 

b) Movement in Equity Share Capital

Subscribed and paid up share capital 
Equity Shares

Number of 

Shares
Amount

As at April 1, 2020*  141,508,401  283.03 

Issued during the year (Refer note 25)  836,583  1.67 

As at March 31, 2021  142,344,984  284.70 

Issued during the year (Refer note 25)  1,397,263  2.79 

Shares extinguished on buyback #  (9,875,000)  (19.75)

As at March 31, 2022  133,867,247  267.74 

 * Paid up capital includes Rs. 0.01 Million originally paid up towards 6,000 forfeited shares.
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#During the year, the Holding Company has concluded the buyback of 9,875,000 equity shares at a price of Rs. 240 per equity share
(“Buyback”) as approved earlier by the Board of Directors on December 24, 2020.  Buyback was completed on May 7, 2021 and the 
equity shares bought back were extinguished on May 11, 2021. Total outflow of Rs. 2,370 Million has been utilised from the share
capital, securities premium account and retained earnings, in line with the requirement under the Companies Act 2013. Further tax
on Buyback and Buyback related expenses amounting to Rs. 552.12 Million and Rs. 15.12 Million (Previous year : Rs. 16.57 Million)
respectively have also been utilised from retained earnings. Additionally, Capital Redemption Reserve of Rs. 19.75 Million (equivalent
to nominal value of the equity shares bought back) has been created out of retained earnings, in line with the requirement under the 
Companies Act 2013. Consequent to extinguishment of shares so bought back, the paid-up equity share capital has been reduced by
Rs. 19.75 Million (Refer note 12).

c)  Terms/ rights attached to equity shares 

 The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 2 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote 
per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject 
to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

d)  Shares reserved for issue under options

 Information relating to Employee Stock Option Plan, including details of options issued, granted, exercised and lapsed during the
financial year and options outstanding at the end of the reporting period/ year, is set out in Note 25.

e)  Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding

Rajendra Singh Pawar as Trustee of Pawar Family Trust  22,445,644 16.77%  23,280,989 16.36%

Vijay Kumar Thadani as Trustee of Thadani Family Trust  22,994,229 17.18%  23,830,065 16.74%

Nippon Life India Trustee Ltd - A/c Nippon India Small Cap Fund  10,139,961 7.57%  10,130,712 7.12%

Massachusetts Institute of Technology  7,714,530 5.76%  8,820,000 6.20%

Total  63,294,364 47.28%  66,061,766 46.42%

f) Other details of equity shares for a period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2022 

 Equity shares extinguished on buy-back

 During the financial year 2019-20, the Company bought back 26,800,000 equity shares for an aggregate amount of Rs. 3,350 
Million (excluding taxes, fees and expenses)  at a price of Rs. 125 per equity share. The equity shares bought back were extinguished on 
December 23, 2019.

 Details of shares held by Promoter and Promoter Group

 As at March 31, 2022

Particulars No. of 
shares at the 
beginning of 

the year

Change
during the 

year

No. of shares 
at the end of 

the year

% of Total 
Shares

% change 
during the 

year

Promoters

Rajendra Singh Pawar  155,000  -  155,000 0.12% 0.00%

Vijay Kumar Thadani  155,000  -  155,000 0.12% 0.00%

Promoter Group

Rajendra Singh Pawar as Trustee of Pawar Family Trust  23,280,989  (835,345)  22,445,644 16.77% -3.59%

Vijay Kumar Thadani as Trustee of Thadani Family Trust  23,830,065  (835,836)  22,994,229 17.18% -3.51%

Arvind Thakur  606,508  (39,679)  566,829 0.42% -6.54%

Neeti Pawar and Rajendra Singh Pawar  427,326  -  427,326 0.32% 0.00%

Urvashi Pawar  56,250  -  56,250 0.04% 0.00%

Unnati Pawar  56,242  -  56,242 0.04% 0.00%

Udai Pawar  7,500  -  7,500 0.01% 0.00%
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Particulars No. of 
shares at the 
beginning of 

the year

Change
during the 

year

No. of shares 
at the end of 

the year

% of Total 
Shares

% change 
during the 

year

R S Pawar HUF  2,527  -  2,527 0.00% 0.00%

V K Thadani HUF  2,527  -  2,527 0.00% 0.00%

Renu Kanwar and Vandana Katoch  2,339  -  2,339 0.00% 0.00%

Santosh Dogra  1,687  -  1,687 0.00% 0.00%

Renuka Vijay Thadani and Vijay Kumar Thadani  1,000  -  1,000 0.00% 0.00%

Kailash K Singh and Yogesh Singh  750  -  750 0.00% 0.00%

Janki Jamwal and Neeti Pawar  652  -  652 0.00% 0.00%

Janki Jamwal and Pramod Singh Jamwal  562  -  562 0.00% 0.00%

Janki Jamwal and Keerti Katoch  562  -  562 0.00% 0.00%

Rasina  Uberoi  15,464  -  15,464 0.01% 0.00%

Rubika Vinod Chablani*  1,687  -  1,687 0.00% 0.00%

*Mr.Vinod Chablani passed away on November 12, 2021 and shares were transmitted in the name of Second shareholder i.e. Rubika 
Vinod Chablani on January 7, 2022.

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars No. of 
shares at the 
beginning of 

the year

Change
during the 

year

No. of shares 
at the end of 

the year

% of Total 
Shares

% change 
during the 

year

Promoters

Rajendra Singh Pawar  155,000  -  155,000 0.11% 0.00%

Vijay Kumar Thadani  155,000  -  155,000 0.11% 0.00%

Promoter Group

Rajendra Singh Pawar as Trustee of Pawar Family Trust  23,280,989  -  23,280,989 16.36% 0.00%

Vijay Kumar Thadani as Trustee of Thadani Family 
Trust

 23,830,065  -  23,830,065 16.74% 0.00%

Arvind Thakur  606,508  -  606,508 0.43% 0.00%

Neeti Pawar and Rajendra Singh Pawar  427,326  -  427,326 0.30% 0.00%

Urvashi Pawar  56,250  -  56,250 0.04% 0.00%

Unnati Pawar  56,242  -  56,242 0.04% 0.00%

Udai Pawar  7,500  -  7,500 0.01% 0.00%

R S Pawar HUF  2,527  -  2,527 0.00% 0.00%

V K Thadani HUF  2,527  -  2,527 0.00% 0.00%

Renu Kanwar and Vandana Katoch  2,339  -  2,339 0.00% 0.00%

Santosh Dogra  1,687  -  1,687 0.00% 0.00%

Renuka Vijay Thadani and Vijay Kumar Thadani  1,000  -  1,000 0.00% 0.00%

Kailash K Singh and Yogesh Singh  750  -  750 0.00% 0.00%

Janki Jamwal and Neeti Pawar  652  -  652 0.00% 0.00%

Janki Jamwal and Pramod Singh Jamwal  562  -  562 0.00% 0.00%

Janki Jamwal and Keerti Katoch  562  -  562 0.00% 0.00%

Rasina  Uberoi  15,464  -  15,464 0.01% 0.00%

Vinod Chablani and Rubika Vinod Chablani  1,687  -  1,687 0.00% 0.00%
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12 Other equity As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Reserves and Surplus [refer note 12(i)] 
Capital Reserve   5,174.73  5,174.73 
Securities Premium  252.54  171.59 
Employees Stock Option Outstanding  264.28  150.90 
General Reserve   34.62  46.34 
Retained Earnings  8,660.52  10,163.57 
Capital Redemption Reserve  73.35  53.60 

 14,460.04  15,760.73 
Other Reserves [refer note 12(ii)] 
Hedging Reserve Account   8.29  9.61 
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve   416.67  349.19 

 424.96  358.80 
Total other equity  14,885.00  16,119.53 

As at 
12(i)   Reserves and surplus March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) Capital Reserve (refer footnote i) 

Opening Balance  5,174.73  5,174.73 
 Add: Increase / (decrease) during the year  -   5,174.73  -   5,174.73 

b) Securities Premium (refer footnote ii) 
Opening Balance  171.59  104.41 
Utilization against buyback of shares [Refer note 11(b)]  (67.18)  - 
Additions during the year on account of exercise of ESOP's  105.72  48.77 
Transferred from securities premium on ESOP exercised  42.41  252.54  18.41  171.59 

c) Employees Stock Option Outstanding 
Opening Balance  150.90  134.60 
Add/ (Less) :  
Transferred to Retained earnings [Refer footnote (v)]  (2.36)  (5.98)
Transferred to securities premium on exercise of ESOP   (42.41)  (18.41)
Share Based Payments (Refer note 25)  158.15  264.28  40.69  150.90 

d) General Reserve (Refer footnote iii) 
Opening Balance  46.34  46.34 
Add/ (Less) :  
Transferred to Retained Earnings  (11.72)  34.62  -   46.34 

e) Retained Earnings
Opening Balance  10,163.57  9,060.86 
Current year profit attributable to Shareholders  2,261.96  1,430.24 
Less: Appropriations
Dividend [refer note 31]  (734.39)  (283.33)
Other Comprehensive Loss  (49.97)  (33.61)
Utilization against buyback of shares [Refer note 11(b)]  (2,283.07)  - 
Transferred to Capital Redemption Reserve [Refer note 11(b)]  (19.75)  - 
Transferred from ESOP Reserve  2.36  5.98 
Transferred from General Reserve  11.72  - 
Buyback expenses (net of tax) including tax on buyback  (564.64)  (16.57)
Fair valuation impact on Future Acquisition Liability (Refer note 39)  (127.27)  8,660.52  -   10,163.57 

f) Capital Redemption Reserve (refer footnote iv) 
Opening Balance  53.60  53.60 
Add : Transferred from Retained Earnings [Refer note 11(b)]  19.75  73.35  -   53.60 

Total Reserves and Surplus 14,460.04 15,760.73 
Footnote:

 (i) Capital reserve represents the reserve created on Amalgamation and Business Combinations.
 (ii) The amount represents the additional amount shareholders paid for their issued shares that was in excess of the par value of those 

shares. The same can be utilised for the items specified under section 52 of Companies Act, 2013.
 (iii) General Reserve represents requirement to transfer specific sum to General Reserve as per the local laws of the jurisdiction.
 (iv) As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or 

security premium. A sum equal to the nominal value of shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve
can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of Section 69 of Companies Act, 2013. 

 (v) The Group has transferred employee stock option outstanding of Rs. 2.36 Million (Previous year Rs.5.98 Million) to retained earnings 
on account of lapse of vested options.
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As at
12(ii)  Other reserves March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) Hedging Reserve Account (Cash flow Hedge) [refer footnote i] 

Opening Balance  9.61  (25.96)
Impact of restatement of derivative on Term Loan  4.05  14.47 
Impact of restatement of interest  (0.14)  (0.26)
Movement in Derivative Instrument Fair Value Asset/ (Liability)  (3.77)  (10.34)
Impact of restatement of derivative on Receivables  (1.46)  8.29  31.70  9.61 

b) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (refer footnote ii) 
Opening Balance  349.19  375.93 
Add : Increase/(Decrease) during the year on translation of balances  67.48  416.67  (26.74)  349.19 
Total Other Reserves  424.96  358.80 

Footnote :
 (i) The group uses hedging instruments as part of its management of foreign currency risk associated with its highly probable forecasted

transactions, i.e., revenue, as described in Note 27. The group uses Foreign Currency Forward Contracts which are designated as
Cash Flow Hedges for hedging foreign currency risk. To the extent these hedges are effective, the change in fair value of the hedging
instrument is recognised in the Cash Flow Hedging Reserve. Amount recognised in the Cash Flow Hedging Reserve is reclassified to
Consolidated Profit or Loss when the hedged item effects profit and loss, i.e., Revenue. 

 (ii)  Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operations are recognised in other comprehensive income as described in 
accounting policy and accumulated in a separate reserve within equity.

13 Financial liabilities As at
(i) Borrowings March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non-Current Current Maturities 
A) Secured  

Term Loans  from Banks: 
Foreign Currency Term Loans#  -   46.45  48.52  163.14 
Sub Total (A)  -   46.45  48.52  163.14 

B) Unsecured  
Deferred payment liabilities  5.31  30.70  36.71  39.36 
Sub Total (B)  5.31  30.70  36.71  39.36 
Total (A+B)  5.31  77.15  85.23  202.50 

#Details of interest rate security given against Loans

i) The Holding Company had availed foreign currency loan of USD 2.89 Million equivalent to Rs. 200 Million which was fully hedged by 
converting it from the floating rate in USD 3 Month LIBOR with spread of 135 bps into fixed rate Rupee loan through a currency swap at a 
spot reference (USD INR) exchange rate of USD 1 = INR 68.98, through full maturity of the loan. The said loan was secured by way of whole 
of the Company’s tangible and intangible, moveable fixed assets, both present and future, land and building of the Company at Sector-34, 
Gurugram. The rate of interest on fully hedged equivalent loan amount was fixed at 9.25% p.a. for the tenure of the loan. During the year 
the Holding Company had repaid foreign currency term loan amounting to USD 0.96 Million equivalent to Rs. 66.67 Million (Amount
Outstanding at March 31, 2022 is Nil).

ii) ICICI Bank Canada has sanctioned a Term loan facility for CAD 4.00 Million & Revolving credit facility of CAD 1.00 Million at floating rate 
of 3 Month CDOR with spread of 100 bps through full maturity of the loan to NIIT Learning Solutions (Canada) Limited, first level step down 
subsidiary of NIIT Limited. The said credit facility’s are secured by Corporate Guarantee from NIIT Limited of CAD 5.00 Million & secured 
by way of first & exclusive charge over all the fixed assets and current assets (including brands, patents, intangibles, investments in group 
companies) of the NIIT Learning Solutions (Canada) Limited (both present and future). The current outstanding as on March 31, 2022 for 
Term Loan is CAD 0.80 Million (Previous year CAD 2.40 Million) and Revolving credit facility is Nil.

 In addition, ICICI Bank Canada has sanctioned Letter of Credit Facility of CAD 3.00 Million to  NIIT Learning Solutions (Canada) Limited, 
current outstanding is Nil (Previous year Nil)

 Terms of repayment
 Term Loan for CAD 4.00 Million (Outstanding as at March 31, 2022 CAD 0.80 Million, Previous year : CAD 2.40 Million ) is repayable as 

follows:

Repayment Dates % of Term loan facility
September 30, 2022 10%
June 30, 2022 10%
March 31, 2022 10%
December 31, 2021 10%
September 30, 2021 10%
June 30, 2021 10%
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As at
13(ii) Trade payables March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current
Trade payables*  1,251.37  911.22 

 1,251.37  911.22 

*Includes dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises amounting to Rs. 33.56 Million (Previous year Rs. 8.13 Million).
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 45 day terms.

Ageing of trade payables as at March 31, 2022

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Not due Less than 
1 year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 
3 Years

Undisputed outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

 33.56  -   -   -   -   33.56 

Undisputed outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises

 166.43  140.89  10.41  0.81  46.14  364.68 

Sub Total  199.99  140.89  10.41  0.81  46.14  398.24 
Unbilled dues  853.13 
Total  1,251.37 

Ageing of trade payables as at March 31, 2021

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Not due Less than 
1 year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 
3 Years

Undisputed outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

 7.99 0.14  -   -   -   8.13 

Undisputed outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises

 30.34  157.12  5.89  2.16  46.10  241.61 

Sub Total  38.33  157.26  5.89  2.16  46.10  249.74 
Unbilled dues  661.48 
Total  911.22 

As at
13(iii) Other financial liabilities March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

 Non-current Current
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  -   -   0.03  0.50 
Unpaid dividends *  -   -   10.43  10.86 
Security Deposits  0.52  0.52  -   - 
Future Acquisition Liability (Refer note 39)  182.46  -   329.48  - 
Other Payables **  -   -   1,729.73  1,742.19 

 182.98  0.52  2,069.67  1,753.55 
  * There are no amounts due for transfer to the Investor Protection Fund as at the year end.
  ** Includes capital creditors, payable to employees and payable on account of Strategic sourcing.

As at
14   Provisions March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current
Provision for Employee Benefits :  
-Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 24)  187.31  211.91 
-Provision for Compensated Absences  186.26  156.31 
Provision for indirect tax under litigation  44.57  44.57 

 418.14  412.79 
   The Movement of provision towards indirect tax litigation is as below:-

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening balance  44.57  49.60 
Written back during the year  -   (5.03)
Closing Balance  44.57  44.57 
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As at 
15 Other liabilities March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

 Non-current Current 
Contract Liabilities (Refer note 16.1) 

Deferred Revenue  0.79  1.17  801.52  719.06 

Advances from Customers  -   -   350.89  227.45 

Payable to Government Authorities (net)  -   -   112.68  89.76 

Statutory Dues*  -   -   225.60  221.44 

 0.79  1.17  1,490.69  1,257.71 
 *Statutory dues mainly includes withholding taxes and contribution to provident fund etc.

Year ended

16    Revenue from operations March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Sale of products : Courseware  72.25  90.08 

Sale of Services  13,722.08  9,521.02 

Less : Discounts & Rebates  (19.52)  (14.32)

 13,774.81  9,596.78 

16.1 Disclosure under Ind AS - 115 (Revenue from contracts with customers)

a. Disaggregated revenue information 

Type of Services 

Sale of Courseware and Training Material  72.25  90.08 

Sale of Services  13,702.56  9,506.70 

 13,774.81  9,596.78 

Timing of revenue recognition 

Goods (Courseware, Training Material) transferred at a point in time  72.25  90.08 

Services transferred over time  13,702.56  9,506.70 

 13,774.81  9,596.78 

b. Contract Balances

Trade Receivables [refer note 7(ii)]  1,886.18  1,456.15 

Contract Assets [refer note 7(iii)]  990.51  776.83 

Contract Liabilities (refer note 15)  (1,153.20)  (947.68)
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 - 90 days.  A sum of Rs. (11.41) Million (Previous year
Rs. 31.64 Million) is recognised as allowance for doubtful debts (net of reversal) on trade receivables during the year.
Unbilled revenues are billed in a terms of 30 - 90 days. A sum of Rs. 43.28 Million (Previous year Rs. 19.87 Million) is recognised as 
provision for expected credit losses on unbilled revenue during the year.
 The Group classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue.
 A receivables is right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time.
 Revenue for ongoing services at the reporting date yet to be invoiced is recorded as unbilled revenue.

c. Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Revenue as per contracted price  13,794.33  9,611.10 

Adjustments

Discount  (19.52)  (14.32)

 13,774.81  9,596.78 

d. Performance obligation and remaining performance obligation 
The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as 
at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Group expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. As 
on March 31, 2022, there were no remaining performance obligation as the same is satisfied upon delivery of goods/services.
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Year ended
17   Other income March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Interest Income
- Deposits with Banks & others  182.68  337.36 
- Unwinding of Interest on Security Deposit  1.01  1.86 
- Others  17.60  34.39 
Net gain on Investment carried at fair value through profit and loss  260.15  468.70 
Provision / Other Liabilities written back  2.06  1.11 
Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets (net)  0.67  11.62 
Gain on Termination of Lease Assets (net)  12.00  3.42 
Gain on foreign currency translation and transaction (Net)  12.23  3.38 
Rent concession  1.43  - 
Provision for Doubtful debts written back  11.50  - 
Other non-operating income  15.78  40.41 

 517.11  902.25 

Year ended
18 Employee benefits expenses# March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Salary, Wages and Bonus  6,261.50  5,054.13 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds* (refer note 24)  391.71  274.07 
Share Based Payments (refer note 25)  158.13  40.56 
Staff Welfare Expenses  96.78  52.17 

 6,908.12  5,420.93 
# Net of Rs. 64.02 Million (Previous year Rs. 87.72 Million) capitalised in intangible assets [refer note 5(i)].
*There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident fund dated February 28, 2019. As 
a matter of caution, the company has implemented the provisions on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order. The Company
will assess its position, on receiving further clarity on the subject.

Year ended
19 Finance costs March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Interest Expense  6.28  30.67 
Interest on Lease Liabilities [refer note 6(ii)]  14.15  28.88 
Other Borrowing Costs  0.27  0.24 

 20.70  59.79 

Year ended
20 Other expenses* March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Equipment Hiring [refer note 6(i)]  70.73  40.38 
Software Subscriptions  54.01  - 
Royalties  82.95  4.28 
Freight and Cartage  6.50  9.01 
Rent [refer note 6(i)]  48.73  53.69 
Rates and Taxes  24.26  12.11 
Power & Fuel  24.79  28.42 
Communication  66.78  75.19 
Legal and Professional  361.35  273.87 
Travelling and Conveyance   53.82  29.27 
Allowance/ Write off of Doubtful Debts [refer note 27 (A)]  0.09  28.19 
Allowance for Doubtful Advances  -   2.23 
Allowance for Doubtful Unbilled Revenue [refer note 27 (A)]  -   4.67 
Insurance  36.15  25.35 
Repairs and Maintenance
- Plant and Machinery  17.11  21.18 
- Buildings  5.74  2.19 
- Others  22.90  31.56 
Consumables  25.44  41.09 
Security and Administration Services  11.68  16.77 
Bank Charges  28.69  27.23 
Marketing & Advertising Expenses  425.41  153.06 
Sales Commission  2.83  3.61 
Donation  -   10.20 
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities (refer note 21)  5.80  3.10 
Subscription and Membership  55.94  37.63 
Sundry Expenses  19.30  18.89 

 1,451.00  953.17 
* Net of Rs. 7.74 Million (Previous year Rs. 3.45 Million) capitalised in intangible assets (refer note 5(i)).
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Year ended

21 Corporate social responsibility expenditure March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year  5.60  3.03 

b) Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year  5.80  3.10 

c) Amount spent during the year: 

-Construction/acquisition of any asset  -   - 

-On purposes other than above  5.80  3.10 

d) Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure

-Contribution to NIIT Institute of Information Technology  5.70  3.03 

e) The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of the amount 
required to be spent by the Group during the year

 -   - 

f) Total of previous years shortfall  -   - 

g) Reason for above shortfall  -   - 

h) Nature of CSR activities:  Education 
(Grant of Scholarship to meritorious students at 

NIIT University during the financial year 2021-22 
& 2020-21) 

 Year ended 

22 Exceptional items March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Income

Gain on termination of leases (refer footnote i)  -  25.42 

Lease discount received (refer footnote ii)  -  9.07 

Reversal of Provision for amount receivable towards sale of investment in subsidiary (refer note iii)  -  1.36 

Expenses

Compensation to vendors (refer footnote i)  -  (9.00)

Expenses against committed contracts and other related expenses  (refer footnote i)  -  (28.77)

Provision for compensated absences due to change in law pursuant to  
COVID-19 (refer footnote iv)

 -  (7.03)

Legal and professional cost towards acquisition (refer note 39)  (9.51)  - 

Legal and professional cost towards scheme of arrangement (refer note 41(viii))  (19.79)  - 

Expenses relating to issue of shares by subsidiary (refer note v)  -  (3.60)

Provision for doubtful recoverable in Government project (refer footnote vi)  -  (3.45)

Provision for amortisation of intangible assets (refer footnote vi)  -  (23.36)

Provision for Inventory (refer footnote vi)  -  (14.95)

 (29.30)  (54.31)
Footnote :

(i)  During the previous year, the Group continued to accelerate transition from face to face learning to Digital in its Skills & Careers 
business. Based on student choices in the changed environment and considering viability of company operated education centres, 
the Company had decided to vacate some of its leased premises in India. Accordingly, net carrying amount of right of use assets,
lease liabilities  and security deposit in respect of such leased premises amounting to Rs. 25.42 Million had been reversed as 
exceptional income and the Company had also incurred additional expenses amounting to Rs. 28.77 Million for committed 
contracts, other related expenses and compensation to vendors amounting to Rs. 9.00 Million recognised as exceptional expenses.

(ii)  During the previous year, the Company had availed rent concessions of Rs. 9.07 Million from lessors on account of COVID-19 and 
recorded the same as exceptional income in the statement of profit and loss consequent to amendment in Ind AS 116 “Leases”.

(iii)  In the financial year 2018-19, the Group had made a provision for amount receivable towards sale of investment in subsidiary
amounting to Rs. 6.99 Million. During the previous year an amount of Rs. 1.36 Milliion has been reversed on account of realization
of receivable from the buyer.

(iv)  During the previous year, the Group had created provision for compensated absences amounting to Rs. 7.03 Million due to change
in law pursuant to COVID-19.

(v)  Expenses on issue of share capital by a wholly owned subsidiary, NIIT Learning Systems Limited (NLSL) [Formerly known as 
Mindchampion Learning Systems Limited].

(vi)  During the previous year, the Group had assessed the possible effects that may result from COVID-19 on the carrying value of 
assets and created an additional provision for doubtful debts, inventories and  intangible assets in NLSL.
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23 Tax expense Year ended 

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year 608.82 223.54

Adjustments for tax relating to earlier years  16.19  (52.83)

Foreign tax paid for branches (FTC)  (3.66)  44.25 

Total current tax  621.35  214.96 

Deferred tax

(Increase) / Decrease in deferred tax assets  (103.76)  121.76 

Total deferred tax (credit) / charge  (103.76)  121.76 

Total tax expense  517.59  336.72 

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:

Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Profit before tax 2,855.31 1,804.61
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.17% for FY 2021-22 and 25.17% for FY 2020-21  718.68  454.22 
Adjustments for:
Expenditure towards CSR to the extent disallowable  1.43  0.78 
Tax impact of Deferred Tax not recognised on account of prudence  (33.51)  (129.09)
Taxes relating to earlier years  16.19  (52.83)
Tax provision (reversal) / expense in Foreign Territories to the extent not allowed to be set off  (3.66)  44.25 
Withholding taxes on dividend repatriation not available to be set off  41.47  - 
Tax impact of change in profits due to restructuring  -  (7.87)
Tax impact on account of adjustment of brought forward business loss & unabsorbed depreciation  -  19.65 
Reversal of Deferred Tax Liability on Mark to Market Gains  (20.37)  - 
Deferred Tax on Long Term Capital Loss (Cancellation of Investment in Subsidiary) [Refer note 8 (i)]  (179.51)  - 
Tax Impact of difference in Tax rates on account of Section 80M deduction  (26.52)  - 
Effect due to difference in tax rates  3.33  8.95 
Tax Impact of other adjustments  0.06  (1.34)
Income tax expense  517.59  336.72 

24 Employee benefits

 A) Defined Contribution Plans
The Group makes contribution towards Provident Fund (other than NIIT Limited and certain other domestic subsidiaries), Superannuation
Fund and Pension Scheme to the defined contribution plans for eligible employees.
The Group has charged the following costs in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss:-

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Fund  103.16  90.97 
Employers’ Contribution to Superannuation Fund  18.44  13.27 
Employers’ Contribution to Employees Pension Scheme 168.22  92.51 
Employers’ Contribution to Employee National Pension System  2.95  1.91 
Total  292.77  198.66 

The Group has charged the following costs in Contribution to Other Funds in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for Key
Management Personnel:

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund  3.12  1.10 
Employers’ Contribution to Superannuation Fund  2.28  0.45 
Employers’ Contribution to Employees Pension Scheme  0.03  0.04 
Total  5.43  1.59 
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B) Defined Benefit Plans
I. Provident Fund

The Group makes contribution to the “NIIT LIMITED EMPLOYEES’ PROVIDENT FUND TRUST” (“the Trust”) [for NIIT Limited and certain 
other domestic subsidiaries]. The Group contributed Rs. 55.26 Million (Previous year Rs. 40.11  Million) including Rs. 3.12 Million
(Previous year Rs. 1.10 Million) in respect of Key Management personnel during the year to the Trust.

 The Group has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the investments of the Trust and the notified
interest rate. The Group’s obligation in this regard is actuarially determined and provided for if the circumstances indicate that the Trust 
may not be able to generate adequate returns to cover the interest rates notified by the Government.

The guidance on implementing Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits, issued by Accounting Standards Board (ASB) of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, states that benefits involving employer established provident fund trust, which require interest shortfall to be 
compensated by the employer is required to be considered as Defined Benefits Plans. The actuary has provided a valuation and based
on the below mentioned assumptions, determined that there is no short fall as at March 31, 2022.

The details of fund and plan assets of the Trust as at March 31, 2022 (limited to the extent provided by the actuary):

(i) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at the beginning of the year  1,449.64  1,237.95 
Current service cost  54.45  39.71 
Acquisition cost  53.52  21.39 
Interest Cost  92.25  80.97 
Benefit paid  (151.33)  (107.76)
Employee Contribution  95.99  77.17 
Actuarial loss on Obligations  1.54  100.21 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at the year end  1,596.06  1,449.64 

(ii) Change in Fair Value of Assets As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Fair value of Plan Assets as at the beginning of the year  1,665.19  1,639.88 
Benefit paid  (151.33)  (107.76)
Employee Contribution  95.99  77.17 
Acquisition Adjustment  53.52  21.39 
Interest Income on Plan Assets  92.25  80.97 
Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate  6.66  (86.17)
Employers’ Contribution  54.45  39.71 
Fair value of Plan Assets as at the year end  1,816.73  1,665.19 

(iii) Estimated Net Asset/ (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet : As at

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation  1,596.06  1,449.64 

Fair Value of Plan Assets  1,816.73  1,665.19 

Funded Status [Surplus/(Deficit)] with the trust  220.67  215.55 

Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet  -   - 

(iv) Assumptions used in accounting for provident Fund:- As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Discount Rate (Per Annum) 6.75% 6.25%

EPFO Rate 8.10% 8.50%

Expected return of exempt fund 7.50% 7.60%

v) Investment details of Plan Assets:- As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Government Securities 60.81% 52.54%
Debt Instruments 32.50% 40.01%
Equities 1.06% 0.94%
Short term Debt Instruments 5.63% 6.51%
Total 100.00% 100.00%
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II.  Gratuity Fund - Funded / Non Funded

A. Gratuity Non Funded Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

i) Change in Present value of Obligation:-

Present value of obligation as on the date of acquisition (refer note 39)  13.17  - 

Interest cost  0.24  - 

Current service cost  0.91  - 

Benefits paid  (2.21)  - 

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations

   Actuarial (gain)/ loss on financial assumption  (0.50)  - 

Present value of obligation as at the year end  11.61  - 

B. Gratuity Funded Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

i) Change in Present value of Obligation:-

Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year  280.69  212.62 

Interest cost  16.67  13.21 

Current service cost  33.82  26.73 

Benefits paid  (28.01)  (18.66)

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations

   Actuarial (gain)/ loss on experience  7.60  25.30 

   Actuarial (gain)/ loss on financial assumption  57.23  21.49 

Present value of obligation as at the year end  368.00  280.69 

ii) Change in fair value of plan assets:- Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Fair value of Plan Assets as at the beginning of the year  68.78  77.21 

Expected return on Plan Assets  8.00  4.59 

Contributions  146.12  5.70 

Benefits Paid  (28.01)  (18.66)

Return on plan assets greater / (lesser) than discount rate  (2.59)  (0.06)

Fair value of Plan Assets as at the year end  192.30  68.78 

 Estimated contributions for the year ended on March 31, 2023 is Rs. 187.31 Million (Previous year Rs. 211.91 Million).

iii) Amount of Asset/ (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet:-

Fair value of 
Plan Assets as 
at the end of 

the year

Present value of 
obligation as at 
the end of the 

year

Liability
recognised in 
Balance Sheet

As at March 31, 2022  192.30  379.61  (187.31)

As at March 31, 2021  68.78  280.69  (211.91)

iv) Net Gratuity Cost recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss:-

Particulars Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current service cost  34.73  26.73 

Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset)  8.91  8.62 

Expense recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss*
(under contribution to provident and other funds)

 43.64  35.35 

* Includes Rs. 0.04 Million (Previous year Rs. 0.05 Million) recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss from discontinued
operations.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)



194

NIIT Limited

v) Gratuity Cost recognised through Other Comprehensive Income:-

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Actuarial (gain)/ loss - experience  7.60  25.30 
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions  56.73  21.49 
Return on plan assets (greater) / less than discount rate  2.59  0.06 
Expense recognised through other comprehensive income  66.92  46.85 

vi) Assumptions used in accounting for gratuity plan:-

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount Rate (Per Annum)

RPS Consulting Private Limited (RPS) 6.67% -
Entities other than RPS 6.75% 6.25%

Future Salary Increase
RPS 8.00% -

Entities other than RPS
16% for next two years 

and 10% thereafter
12% for next two 

years and 8% 
thereafter

Expected Rate of return on plan assets 7.15% 7.05%

Estimates of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

vii) Investment details of Plan Assets:-
The plan assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India Gratuity Scheme. The details of investment maintained by Life 
Insurance Corporation are not available with the Group and have not been disclosed.

The expected return on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors mainly the compensation of plan assets held,
assessed risk of asset management, historical result of the return on plan assets. 

 Sensitivity analysis
 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Particulars
Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022

Discount rate 0.50%  (14.43)  15.45 
Salary growth rate 0.50%  14.53  (13.70)
Withdrawal rate 5.00%  (26.52)  26.99 

Particulars

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Change in assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021

Discount rate 0.50%  (10.43)  11.14 
Salary growth rate 0.50%  10.50  (9.92)
Withdrawal rate 5.00%  (12.04)  12.09 

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this 
is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit 
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the 
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied for calculating the defined benefit liability recognised 
in the balance sheet.

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are market volatility, changes 
in inflation, changes in interest rates, rising longevity, changing economic environment, regulatory changes etc. The Group ensures that 
the investment positions are managed within an asset-liability matching framework that has been developed to achieve investments which 
are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans. Within this framework, the Group’s asset-liability matching objective is 
to match assets to the obligations by investing in securities to match the benefit payments as they fall due. 

The Group actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash outflows 
arising from employee benefit obligations. The Group has not changed the processes used to manage its risks from previous periods.
Investments are well diversified, such that failure of any single investment should not have a material impact on the overall level of assets.
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25 Share Based Payments
(a)  Employee option plan

During the year 2005-06, the Company had established NIIT Employee Stock Option Plan 2005 “ESOP 2005” and the same was 
approved at the General Meeting of the Company held on May 18, 2005. The plan was set up so as to offer and grant, for the benefit
of employees (excluding promoters) of the Company, who are eligible under “Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Employee
Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999”, options of the Company in one or more tranches, and 
on such terms and conditions as may be fixed or determined by the Board, in accordance with the provisions of law or guidelines issued 
by the relevant authorities in this regard.

As per the plan, each option is exercisable for one equity share of face value of Rs. 2 each (Rs. 10 each pre bonus and split) fully paid 
up on payment to the Company, at a price to be determined in accordance with ESOP 2005. ESOP information is given for the number
of shares after sub-division and Bonus issue.

i) Summary of options granted under plan:

Particulars

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Average exercise 
price per share 

option

Number of 
options

Average exercise 
price per share 

option

Number of 
options

Opening balance 89.14 5,637,204 80.45 4,942,121
Granted during the year 289.49 3,260,000 100.94 1,755,000
Exercised during the year 77.66 1,397,263 60.30 836,583
Forfeited/lapsed during the year 92.32 311,047 97.55 223,334
Closing balance 182.09  7,188,894 89.14  5,637,204 
Vested and exercisable  2,778,894  3,180,496 

ii) Share options outstanding at the end of year have following expiry date and exercise prices:

Grant Vests Grant date
Vesting 

date
Expiry date

Exercise
price

Share options outstanding

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Grant 9  Vest I 21-May-14 21-May-15 21-May-20 35.40  -  - 
 Vest II 21-May-14 21-May-16 21-May-21 35.40  -  83,300 
 Vest III 21-May-14 21-May-17 21-May-22 35.40  -  123,400 

Grant 10  Vest I 28-Aug-14 28-Aug-15 28-Aug-20 49.75  -  - 
 Vest II 28-Aug-14 28-Aug-16 28-Aug-21 49.75  -  - 
 Vest III 28-Aug-14 28-Aug-17 28-Aug-22 49.75  2  20,002 

Grant 12  Vest I 24-Jun-15 24-Jun-16 24-Jun-21 41.60  -  13,000 
 Vest II 24-Jun-15 24-Jun-17 24-Jun-22 41.60  45,000  155,000 
 Vest III 24-Jun-15 24-Jun-18 24-Jun-23 41.60  146,844  150,000 

Grant 13  Vest I 17-Jul-15 17-Jul-16 17-Jul-21 52.15  -  26,664 
 Vest II 17-Jul-15 17-Jul-17 17-Jul-22 52.15  33,336  75,334 
 Vest III 17-Jul-15 17-Jul-18 17-Jul-23 52.15  66,684  135,022 

Grant 16  Vest I 16-Jun-16 16-Jun-17 16-Jun-22 83.30  13,332  33,330 
 Vest II 16-Jun-16 16-Jun-18 16-Jun-23 83.30  13,332  39,996 
 Vest III 16-Jun-16 16-Jun-19 16-Jun-24 83.30  20,672  40,676 

Grant 17  Vest I 05-Feb-17 05-Feb-18 05-Feb-23 73.60  6,666  6,666 
 Vest II 05-Feb-17 05-Feb-19 05-Feb-24 73.60  6,666  6,666 
 Vest III 05-Feb-17 05-Feb-20 05-Feb-25 73.60  13,336  24,336 

Grant 18  Vest I 23-Jun-17 23-Jun-18 23-Jun-23 92.55  140,664  263,460 
 Vest II 23-Jun-17 23-Jun-19 23-Jun-24 92.55  207,330  316,660 
 Vest III 23-Jun-17 23-Jun-20 23-Jun-25 92.55  233,340  316,680 

Grant 19  Vest I 27-Jul-17 27-Jul-18 27-Jul-23 88.85  93,333  93,333 
 Vest II 27-Jul-17 27-Jul-19 27-Jul-24 88.85  93,333  93,333 
 Vest III 27-Jul-17 27-Jul-20 27-Jul-25 88.85  93,334  93,334 

Grant 20  Vest I 24-Oct-17 24-Oct-18 24-Oct-23 108.10  -  89,199 
 Vest II 24-Oct-17 24-Oct-19 24-Oct-24 108.10  -  89,999 
 Vest III 24-Oct-17 24-Oct-20 24-Oct-25 108.10  -  90,002 

Grant 21  Vest I 25-Jun-18 25-Jun-19 25-Jun-24 96.15  120,000  145,000 
 Vest II 25-Jun-18 25-Jun-20 25-Jun-25 96.15  140,000  165,000 
 Vest III 25-Jun-18 25-Jun-21 25-Jun-26 96.15  140,000  165,000 
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Grant Vests Grant date
Vesting 

date
Expiry date

Exercise
price

Share options outstanding

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Grant 22  Vest I 19-Jul-18 19-Jul-19 19-Jul-24 89.65  82,324  117,754 
 Vest II 19-Jul-18 19-Jul-20 19-Jul-25 89.65  100,000  166,650 
 Vest III 19-Jul-18 19-Jul-21 19-Jul-26 89.65  154,366  206,708 

Grant 23  Vest I 23-Jan-19 23-Jan-20 23-Jan-25 93.65  -  16,700 
 Vest II 23-Jan-19 23-Jan-21 23-Jan-26 93.65  20,000  50,000 
 Vest III 23-Jan-19 23-Jan-22 23-Jan-27 93.65  50,000  50,000 

Grant 24  Vest I 16-Jul-19 16-Jul-20 16-Jul-25 99.00  140,000  140,000 
 Vest II 16-Jul-19 16-Jul-21 16-Jul-26 99.00  140,000  140,000 
 Vest III 16-Jul-19 16-Jul-22 16-Jul-27 99.00  140,000  140,000 

Grant 25  Vest I 10-Jul-20 10-Jul-21 10-Jul-26 94.40  385,000  505,000 
 Vest II 10-Jul-20 10-Jul-22 10-Jul-27 94.40  425,000  505,000 
 Vest III 10-Jul-20 10-Jul-23 10-Jul-28 94.40  425,000  505,000 

Grant 26  Vest I 28-Sep-20 28-Sep-21 28-Sep-26 127.65  55,000  55,000 
 Vest II 28-Sep-20 28-Sep-22 28-Sep-27 127.65  55,000  55,000 
 Vest III 28-Sep-20 28-Sep-23 28-Sep-28 127.65  55,000  55,000 

Grant 27  Vest I 07-Dec-20 07-Dec-21 07-Dec-26 174.20  25,000  25,000 
 Vest II 07-Dec-20 07-Dec-22 07-Dec-27 174.20  25,000  25,000 
 Vest III 07-Dec-20 07-Dec-23 07-Dec-28 174.20  25,000  25,000 

Grant 28  Vest I 03-Jun-21 03-Jun-22 03-Jun-27 187.85  50,000  - 
 Vest II 03-Jun-21 03-Jun-23 03-Jun-28 187.85  50,000  - 
 Vest III 03-Jun-21 03-Jun-24 03-Jun-29 187.85  50,000  - 

Grant 29  Vest I 18-Jun-21 18-Jun-22 18-Jun-27 264.25  356,666  - 
 Vest II 18-Jun-21 18-Jun-23 18-Jun-28 264.25  356,666  - 
 Vest III 18-Jun-21 18-Jun-24 18-Jun-29 264.25  356,668  - 

Grant 30  Vest I 23-Aug-21 23-Aug-22 23-Aug-27 310.20  680,000  - 
 Vest II 23-Aug-21 23-Aug-23 23-Aug-28 310.20  680,000  - 
 Vest III 23-Aug-21 23-Aug-24 23-Aug-29 310.20  680,000  - 

iii) Fair value of options granted
 The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes Model as per an independent valuer’s report, having 

taken into consideration the market price being the latest available closing price prior to the date of the grant, exercise 
price being the price payable by the employees for exercising the option and other assumptions as annexed below:

Grant Vests Market price Volatility
Average life 
of the option

Risk less 
interest rate

Dividend
yield rate

Fair value

Grant 9  Vest I 35.40 39.04% 3.50 8.68% 3.96% 10.66
 Vest II 35.40 37.65% 4.50 8.73% 3.96% 11.45
 Vest III 35.40 48.22% 5.50 8.78% 3.96% 14.35

Grant 10  Vest I 49.75 40.75% 3.50 8.78% 3.96% 15.50
 Vest II 49.75 39.51% 4.50 8.73% 3.96% 16.61
 Vest III 49.75 46.99% 5.50 8.70% 3.96% 19.78

Grant 12  Vest I 41.60 42.73% 3.50 7.95% 3.50% 13.45
 Vest II 41.60 41.13% 4.50 7.93% 3.50% 14.38
 Vest III 41.60 39.89% 5.50 7.92% 3.50% 15.07

Grant 13  Vest I 52.15 43.53% 3.50 7.79% 3.50% 17.01
 Vest II 52.15 41.89% 4.50 7.86% 3.50% 18.21
 Vest III 52.15 40.55% 5.50 7.90% 3.50% 19.08

Grant 16  Vest I 83.30 48.89% 3.50 7.52% 3.01% 30.30
 Vest II 83.30 45.98% 4.50 7.52% 3.01% 31.88
 Vest III 83.30 44.05% 5.50 7.52% 3.01% 33.17

Grant 17  Vest I 73.60 48.75% 3.50 6.41% 3.01% 25.87
 Vest II 73.60 45.93% 4.50 6.41% 3.01% 27.13
 Vest III 73.60 44.36% 5.50 6.41% 3.01% 28.29

Grant 18  Vest I 92.55 47.76% 3.50 6.45% 2.35% 33.47
 Vest II 92.55 46.09% 4.50 6.45% 2.35% 36.08
 Vest III 92.55 43.93% 5.50 6.45% 2.35% 37.61
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Grant Vests Market price Volatility
Average life 
of the option

Risk less 
interest rate

Dividend
yield rate

Fair value

Grant 19  Vest I 88.85 47.64% 3.50 6.45% 2.35% 32.06

 Vest II 88.85 45.78% 4.50 6.45% 2.35% 34.46

 Vest III 88.85 43.85% 5.50 6.45% 2.35% 35.05

Grant 20  Vest I 108.10 47.45% 3.50 6.80% 2.35% 39.30

 Vest II 108.10 46.90% 4.50 6.80% 2.35% 43.14

 Vest III 108.10 44.66% 5.50 6.80% 2.35% 44.96

Grant 21  Vest I 96.15 44.86% 3.50 7.80% 1.43% 36.79

 Vest II 96.15 47.55% 4.50 7.80% 1.43% 42.81

 Vest III 96.15 46.15% 5.50 7.80% 1.43% 45.76

Grant 22  Vest I 89.65 45.06% 3.50 7.77% 1.43% 34.37

 Vest II 89.65 47.63% 4.50 7.77% 1.43% 39.92

 Vest III 89.65 46.30% 5.50 7.77% 1.43% 42.71

Grant 23  Vest I 93.65 43.80% 3.50 7.53% 1.43% 34.98

 Vest II 93.65 45.29% 4.50 7.53% 1.43% 40.12

 Vest III 93.65 46.75% 5.50 7.53% 1.43% 44.53

Grant 24  Vest I 99.00 42.39% 3.50 6.53% 1.10% 35.79

 Vest II 99.00 44.87% 4.50 6.53% 1.10% 41.88

 Vest III 99.00 47.04% 5.50 6.53% 1.10% 47.12

Grant 25  Vest I 94.40 43.86% 3.50 5.82% 2.67% 30.65

 Vest II 94.40 42.96% 4.50 5.82% 2.67% 33.31

 Vest III 94.40 44.66% 5.50 5.82% 2.67% 36.83

Grant 26  Vest I 127.65 45.58% 3.50 6.00% 3.07% 41.84

 Vest II 127.65 43.43% 4.50 6.00% 3.07% 44.24

 Vest III 127.65 45.53% 5.50 6.00% 3.07% 49.02

Grant 27  Vest I 174.20 46.55% 3.50 5.92% 3.07% 57.92

 Vest II 174.20 44.09% 4.50 5.92% 3.07% 60.91

 Vest III 174.20 45.80% 5.50 5.92% 3.07% 66.99

Grant 28  Vest I 187.85 46.77% 3.50 6.01% 3.15% 62.53

 Vest II 187.85 45.32% 4.50 6.01% 3.15% 66.86

 Vest III 187.85 44.62% 5.50 6.01% 3.15% 70.55

Grant 29  Vest I 264.25 48.34% 3.50 6.01% 3.15% 90.34

 Vest II 264.25 46.57% 4.50 6.01% 3.15% 96.06

 Vest III 264.25 45.60% 5.50 6.01% 3.15% 100.87

Grant 30  Vest I 310.20 48.68% 3.50 6.23% 3.52% 104.83

 Vest II 310.20 47.25% 4.50 6.23% 3.52% 111.63

 Vest III 310.20 45.32% 5.50 6.23% 3.52% 114.89

(b) Expense arising from share-based payment transactions

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Expenses charged to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during the year based 
on fair value of options*

 158.13  40.56 

       *Excluding share based payment charged in discontinued operations in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Rs 0.02 Million (Previous 
year Rs. 0.13 Million).
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26. Fair value measurements

(i) Fair value hierarchy
To provide indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments 
into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard explained below:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded 
bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock 
exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing net asset value.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example foreign exchange forward contracts)
is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific 
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the 
case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3. 

 The Group’s policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of reporting period.

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

 Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- The use of quoted market prices for similar instruments.

- The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using Mark to Market Valuation by the respective bank at the balance 
sheet date.

- The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
 Financial instruments by category

Particulars

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

FVTPL
Level 1

FVTPL
Level 2

FVOCI 
Level 2 

Amortised
cost

FVTPL
Level 1

FVTPL
Level 2

FVOCI 
Level 2

Amortised
cost

Financial assets 

Investments  5,776.78  -   -   1,447.00  6,364.71  -   -   2,220.78 

Trade receivables  -   -   -   1,886.18  -   -   -   1,456.15 

Cash and cash equivalents  -   -   -   3,066.74  -   -   -   1,757.74 

Bank balances other than above  -   -   -   1,281.08  -   -   -   3,232.99 

Other Financial Assets  -   -   -   2,717.96  -   -   -   2,493.20 

Derivative assets  -   7.91 8.29  -   -   12.82 13.52  - 

Total financial assets 5,776.78  7.91  8.29  10,398.96 6,364.71  12.82  13.52  11,160.86 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings  -   -   -   90.54  -   -   -   279.65 

Lease liabilities  -   -   -   161.72  -   -   -   300.19 

Trade payables  -   -   -   1,251.37  -   -   -   911.22 

Other Financial Liabilities  -   -   -   1,740.71  -   -   -   1,754.07 

Total financial liabilities  -   -   -   3,244.34  -   -   -   3,245.13 

Financial liability for future acquisition amounting to Rs. 511.94 Milion (Previous year Rs. Nil) has been measured through fair valuation 
by other equity (refer note 39).

As of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the fair value of cash and bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets and
liabilities, borrowings, trade payables approximate their carrying amount largely due to the nature of these instruments.

27 Financial risk management

 The Group’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main 
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Group’s 
principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations.

 The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management oversees the management of these
risks. The Group’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate
financial risk governance framework for the Group. The finance committee provides assurance to the Group’s senior management that
the Group’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured 
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and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are 
carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Group’s policy that no trading in 
derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these 
risks, which are summarised below:

(A)  Credit risk

 Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counter party resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure to the 
credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to Rs. 1,886.18 Million and Rs. 1,456.15 Million as of 
March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 respectively and unbilled revenue amounting to Rs. 990.51 Million and Rs. 776.83 Million as of
March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 respectively.

 Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned through government customers and 
other corporate customers. The Group has used the expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain on trade receivables
and unbilled revenue, and has provided it wherever appropriate. The following table gives the movement in allowance for expected credit 
loss for the year ended March 31, 2022:

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision.

Particulars Trade Receivables Unbilled Revenue

Loss allowance as on April 01, 2020  1,228.78 28.16

Less: Bad Debts/ Unbilled Revenue written off  (579.90)  - 

Add: Additional provisional created through exceptional items  3.45  - 

Add: Provision for Expected credit loss*  28.19  19.87 

Loss allowance as on March 31, 2021  680.52  48.03 

Less: Bad Debts/ Unbilled Revenue written off  (58.66)  - 

Add: (Reversal)/ Provision for Expected credit loss*  (11.41)  43.28 

Loss allowance as on March 31, 2022  610.45  91.31 
*Provision (net of reversal) for expected credit loss in unbilled revenue and trade receivables includes Rs. 42.78 Million (Previous year 
Rs. 15.20 Million) recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss in discontinued operations.

(B) Liquidity risk
The Group’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The Group 
has outstanding  borrowings as term loans and working capital limits from banks. The term loans are secured by a charge on the book
debts and movable & immovable assets of the relevant entities. However, the Group believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet 
its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived.

 (i) Maturities of financial liabilities
 The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities:
 Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

Particulars
Less than 1 

year
Between 1 and 

2 years
More than  2 

years
Total

March 31, 2022
Borrowings  85.23  5.31  -   90.54 
Trade payables  1,251.37  -   -   1,251.37 
Other financial liabilities  2,069.67  182.46  0.52  2,252.65 
Lease liabilities  32.98  35.83  92.91  161.72 

 3,439.25  223.60  93.43  3,756.28 
March 31, 2021
Borrowings  202.50  45.06  32.09  279.65 
Trade payables  911.22  -   -   911.22 
Other financial liabilities  1,753.55  -   0.52  1,754.07 
Lease liabilities  97.61  57.06  145.52  300.19 

 2,964.88  102.12  178.13  3,245.13 
(C)  Market risk

 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity 
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments measured at FVTPL and derivative
financial instruments.

(i)  Interest rate risk

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the foreign currency term loan carrying at floating rate of interest. These 
obligations exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group has mitigated the interest rate risk on foreign currency term loan 
by converting it from floating rate to fixed rate through currency swap. Hence, there is no significant challenge of interest rate risk. 
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(ii) Foreign currency risk

 The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with 
respect to the SGD, USD, EUR, NOK, GBP and AUD. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the company’s functional currency (Rs.). The Group evaluates its exchange rate 
exposure arising from these transactions and enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge forecasted cash flows denominated
in foreign currency and mitigate such exposure.

 The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in Rs., are as follows

As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Financial assets

Trade receivables & Bank balances

SGD  68.06  70.14 

USD  194.15  134.46 

EUR  402.90  224.85 

NOK  13.83  4.56 

GBP  61.48  64.32 

AUD  30.05  42.91 

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets)  770.47  541.24 

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

SGD  12.24  0.87 

USD  70.67  47.50 

EUR  81.41  80.40 

NOK  1.85  13.49 

GBP  6.46  5.14 

AUD  9.97  11.55 

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities)  182.60  158.95 

 Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments.

Particulars

Impact on Profit and Loss for the 
year ended March 31, 2022

Impact on Profit and Loss for the 
year ended March 31, 2021

Gain/ (Loss) on 
Appreciation

Gain/ (Loss) on 
Depreciation

Gain/ (Loss) on 
Appreciation

Gain/ (Loss) on 
Depreciation

1% appreciation / depreciation in Indian Rupees 
against following foreign currencies*:

SGD 0.56 (0.56) 0.69 (0.69)

USD 1.23 (1.23) 0.87 (0.87)

EUR 3.21 (3.21) 1.44 (1.44)

NOK 0.12 (0.12) (0.09) 0.09 

GBP 0.55 (0.55) 0.59 (0.59)

AUD 0.20 (0.20) 0.31 (0.31)

Total 5.87 (5.87) 3.81 (3.81)

 *Holding all other variables constant

SGD : Singapore Dollar, USD : United States Dollar, EUR : Euro, NOK : Norwegian Krone, GBP : Great Britain Pound Sterling, AUD :
Austrian Dollar.
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28 Capital management

 The primary objective of the management of the Group’s capital structure is to maintain an efficient mix of debt and equity in order to 
achieve a low cost of capital, while taking into account the desirability of retaining financial flexibility to pursue business opportunities and 
adequate access to liquidity to mitigate the effect of unforeseen events on cash flows to maximise the shareholder value. Management
also monitors the return on equity.

 The Board of directors regularly review the Group’s capital structure in light of the economic conditions, business strategies and future 
commitments.

 For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued share capital, securities premium and all other equity
reserves. Debt includes, foreign currency term loan and other borrowings.

 Loans availed by the Group are subject to certain financial covenants and the Group is compliant with these financial covenants on the 
reporting date as per the terms of the loan agreement.

 There is no default on the repayment of borrowings (including interest thereon) during the year ended March 31, 2022.

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Borrowings [refer note 13(i)]  90.54  279.65 

Lease liabilities [refer note 6(ii)]  161.72  300.19 

Total Debt (A)  252.26  579.84 

Equity share capital (refer note 11)  267.74  284.70 

Other Equity (refer note 12)  14,885.00  16,119.53 

Non controlling interests [refer note 35(b)]  39.76  33.52 

Total Equity (B)  15,192.50  16,437.75 

Profit after tax (C)  2,298.61  1,436.66 

Opening Shareholders equity  16,437.75  15,234.87 

Closing Shareholders equity  15,192.50  16,437.75 

Average Shareholder’s Equity (D)  15,815.13  15,836.31 

Debt equity ratio (A/B)  0.02  0.04 

Return on equity Ratio (%) (C/D) 14.53% 9.07%

29 Contingent liabilities

a) i). Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts:- As at

March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
- Customers  12.59  6.84 
- Indemnification related to sale of investments in Coforge Limited (Formerly  
  Known as NIIT Technologies Limited)

 2,393.22  2,307.00 

- Works Contract Tax  31.32  31.32 
- Custom Duty  4.80  4.80 
- Service Tax  32.34  32.34 
- VAT  19.42  - 
- Income Tax  59.68  61.09 
- Others*  17.98  17.98 
Total  2,571.35  2,461.37 

*It pertains to alleged dues towards provident fund payable by vendors of the Company which the Company is also contesting. The Group 
does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above.

ii)  The Holding Company had received Show Cause Notices under section 263 of the Income Tax Act, 1961, issued by the Commissioner
of Income Tax (CIT) for the Assessment years 1999-00 to 2005-06, who later issued Orders directing the Assessing Officer for re-
assessment on certain items.  The orders passed by the CIT u/s 263 for AY 1999-00 to AY 2005-06 have been challenged by the Holding
Company in the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (‘the Tribunal’). The Tribunal has since passed order for AY 1999-00 wherein the Tribunal
has decided the issue of assumption of jurisdiction against the Holding Company and on merits, the Tribunal has allowed some of the 
issues and dismissed others which were referred back to the assessing officer for fresh examination. The Holding Company has filed an 
appeal before the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi against the aforesaid order of the Tribunal which is pending for disposal. At this stage 
there is no ascertained/quantified demands. Based on legal opinion, the Holding Company has fair chances of obtaining adequate relief
before the Appellate Authorities.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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It is not practical for the Holding Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of 
the respective proceedings. Management does not foresee any financial implication based on advice of legal counsel.

Serious Fraud Investigation Office (‘SFIO’) has filed a case against one of the past vendors, from whom the Holding Company has
obtained certain services during FY 2002-05, which are also the subject matter of the above-mentioned matter u/s 263. Recently, the 
Holding Company has received a copy of partial complaint from the Court of ACMM, Delhi, who has made the Holding Company also 
a party to the above case. While the Holding Company has requested for a complete copy of complaint, which is yet to be received,
based on the legal advice the matter is not maintainable and accordingly the Holding Company has filed a revision petition challenging
the summoning order of the Court, which is pending to be heard.

b) Guarantees

i) Bank Guarantees issued by bankers outstanding at the end of the year Rs. 29.50 Million (Previous year - Rs. 12.60 Million). 

ii) Issuance of Performance Bank Guarantee of Rs. 208.73 Million (USD 2.75 Million) [Previous year Rs. 201.21 Million (USD 2.75
Million)] by NIIT USA Inc. on behalf of NIIT Learning Solutions (Canada) Limited. The subject bank guarantee has been issued in
terms of Registration Education Services Agreement dated March 30, 2017 between NIIT Learning Solutions (Canada) Limited, Real 
Estate Council of Ontario, Registrar appointed under the Real Estate and Business Brokers Act, 2002 and Humber College Institute
of Technology & Advanced Learning. 

iii) Corporate Guarantee issued to ICICI Bank Canada to secure loan of Rs. 304.02 Million (CAD 5.00 Million) [Previous year Rs.
291.00 Million (CAD 5.00 Million)], amount outstanding at the end of the year Rs. 48.64 Million (CAD 0.80 Million), [Previous 
year Rs. 139.68 Million (CAD 2.40 Million)] availed by NIIT Learning Solutions (Canada) Limited.

iv) During the year, Corporate Guarantee issued to ICICI Bank UK for availing working capital limits on behalf of NIIT Limited, UK Rs. 
419.28 Million (GBP 4.20 Million) [ Previous year Rs. 424.02 Million (GBP 4.20 Million)], Amount Outstanding at the end of the 
year Nil availed by NIIT UK Limited.

30 Capital and other commitments

a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) not provided for Rs. 22.68 Million
(Previous year Rs. 7.68 Million).

b) For commitments related to lease arrangements, refer note 6. 

c) During the year, the Holding Company has issued need based financial support letters to its subsidiary, namely, NIIT Learning
Systems Limited (Formerly known as Mindchampion Learning Systems Limited).

31 Dividend

Year ended
Declared and paid during the year and previous year March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash dividends on equity shares declared and paid:
Final dividend for the F.Y. 2020-21: Rs. 2.50 per share (F.Y. 2019-20: Rs. 2.00 per share)  333.17  283.33 
Interim dividend for the F.Y. 2021-22 Rs. 3.00 per share (F.Y. 2020-21: Nil)  401.22  - 

 734.39  283.33 

32 Earnings per share Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

From Continuing operations
Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. Million) (A)  2,301.07  1,461.47 
From Discontinued operations
Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. Million) (B)  (39.11)  (31.23)
From Continuing and Discontinued operations
Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. Million) (C)  2,261.96  1,430.24 
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) – (D)  134,430,448  141,777,217 
Add : Effect of Potential Dilutive Shares (being Stock options) (Nos.)  3,209,571  1,834,146 
Weighted average shares outstanding considered for determining Diluted Earnings per Share 
(Nos.) - (E)

 137,640,019  143,611,363 

Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.) 2 2
From Continuing operations
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) (A/D)  17.12  10.31 
Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.) (A/E)  16.72  10.18 
From Discontinued operations
Basic loss per Share (Rs.) (B/D)  (0.29)  (0.22)
Diluted loss per Share (Rs.) (B/E)  (0.29)  (0.22)
From Continuing and Discontinued operations
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) (C/D)  16.83  10.09 
Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.) (C/E)  16.43  9.96 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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33 Related Party Transactions :

(A) Related parties with whom the Group has transacted: 

 Key Management Personnel 

 1 Mr. Rajendra S Pawar (Chairman)

 2 Mr. Vijay K Thadani (Vice-Chairman & Managing Director)

 3 Mr. P Rajendran (Joint Managing Director)

 4 Mr. Sapnesh Kumar Lalla (Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. August 05, 2021)

 5 Mr. Anand Sudarshan (Independent Director)

 6 Mr. Ashish Kashyap (Independent Director- resigned w.e.f. August 30, 2021)

 7 Ms. Geeta Mathur  (Independent Director)

 8 Mr. Ravinder Singh  (Independent Director)

 9 Ms. Sangita Singh (Independent Director w.e.f. June 05, 2021)

 10 Ms. Avani Vishal Davda (Independent Director w.e.f. June 05, 2021)

 11 Mr. Udai Singh Pawar (Non executive Director w.e.f. August 05, 2021)

 12 Ms. Leher Vijay Thadani (Non executive Director w.e.f. August 05, 2021)

 13 Mr. Ravindra Babu Garikipati (Independent Director w.e.f. November 11, 2021)

 14 Mr. Amit Roy (Chief Financial Officer -Till June 04, 2020)

 15 Mr. Sanjay Mal (Chief Financial Officer-w.e.f. June 05, 2020)

 16 Mr. Deepak Bansal (Company secretary)

 Relatives of Key Management Personnel

 1 Ms. Renuka Thadani (Wife of Vijay K Thadani)

(B) Parties in which the Key Management Personnel of the Holding Company are deemed to be interested

 1 NIIT Institute of Information Technology

 2 NIIT University

 3 Naya Bazaar Novelties Private Limited

 4 NIIT Foundation

 5 NIIT Network Services Limited

(C) Key Management Personnel compensation

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Short-term employee benefits*  130.76  30.16 

Post-employment benefits  5.55  1.43 

Commission, Sitting fees, Remuneration and Others reimbursements to Non Executive & 
Independent Directors

 28.91  15.32 

Total compensation  165.22  46.91 

* Excludes value of employee stock options.

(D) Terms and conditions

Transactions relating to dividends, subscriptions for new equity shares were on the same terms and conditions that applied to other
shareholders.

 Transactions with related parties during the year were based on terms that would be available to third parties. All other transactions were 
made in ordinary course of business and at arm’s length price.

 All outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash.
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(E) Details of significant transactions and balances with related parties :

Nature of Transactions
Key 

Management
Personnel

Relatives 
of Key 

Management
Personnel

Parties in which Key 
Management Personnel of 
the Company are deemed 

to be interested

Total

Other Income  -   -   0.29  0.29 
 (-)  (-)  (0.75)  (0.75)

Purchase of Goods  -   -   0.14  0.14 
 (-)  (-)  (0.27)  (0.27)

Purchase of Services
 Other Expenses (CSR Expenses)  -   -   5.80  5.80 

 (-)  (-)  (3.10)  (3.10)
 Other Services (Included in Other Expenses)  -   0.98  1.80  2.78 

 (-)  (0.98)  (6.99)  (7.97)
Professional Technical & Outsourcing Services  -   -   28.02  28.02 

 (-)  (-)  (13.55) (13.55)
Recovery of Expenses By
 Other Expenses 0.19 -  0.07 0.26

 (0.12)  (-)  (-) (0.12)
Recovery of Expenses From 
 Other Expenses  -   -   2.07  2.07 

 (-)  (-)  (1.94)  (1.94)
Donation Paid  -   -   -  - 

 (-)  (-)  (10.00) (10.00)
Sale of Courseware  -   -   -  - 

 (-)  (-)  (2.09)  (2.09)
 Refer Notes 29 & 30 for Guarantees, collaterals and commitments. 
 Previous year figures are given in parenthesis.
(F) Outstanding Balances:

Particulars
Key 

Management
Personnel

Relatives 
of Key 

Management
Personnel

Parties in which Key 
Management Personnel 

of the Company are 
deemed to be interested

Total

Receivables
March 31, 2022  0.26  -   0.71  0.97 
March 31, 2021  0.48  -   2.09  2.57 

Payables 
March 31, 2022  11.37  -   0.43  11.80 
March 31, 2021  8.45  -   0.31  8.76 

Note:- Refer Notes 29 and 30 for guarantees, collaterals and commitments as at the year end.

34 Segment information 
 The Group is engaged in providing Education & Training Services in a single segment. Based on “Management Approach”, as defined

in Ind AS 108 – Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the performance and allocates resources
based on the analysis of performance of the Group as a whole. Its operations are, therefore, considered to constitute a single segment
in the context of Ind AS 108 – Operating Segments. 

 The Holding Company is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the customers
is show in table below : 

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
India  2,105.24  900.88 
America  8,930.54  6,496.34 
Europe  2,094.02  1,626.61 
Rest of the World  645.01  572.95 
Total  13,774.81  9,596.78 
Revenue from external customer in India for discontinued operations Rs. 0.39 Million (Previous year Rs. 1.08 Million) not included in 
above.
The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets and income tax assets broken down by location of 
assets, is shown below :
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
India  1,709.96  1,700.69 
America  494.92  557.27 
Europe  35.93  62.20 
Rest of the World  1,587.32  826.61 
Total  3,828.13  3,146.77 
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NIIT Limited

(b) Non Controlling Interest

Particulars Amount
As at April 1, 2020  27.32 
Less: Amount transferred to Capital Reserve on purchase of Non-controlling interest  (0.22)
Less : Share of loss attributable to non-controlling interest  6.42 
As at March 31, 2021  33.52 
Less : 30% of Non-controlling share of RPS Consulting Private Limited transferred to Future acquisition liability up 
to March 31, 2022

 (30.41)

Add : Share of profit attributable to non-controlling interest  36.65 
As at March 31, 2022  39.76 

36. Disclosures mandated by Schedule III by way of additional information 

Name of the entity Year

Net Assets Share in Profit or (Loss)
Share in other 

comprehensive Income

Share in total 

comprehensive Income

As % of 

Consolidated

net assets

Amount

(Rs. Million)

As % of 

Consolidated

profit or loss

Amount

(Rs. Million)

As % of 

Consolidated

Other

comprehensive

income

Amount

(Rs. Million)

As % of 

Consolidated

total

comprehensive

income

Amount

(Rs. Million)

Parent Company

NIIT Limited
2022  71.80 10,910.52  (64.35) (1,456.12)  (317.98)  (51.48)  (66.18) (1,507.60)

2021  84.35 13,865.83  (68.20)  (975.39)  12.07  (2.99)  (69.61)  (978.38)

Indian Subsidiaries

1. NIIT Learning Systems 
Limited (Formerly known as 
Mindchampion Learning Systems 
Limited, name changed w.e.f 
January 18, 2022) (Refer note 38)

2022  0.14  20.68  (0.19)  (4.20)  2.59  0.42  (0.17)  (3.78)

2021  0.14  22.31  (9.64)  (137.85)  (23.24)  5.76  (9.40)  (132.09)

2. NIIT Institute of Finance 
Banking and Insurance Training 
Limited

2022  0.82  124.93  2.76  62.42  (3.64)  (0.59)  2.71  61.83 

2021  0.77  126.27  1.80  25.72  3.27  (0.81)  1.77  24.91 

3. NIIT Institute of Process 
Excellence Limited (Under 
Liquidation)

2022  0.03  4.60  (0.01)  (0.21)  -   -   (0.01)  (0.21)

2021  0.03  4.81  (0.02)  (0.35)  -   -   (0.02)  (0.35)

4. NIIT Yuva Jyoti Limited 
 (Liquidated on February 25, 
2022)

2022 - -  -   (0.09)  -   -   -   (0.09)

2021  (0.01)  (1.96)  (0.01)  (0.20)  -   -   (0.01)  (0.20)

5. RPS Consulting Private Limited
2022  4.64  705.01  2.92  66.16  2.29  0.37  2.92  66.53 

2021  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

Foreign Subsidiaries

1. NIIT (USA) Inc., USA
2022  9.64  1,462.55  81.40  1,841.14  304.20  49.25  82.98  1,890.39 

2021  5.74  941.98  89.32  1,277.45  300.89  (74.56)  85.59  1,202.89 

2. NIIT Limited, UK
2022  1.10  167.67  1.04  23.54  (30.95)  (5.01)  0.81  18.53 

2021  (0.78)  (127.84)  (3.43)  (49.10)  (38.10)  9.44  (2.82)  (39.66)

3. NIIT Malaysia Sdn. Bhd
2022  0.45  68.21  (1.09)  (24.66)  16.37  2.65  (0.97)  (22.01)

2021  0.28  46.50  (0.54)  (7.72)  (5.37)  1.33  (0.45)  (6.39)

4. NIIT GC Limited 
2022  0.06  7.14  (0.24)  (5.33)  (2.22)  (0.36)  (0.25)  (5.69)

2021  0.01  0.67  (0.14)  (1.94)  (1.82)  0.45  (0.11)  (1.49)

5. NIIT China (Shanghai) Limited
2022  1.62  246.77  6.33  143.25  119.95  19.42  7.14  162.67 

2021  1.15  189.00  7.84  112.08  (39.59)  9.81  8.67  121.89 

6. NIIT WuXi Service Outsourcing 
Training School

2022  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

2021  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

7. WuXi NIIT Information 
Technology Consulting Limited

2022  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

2021  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

8. Chongqing NIIT Education 
Consulting Limited

2022  -   (0.17)  0.01  0.17  (48.86)  (7.91)  (0.34)  (7.74)

2021  -   (0.17)  (0.00)  (0.10)  (1.13)  0.28  0.01  0.18 

9. Changzhou NIIT Information 
Technology Consulting Limited 

2022  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

2021  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

10. Su Zhou NIIT Information 
Technology Consulting Limited

2022  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

2021  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)
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NIIT Limited

Name of the entity Year

Net Assets Share in Profit or (Loss)
Share in other 

comprehensive Income

Share in total 

comprehensive Income

As % of 

Consolidated

net assets

Amount

(Rs. Million)

As % of 

Consolidated

profit or loss

Amount

(Rs. Million)

As % of 

Consolidated

Other

comprehensive

income

Amount

(Rs. Million)

As % of 

Consolidated

total

comprehensive

income

Amount

(Rs. Million)

11. PT NIIT Indonesia (Under 
Liquidation)

2022  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

2021  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

12. NIIT West Africa Limited
2022  0.01  1.54  (0.04)  (0.97)  0.12  0.02  (0.04)  (0.95)

2021  (0.01)  (1.02)  (0.08)  (1.14)  0.69  (0.17)  (0.09)  (1.31)

13. Chongqing An Dao Education 
Consulting Limited 

2022  0.21  32.22  1.35  30.62  21.25  3.44  1.50  34.06 

2021  0.15  24.14  2.82  40.30  (9.12)  2.26  3.03  42.56 

14. Zhangjiagang NIIT
Information Services Limited 

2022  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

2021  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

15. Chengmai NIIT Information 
Technology Company Limited 

2022  0.00  0.03  -   (0.01)  -   -   -   (0.01)

2021  0.00  0.03  -   (0.02)  -   -   -   (0.02)

16. Guizhou NIIT Information 
Technology Consulting Company 
Limited

2022  0.02  3.41  (0.22)  (4.88)  21.43  3.47  (0.06)  (1.41)

2021  0.05  7.76  (0.09)  (1.25)  (7.55)  1.87  0.04  0.62 

17. NIIT Ireland Limited
2022  1.10  166.93  32.80  741.98  (172.76)  (27.97)  31.34  714.01 

2021  0.98  161.52  35.78  511.72  11.30  (2.80)  36.21  508.92 

18. NIIT Learning Solutions 
(Canada) Limited

2022  7.90  1,199.58  55.63  1,258.43  182.77  29.59  56.54  1,288.02 

2021  6.44  1,058.92  52.55  751.60  (98.35)  24.37  55.21  775.97 

19.  NIIT (Guizhou) Education 
Technology Company Limited

2022  (0.01)  (1.91)  (2.05)  (46.47)  5.19  0.84  (2.00)  (45.63)

2021  0.03  5.36  (3.50)  (50.06)  0.56  (0.14)  (3.57)  (50.20)

20.  Ningxia NIIT Education 
Technology Compay Limited

2022  (0.01)  (1.13)  (1.38)  (31.13)  1.79  0.29  (1.35)  (30.84)

2021  (0.02)  (3.53)  (2.03)  (29.04)  (0.40)  0.10  (2.06)  (28.94)

21. Eagle International Institute 
Inc. USA

2022  -   -   0.91  20.68  5.62  0.91  0.95  21.59 

2021  0.39  64.60  2.85  40.75  (5.93)  1.47  3.00  42.22 

22.  Eagle Training, Spain S.L.U 2022  0.02  3.63  (2.64)  (59.69)  1.98  0.32  (2.61)  (59.37)

2021  (0.01)  (2.35)  (3.67)  (52.43)  2.46  (0.61)  (3.77)  (53.04)

23.  Stackroute Learning, Inc 2022  (0.04)  (5.39)  (11.32)  (256.02)  (9.14)  (1.48)  (11.30)  (257.50)

2021  0.13  20.96  (1.14)  (16.37)  (0.65)  0.16  (1.15)  (16.21)

Name of the entity Year

Net Assets Share in Profit or 
(Loss)

Share in other 
comprehensive Income

Share in total 
comprehensive Income

 As % of 
Consolidated

net assets 

Amount
(Rs Million) 

As % of 
Consolidated
profit or loss

Amount  
(Rs

Million)

As % of 
Consolidated

Other
comprehensive

income

Amount
(Rs. Million)

As % of 
Consolidated

total
comprehensive

income

Amount
(Rs. Million)

Non-controlling Interest in all subsidiaries

Indian

1. NIIT Institute of Finance Banking 
and Insurance Training Limited

2022  0.18  27.50  (0.10)  (2.26)  -   -   (0.10)  (2.26)

2021  0.15  25.25  (0.03)  (0.41)  -   -   (0.03)  (0.41)

2. RPS Consulting Private Limited 2022  0.24  35.75  (1.34)  (30.41)  -   -   (1.33)  (30.41)

2021  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

Foreign

1. Chongqing NIIT Education 
Consulting Limited

2022  -   0.17  (0.01)  (0.17)  -   -   (0.01)  (0.17)

2021  -   0.17  0.14  1.95  -   -   0.14  1.95 

2. Chongqing An Dao Education 
Consulting Limited

2022  0.08  12.26  (0.17)  (3.81)  -   -   (0.17)  (3.81)

2021  0.05  8.54  (0.56)  (7.96)  -   -   (0.57)  (7.96)

Total
2022  100.00 15,192.50  100.00 2,261.96  100.00  16.19  100.00  2,278.15 

2021  100.00 16,437.75  100.00 1,430.24  100.00  (24.78)  100.00  1,405.46 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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37 Discontinued operations

 During the year 2019-20, in line with its stated long term strategy of reducing exposure to low margin, capital intensive government
business, the Group had decided not to pursue new skills contracts and decided to discontinue operations post completion of continuing
commitments. These contracts were transferred from its wholly owned subsidiary NIIT Yuva Jyoti Limited (Liquidated on February 25,
2022) to the parent company (NIIT Limited) through an agreement.

 In pursuance of applicable accounting standard (IND AS - 105), the net results (i.e. revenue minus expenses) of such operations are 
disclosed separately as loss from  ‘Discontinued Operations’.

Net results of Discontinued Operations :
Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue  0.39  1.08 
Other Income  1.01  0.77 

Less Expenses :
Depreciation and Amortisation  0.04  0.64 
Other Expenses  51.64  32.44 
Loss before tax from discontinued operations  (50.28)  (31.23)
Tax Expenses*  (11.17)  - 
Loss after tax from discontinued operations  (39.11)  (31.23)

 *Includes deferred tax credit amounting to Rs. 10.89 Million.

Cash flow from Discontinued Operations
Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Net Cash flow used in operating activities  (5.49)  (17.87)

Net cash flow generated from investing activities  0.42  2.84 

Net Cash flow used in financing activities  -   (0.34)

38 During the financial year 2019-20, the Group decided to divest NIIT Learning Systems Limited (NLSL) [Formerly known as Mindchampion
Learning Systems Limited], to a strategic or financial investor.  Therefore, as per provisions of Ind AS 105 - ‘Non-current assets held for 
sale and Discontinued Operations’, the results of NLSL were classified as loss from discontinued operations.

 The Board of Directors in its meeting held on January 28, 2022 decided not to pursue the process of divestment of NLSL and leverage
assets and resources of the company for its offerings in the education sector and house the CLG Business Undertaking under the Scheme.
Consequently, as per Ind AS 105, the financial statements including assets and liabilities of  NLSL have been restated as continuing
operations with corresponding restatement in the previous financial year.

Statement of Profit and Loss of Discontinued Operations restated in current financial year as continuing operations

March 31, 2021
INCOME
Revenue from operations  101.84 
Other Income  15.04 
Total Income  116.88 
EXPENSES
Purchase of stock-in-trade  (7.39)
Change in inventories of stock-in-trade  24.06 
Employee benefit expenses  121.20 
Professional & technical outsourcing expenses  18.36 
Finance costs  0.04 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  5.41 
Other expenses  46.91 
Total Expenses  208.59 
Loss before exceptional items  (91.71)
Exceptional items  (45.36)
Loss before tax  (137.07)
Tax expense:
- Current tax  0.78 
Total tax expense  0.78 
Loss from discontinued operations  (137.85)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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Balance Sheet of Asset held for sale restated in current financial year as continuing operations

March 31, 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment  0.32 
Right-of-use assets  0.18 
Financial Assets

Other financial assets  0.03 
Income tax assets (net)  20.90 
Total non-current assets  21.43 
Current Assets 
 Inventories  17.20 
 Financial Assets 

 Investments  46.93 
 Trade receivables  49.63 
 Cash and cash equivalents  16.45 
 Bank balances other than above  7.00 
 Other financial assets  1.60 

 Other current assets  10.29 
Total current assets  149.10 
Assets classified as held for sale as at March 31, 2021  170.53 
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

 Lease Liabilities  0.18 
 Trade payables  104.38 
 Other financial liabilities  11.62 

Provisions  10.14 
Other current liabilities  21.90 
Total current liabilities  148.22 
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale as at March 31, 2021  148.22 

39 Business combinations
(a)  Summary of acquisition
 On October 1, 2021, the Group entered into Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) and other transaction documents with RPS Consulting 

Private Limited (“RPS”) and promoters/existing shareholders of RPS to acquire 70% equity shareholding (on a fully diluted basis) for a 
consideration of Rs. 826.61 Million. The remaining 30% shareholding of RPS will be acquired by the Holding Company in next 2 tranches
based on achievement of certain financial milestones in terms of the transaction documents. 

 The group concluded Purchase Price Allocation (“PPA”) of the purchase consideration paid to the shareholders of RPS and recognised
intangible assets of Rs. 129.75 Million and balance as goodwill of Rs. 830.88 Million in accordance with Ind AS 103- ‘Business 
Combinations’. Further, the Group has recognised Future Acquisition Liability of Rs. 511.94 Million for the balance 30% stake at fair 
value as at March 31, 2022. Acquisition related cost has been recognised as an exceptional item in the consolidated statement of profit 
and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022.

 The assets and liabilities recognised as on October 01, 2021 as a result of the acquisition are as follows: 

Particulars Amount
Property, plant and equipment  6.31 
Right-of-use assets  19.01 
Other financial assets  144.83 
Deferred tax assets  7.03 
Income tax assets (net)  51.16 
Inventories  2.00 
Trade receivables  166.71 
Cash and cash equivalents  75.93 
Other current assets  29.01 
Trade payables  (148.10)
Lease Liabilities  (20.00)
Other financial liabilities  (81.81)
Provisions  (14.05)
Other current liabilities  (17.79)
Net identifiable assets acquired (A)  220.24 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars Amount
Intangbile assets recognised pursuant to PPA 

Brand  3.75 

Trainers Database  76.73 

Customer Relationships  49.27 

Total Intangible assets recognised (B)  129.75 

Total Assets acquired (A+B)  349.99 

Calculation of goodwill

Purchase consideration as per SPA*  1,180.87 

Less : Total assets acquired as above  (349.99)

Goodwill  830.88 
*First tranche of 70% has been paid. 

(b)  Significant judgements 

(i) Future Acquisition Liability

 The obligation to acquire remaining 30% interest of RPS has been recorded as financial liability for future acquisition. The Group
recorded transferred identifiable assets (tangible and intangible) basis a fair valuation. Consequent to this business acquisition, RPS 
results were consolidated effective October 1, 2021. Pending acquisition of 30% interest the group has attributed the profit and each 
component of OCI (if any) to Non Controlling Interest, which is included in future acquisition liability. This financial liability has been 
measured at the date of acquisition initially as per SPA. This amount was re-measured at Rs.511.94 Million as at March 31, 2022. The 
increase in liability, after adjusting the profit and OCI attributed to non- controlling interest as described above, has been included in 
retained earnings. This has resulted in reduction in retained earnings by Rs. 127.27 Million in the year ended March 31, 2022.

(ii) The acquired business contributed revenues and profits to the Company as follows:

Particulars October 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022

Revenue  615.11 

Profit  84.55 

(iii) Purchase consideration  - cash flow

Particulars October 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022

Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, net of cash acquired*  

Cash consideration  834.82 

Less: balances acquired

Cash and Bank  (75.93)

Net outflow of cash - investing activities  758.89 

 *including acquisition related costs.

 Acquisition related costs of Rs 8.21 Million included in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

40 The Holding Company on February 19, 2020 had approved the proposal of voluntary liquidation as shareholder of NIIT Institute of
Process Excellence Limited (NIPE) and NIIT Yuva Jyoti Limited (NYJL), wholly owned subsidiaries, in accordance with applicable laws, as 
recommended by the board of directors of these subsidiaries. During the financial year 2021-22, NCLT vide its order dated February 25, 
2022, read with the rectification order dated March 23, 2022, approved the dissolution of NYJL with effect from February 25, 2022.
Consequent to the above, all the shares held by the Company in NYJL were cancelled. The voluntary liquidation of NIPE is in progress.

41 Additional regulatory information

i)  There are no immovable properties included in Property Plant and Equipment, whose title deeds are not held in the name of the
Company.

ii)  The Group has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) and intangible assets during the year 
ended March 31, 2022.

iii)  The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for 
holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

iv)  The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority, 
as per the available information.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)
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v)  Relationship with Struck off Companies;

Name of the struck off company 

Nature of 
transactions

with struck off 
company

Balance outstanding 
as on

March 31, 2022

Balance
outstanding as on 
March 31, 2021

Relationship with 
the struck off 

company, if any, to 
be disclosed 

P2RL Institute Of Computer Studies Private Limited Trade Receivable  -   1.17 None
Shriiram Infocons Private Limited Trade Receivable  -   1.20 None
Shreya Automobiles Services Private Limited Trade Receivable  -   1.05 None
Ajay It Solutions Private Limited Trade Receivable  -   1.58 None
Dolce Data Systems Private Limited, Coral Inforech 
Private Limited, Prasad Software Private Limited, Ask 
Infotech Private Limited, Couto Data Systems Private 
Limited, Sri Sai Prabhu Computer Education Private 
Limited, Study Web Computers Private Limited, 
Anudeep Infotech Private Limited, Ramana Systems 
Private Limited, Rifson Infotech Private Limited, 
Surbhi Computers Private Limited, Edutech Centre 
Private Limited, Venkata Bayamma Infotech Private 
Limited, Unique Computech Private Limited, U D 
Info Education Centre Private Limited, O.S. Business 
Solutions Private Limited, Singrauli Infotech Private 
Limited, Crux Career Labs Private Limited, Saraswati 
Vidya Private Limited, Sudharsanam IT Academy 
Private Limited, Bss Software Services Private Limited, 
JMG Computer Education Private Limited, Intuitive IT 
Labs Private Limited, Noble Career Solutions Private 
Limited, Jayamatha Technological Centre Private 
Limited, Divinity Infotech Private Limited, Culverin 
Infotech Solutions Private limited, Suhas Computers 
Private Limited, Vaishnavi Techno Solutions Private 
limited, Suvipr Infotech PrivateLimited, Bytestream 
Infotech Private Limited, Anchor Education Private 
Limited, Jeen Career Solution Private Limited, 
Shambhvi Education Private Limited, Glenmoor 
Technologies Private Limited, Vishalakshi Education 
Systems Private Limited, Kokom Info Private Limited, 
Pinnacle New Era Education PrivateLimited, Wakode 
Technologies Private Limited, White Orchid IT 
Solutions Private Limited, Bran Eduvision Private 
Limited, Saq Institute Private Limited, PRS Techno 
Solutions Private Limited, Cognistyx Business 
Solutions Private limited, PH Informatics Private 
Limited, ABR Infotech Private Limited, E2E Educomp 
Private Limited, 2S Systems Learning Private Limited, 
Ayurda Arjit Multiservices Private Limited, Tirumala 
Tanaya Soft Solutions Private Limited, U D Info 
education Centre Private Limited, Snowflakes 
Educations Private Limited, Netspyder Networks 
Private Limited, Academic Campus Connections 
Private Limited, B Basaveshwara IT Solutions Private 
Limited, Vijaya Lakshmi Softtech Private Limited

Trade Receivable  0.02*  10.47* None

S One Technologies Private Limited Trade Payable  (1.59)  (1.59) None
Dhansree Computers Private Limited Trade Payable  (1.60)  (1.60) None
Softline Informatics Private Limited, Sathya Sudha 
Computers Private Limited, Insoft Technologies 
Private Limited, Joshison’s Computers Private 
Limited, Sri Veerabhadra Infotech Private Limited, 
Vegi’s Computers Private Limited, Rhino Infotech 
Private Limited, Assam Computer Services Private 
Limited, Cognistyx Business Solutions Private, 
Hariharan Technologies Private Limited, Tatwamasi 
Infotech Bijapur Private Limited, North East Info 
Services Private Limited, Assam Computer Services 
Private Limited

Trade Payable  (2.86)*  3.84* None

Vijaya Lakshmi Softtech Private Limited Advance to 
Vendor 0.01 0.01 None

 *Individual Companies with balance outstanding less than Rs. 1 Million.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
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vi)  The Group does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

vii)  The Group has not traded or invested in cryptocurrency transactions during the financial year and there is no balance as at
year end.

viii)  The Board of Directors of the Holding Company, in its meeting held on January 28, 2022 has approved a Composite Scheme of
Arrangement under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 between NIIT Limited (Transferor
Company) and NIIT Learning Systems Limited (Formerly known as Mindchampion Learning Systems Limited) (Transferee Company) a 
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and their respective shareholders and creditors (”Scheme”). The Scheme inter-alia provides for, 
(i) Transfer and Vesting of CLG Business Undertaking by the Transferor Company to Transferee Company, (ii) Reduction and cancellation
of Share Capital of Transferee Company held by Transferor Company, (iii) Issuance and allotment of shares by the Transferee Company
to the shareholders of Transferor Company in consideration of transfer of CLG Business undertaking.

 The Appointed Date for the Scheme is April 1, 2022 or such other date as directed by the Hon’ble Chandigarh Bench of the National
Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”). The Scheme is subject to receipt of regulatory and other approvals inter-alia approval from BSE Limited,
National Stock Exchange of India Limited, SEBI, shareholders, creditors, NCLT and others, as may be applicable.

 Pending regulatory approvals and other compliances, the financial statements of the Company does not have impact of the Scheme.
Expenses related to the Scheme have been recognised as an exceptional item in the consolidated profit and loss.

 These financial statements include revenue from operations of CLG Business Undertaking of Rs. 11,309.92  Million for the year ended
March 31, 2022.

ix)  The Holding Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a)  Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b)  Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

x)  The Holding Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a)  Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b)  Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

xi)  The Holding Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 50 Million in aggregate from banks during the year 
on the basis of security of current assets of the Holding Company. The quarterly returns / statements filed by the Holding Company with 
such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Holding Company.

42 The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Group
will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period when the Code becomes
effective.

43 Board of Directors of the Holding Company at its meeting held on June 4, 2021, has approved the merger of Eagle International Institute,
Inc., USA (step down subsidiary of the Company) with NIIT (USA) Inc., USA (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), effective July 1, 
2021.

44 Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified to conform to the current year’s classification.

 Signatures to Notes ‘ 1 ‘ to ‘ 44 ‘ above of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of NIIT Limited 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004 

Sanjay Bachchani Rajendra S Pawar  Vijay K Thadani 
Partner Chairman  Vice-Chairman & Managing Director 
Membership No. 400419 DIN - 00042516  DIN - 00042527 

Sapnesh Kumar Lalla  Sanjay Mal  Deepak Bansal 

Place: Gurugram 
Executive Director &
Chief Executive Officer

 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary 

Date : May 24, 2022 DIN - 06808242

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 Contd..
(Amount in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)



214

Annexure-3



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222

Annexure-4



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



Annexure-5

266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280

Annexure-6



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



Annexure-7

296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



Annexure-8

307



308



309



310



311



312



Annexure-9

313



314



315



316



317



318



Annexure-10

319



320



321



Annexure-11

322



323



324



Annexure-12

325



326



327



328



329



330



331

NIIT Limited

1
Pa

nk
aj

 S
in

gh
 

Vs
. N

IIT
D

is
tri

ct
 C

on
su

m
er

 
Fo

ru
m

 S
ah

ar
an

pu
r, 

U
.P

. 

 
Th

e 
C

om
pl

ai
na

nt
 

ch
os

e 
no

t 
to

 
at

te
nd

 
th

e 
C

ou
rs

e 
af

te
r 

at
te

nd
in

g 
so

m
e 

cl
as

se
s 

in
 

th
e 

be
gi

nn
in

g.
 

Th
e 

fe
e 

ca
n 

be
 r

ef
un

de
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 s
ta

rt 
of

 
ba

tc
h.

 -

2
Bi

pu
l B

ar
m

an
 

Vs
. N

IIT
D

is
tri

ct
 C

on
su

m
er

 
Fo

ru
m

, S
ou

th
 D

el
hi

, 
D

el
hi

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
al

le
ge

s 

N
IIT

. 
A

m
ou

nt
 c

la
im

ed
 i

s 
Rs

. 
10

,0
0,

00
0/

-.

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 in
 th

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 in

 
qu

es
tio

n.

 -

3
So

ug
at

a 

Vs
. N

IIT

D
is

tri
ct

 C
on

su
m

er
 

Fo
ru

m
, P

as
ch

im
i 

M
id

na
po

re
, W

es
t 

Be
ng

al

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
to

ok
 

ad
m

is
si

on
 

in
 

th
e 

N
IIT

 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

th
er

eo
f. 

Se
ek

in
g 

re
fu

nd
 

of
 

C
ou

rs
e 

Fe
e 

an
d 

da
m

ag
es

 @
 R

s.
 2

,2
0,

00
0/

-

th
e 

co
m

pl
ai

na
nt

 
an

d 
th

e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
as

 
al

so
 

th
e 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
 is

 ti
m

e 
ba

rr
ed

.

co
m

pl
ai

nt
 a

nd
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

is
 

pe
nd

in
g 

fo
r d

is
po

sa
l. 

 -

4
Tb

as
su

m
 V

s.
 

N
IIT

D
is

tri
ct

 C
on

su
m

er
 

U
tta

ra
kh

an
d

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
en

ro
lle

d 

C
ou

rs
e.

 T
he

 a
lle

ga
tio

n 
is

 th
at

 
th

e 
co

m
pl

ai
na

nt
 

an
d 

th
e 

at
tri

bu
te

d 
to

 t
he

 C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 

C
en

tre
.

 -

5
Sh

ub
ha

m
 

N
IIT

D
is

tri
ct

 C
on

su
m

er
 

U
tta

ra
kh

an
d

in
te

re
st 

fo
r 

en
ro

lli
ng

 i
n 

N
IIT

 
C

ou
rs

e 
an

d 
al

le
ge

s 
th

at
 

he
 p

ai
d 

fe
es

, 
bu

t 
no

 b
at

ch
 

hi
s 

cl
as

se
s 

di
d 

no
t 

sta
rt.

 

da
m

ag
es

. 
To

ta
l 

am
ou

nt
 

cl
ai

m
ed

 
fo

r 
re

fu
nd

 
an

d 
da

m
ag

e 
is

 2
,7

3,
25

1/
-.

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
pa

id
 

al
lo

tte
d 

to
 

th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

. 

th
e 

co
m

pl
ai

na
nt

 
an

d 
th

e 

 -

Annexure-13



332

NIIT Limited

6
Sh

as
hi

 B
hu

sa
n 

N
ag

 V
s.

 N
IIT

D
is

tri
ct

 C
on

su
m

er
 

Fo
ru

m
, R

ai
pu

r, 
C

hh
at

tis
ga

rh
ca

se
 t

ha
t 

hi
s 

da
ug

ht
er

 t
oo

k 
ad

m
is

si
on

 
in

 
N

IIT
 

C
ou

rs
e 

du
e 

tim
e.

 It
 is

 a
lle

ge
d 

th
at

 th
e 

pl
an

s 
of

 th
e 

le
ar

ne
r. 

A
m

ou
nt

 
C

la
im

ed
 is

 R
s 

1,
64

,3
82

/-

a 
co

ur
se

 t
he

 t
ot

al
 d

ur
at

io
n 

of
 

ad
am

an
t 

on
 

co
m

pl
et

in
g 

th
e 

co
ur

se
 b

ef
or

e 
sc

he
du

le
d 

tim
e 

th
e 

cl
as

se
s.

 

 -

7
N

iti
n 

Ku
m

ar
 

Vs
. N

IIT
D

is
tri

ct
 C

on
su

m
er

 
Fo

ru
m

, S
ai

ni
 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
is

 
re

la
te

d 
to

 

in
 t

he
 m

ar
k 

sh
ee

t 
of

 B
. 

Sc
. 

Sc
. 

(IT
). 

A
m

ou
nt

 C
la

im
ed

 i
s 

Rs
. 4

,5
0,

00
0/

-

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 in
 th

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 in

 
qu

es
tio

n.

Fo
r F

in
al

 A
rg

um
en

ts
 -

8
G

oh
il 

Vs
. N

IIT
 

D
is

tri
ct

 C
on

su
m

er
 

Fo
ru

m
, S

ur
at

, 
G

uj
ar

at

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 e
nr

ol
le

d 
fo

r 
3 

N
IIT

 C
ou

rs
es

 a
t N

IIT
 S

ur
at

 

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
al

le
ge

s 

se
ek

s 
re

fu
nd

 a
nd

 d
am

ag
e 

@
 

Rs
. 7

0,
00

0/
-.

Th
e 

co
m

pl
ai

na
nt

 
fa

ile
d 

to
 

at
te

nd
 

cl
as

se
s 

an
d 

al
so

 
di

d 
no

t 
ta

ke
 u

p 
th

e 
ex

am
in

at
io

n.
 

re
fu

nd
.

 -

D
ee

pt
i

N
IIT

D
is

tri
ct

 C
on

su
m

er
 

Fo
ru

m
, M

at
hu

ra
Th

e 
C

om
pl

ai
na

nt
 e

nr
ol

le
d 

in
 

N
IIT

 C
ou

rs
e,

 G
N

IIT
 B

an
ki

ng
 

an
d 

Fi
na

nc
e.

 
Sh

e 
al

le
ge

d 

re
fu

nd
 a

nd
 d

am
ag

e 
@

 R
s.

 
4,

06
,1

73
/-

.

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
he

rs
el

f 
di

d 
no

t 
ta

ke
 u

p 
th

e 
ex

am
in

at
io

ns
 

no
t c

om
pl

et
ed

.

 -



333

NIIT Limited

10
Ru

pi
t G

ar
g 

Vs
. N

IIT
D

is
tri

ct
 C

on
su

m
er

 
Fo

ru
m

, A
gr

a
cl

as
se

s 
no

t 
ta

ke
n 

on
 

tim
e.

 
Th

e 
C

om
pl

ai
na

nt
 

ha
s 

sta
te

d 
th

at
 

he
 

to
ok

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
lo

an
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 

in
te

re
st 

on
 t

he
 o

ne
 h

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

e 
th

e 
co

ur
se

 
du

e 

A
m

ou
nt

 
cl

ai
m

ed
- 

Rs
. 

11
,6

2,
72

1/
-

D
es

pi
te

 
re

gu
la

r 
cl

as
se

s 

th
e 

co
m

pl
ai

na
nt

 
fa

ile
d 

to
 

at
te

nd
 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
on

 
tim

e.
 

ex
am

s.

Fo
r m

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

ar
gu

m
en

ts
D

is
po

se
d 

ag
ai

ns
t 

us
. F

ili
ng

 a
pp

ea
l 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
St

at
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

11
Sh

ilp
a 

Sh
ar

m
a 

Vs
. 

N
IIT

St
at

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, 

D
el

hi
Th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
 

D
is

tri
ct

 
C

on
su

m
er

 
Fo

ru
m

, 

Th
e 

A
pp

el
la

nt
 

is
 

se
ek

in
g 

ad
m

is
si

on
 a

s 
al

so
 c

la
im

in
g 

12
%

 in
te

re
st 

du
e 

to
 a

lle
ge

d 
fa

ilu
re

 o
n 

th
e 

pa
rt 

of
 t

he
 

C
ou

rs
e.

Th
e 

A
pp

el
la

nt
 

sta
rte

d 
pu

rs
ui

ng
 

M
BA

 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

af
te

r 
ta

ki
ng

 
ad

m
is

si
on

 
in

 
N

IIT
 

C
ou

rs
e 

an
d 

be
ca

m
e 

irr
eg

ul
ar

 
in

 
at

te
nd

in
g 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

ed
 

he
r 

cl
as

se
s 

fa
ile

d 
to

 c
le

ar
 th

e 
ex

am
s.

 

 -

12
A

sh
a 

Pa
ra

sh
ar

 V
s 

N
IIT

D
is

tri
ct

 C
on

su
m

er
 

Ra
ja

sth
an

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
al

le
ge

s 

be
en

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
an

d 

C
la

im
ed

 
is

 
fo

r 
re

fu
nd

 
an

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

@
 

Rs
 

1,
26

,0
00

/-

pl
ac

em
en

t 
as

si
sta

nc
e 

to
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
th

e 
se

le
ct

 
N

IIT
 

th
e 

cl
as

se
s 

an
d 

cl
ea

re
d 

th
e 

ex
am

 n
or

 p
ai

d 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
e 

fe
es

.

 -



334

NIIT Limited

13
St

at
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, 
O

rig
in

al
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

al
le

ge
d 

th
at

 N
IIT

 C
en

tre
 a

t 

(P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l 
Pr

ac
tic

e)
 

an
d 

hi
s 

G
N

IIT
 

C
ou

rs
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 s
ou

gh
t r

ef
un

d 

th
e 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
 a

nd
 o

rd
er

ed
 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

.

ap
pe

al
 

be
fo

re
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 c

ha
lle

ng
ed

 
th

e 
or

de
r 

on
 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s,

 
he

 
fa

ile
d 

to
 

14
Po

oj
a 

Bo
rs

e 
Vs

. N
IIT

 
Va

sh
i

St
at

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

M
um

ba
i

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
al

le
ge

d 

N
IIT

 
C

ou
rs

e 
sh

e 
to

ok
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 

ha
ra

ss
m

en
t. 

A
m

ou
nt

 
cl

ai
m

ed
 f

or
 r

ef
un

d 
of

 f
ee

 
an

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

is
 

Rs
 

2,
25

,0
00

/-
. 

Th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

 
C

on
su

m
er

 F
or

um
 d

is
m

is
se

d 
he

r c
om

pl
ai

nt
.

Th
e 

de
fe

nc
e 

is
 

th
at

 
th

e 

tim
e 

an
d 

al
l o

th
er

 le
ar

ne
rs

 in
 

irr
eg

ul
ar

 
in

 
at

te
nd

in
g 

th
e 

th
e 

cl
as

se
s 

as
 p

er
 h

er
 li

ki
ng

 

Fo
r a

rg
um

en
ts.

 -

15

N
IIT

D
is

tri
ct

 C
on

su
m

er
 

Ka
rn

at
ak

a

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
to

ok
 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
no

t 
ab

le
 

to
 

ta
ke

 u
p 

on
lin

e 
ex

am
in

at
io

n 
in

 
th

e 
N

IIT
 

C
ou

rs
e 

th
at

 
he

 
en

ro
lle

d 
in

. 
A

m
ou

nt
 

cl
ai

m
ed

 is
 R

s.
 1

,2
1,

24
0/

-.

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
fa

ile
d 

to
 

ap
pe

ar
 

fo
r 

th
e 

ex
am

in
at

io
ns

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 f

or
 

an
d 

th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 c
ou

ld
 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n.

 -



335

NIIT Limited

16
Ki

ra
n 

S 
Vs

. 
N

IIT
D

is
tri

ct
 C

on
su

m
er

 

Ka
rn

at
ak

a

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
to

ok
 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 n
ot

 a
bl

e 
to

 ta
ke

 
up

 o
nl

in
e 

ex
am

in
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
N

IIT
 C

ou
rs

e 
th

at
 h

e 
en

ro
lle

d 
in

. 
A

m
ou

nt
 

cl
ai

m
ed

 
is

 
Rs

. 
1,

21
,2

40
/-

.

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
fa

ile
d 

to
 

ap
pe

ar
 f

or
 t

he
 e

xa
m

in
at

io
ns

 
sc

he
du

le
d 

fo
r t

he
 C

om
pl

ai
na

nt
. 

ex
pi

re
d 

an
d 

th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 

ex
am

.

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n.

 -

17
Ka

rti
k 

M
itt

al
 

Vs
. N

IIT
 

D
is

tri
ct

 C
on

su
m

er
 

Fo
ru

m
, C

ha
nd

ig
ar

h
Th

e 
C

om
pl

ai
na

nt
 

to
ok

 
ad

m
is

si
on

 
in

 
BF

SI
 

C
ou

rs
e 

th
e 

fe
e 

as
 a

lso
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

@
 R

s.
 1

,5
2,

00
0/

-

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
is

 
no

t 
en

tit
le

d 
to

 r
ef

un
d 

af
te

r 
at

te
nd

in
g 

th
e 

D
is

po
se

d 
ag

ai
ns

t u
s.

 

32
,0

00
/-

18
N

IIT
 V

s.
 

Yu
m

le
ba

n 
St

at
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, 
In

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
 th

e 
C

om
pl

ai
na

nt
 st

at
ed

 th
at

 th
er

e 

su
m

 o
f R

s 
4,

31
,7

06
/-

In
 t

he
 a

pp
ea

l 
N

IIT
 h

as
 s

ta
te

d 

a 
fe

e 
de

fa
ul

te
r 

an
d 

al
so

 t
he

 
fe

e 
re

ce
ip

ts 
at

ta
ch

ed
 

in
 

th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
 a

re
 f

or
ge

d 
an

d 
fa

br
ic

at
ed

. 
Th

er
ef

or
e,

 th
e 

no
t m

ai
nt

ai
na

bl
e.

Fo
r f

ur
th

er
 h

ea
rin

g
 -

D
ee

pa
k

Ku
m

ar
 V

s.
 

N
IIT

D
is

tri
ct

 F
or

um
 

C
ha

nd
ig

ar
h,

 U
T

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 h
as

 a
lle

ge
d 

Th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

 
of

 
co

nt
ra

ct
 

 -

20
Ro

bi
n 

C
ha

bb
ra

 V
s 

N
IIT

D
is

tri
ct

 C
on

su
m

er
 

Fo
ru

m
 R

oh
ta

k,
 

Th
is

 
is

 
an

 
ex

ec
ut

io
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n.

 T
he

 o
rd

er
 o

f t
he

 
D

is
tri

ct
 

C
on

su
m

er
 

Fo
ru

m
 

is
 

en
fo

rc
e 

th
e 

ex
ec

ut
io

n 
ag

ai
ns

t 
N

IIT
 is

 n
ot

 m
ai

nt
ai

na
bl

e.

Fo
r a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e
 -

21
M

ah
es

h 
M

 V
s.

 
N

IIT
D

is
tri

ct
 C

on
su

m
er

 
Fo

ru
m

 P
al

ak
ka

d,
 

Ke
ra

la
C

en
tre

. 
O

rig
in

al
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
D

is
tri

ct
 F

or
um

.

Fo
r c

lo
su

re
.

- 



336

NIIT Limited

22
N

IIT
 V

s.
 

Sh
an

ta
nu

Ku
m

ar
Ka

ib
ar

ta

St
at

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, 

W
es

t B
en

ga
l

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
al

le
ge

s 

ac
co

un
t 

of
 n

on
-re

co
gn

iti
on

 

A
m

ou
nt

 
cl

ai
m

ed
 

is
 

Rs
. 

3,
57

,0
00

/-
.

th
e 

stu
de

nt
 

in
 

th
e 

co
ur

se
 

an
d 

af
te

r 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
th

er
eo

f 

its
 i

nf
ra

str
uc

tu
re

 t
o 

th
e 

sa
id

 

al
le

ga
tio

n 
of

 n
on

-re
co

gn
iti

on
 

ex
ec

ut
io

n.

 -

23
N

IIT
 V

s.
 

Sa
sh

i R
at

ho
re

 
&

 A
nr

St
at

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, 

sh
e 

is
 

cl
ai

m
in

g 
re

fu
nd

 
an

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

@
 

Rs
. 

1,
50

,0
00

/-
.

al
l 

le
ar

ne
rs

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

th
e 

op
tio

n 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 h
er

 

 
 -

24
N

IIT
 V

s.
 

A
nr

St
at

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, 

th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 is
 c

la
im

in
g 

re
fu

nd
 

an
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
@

 R
s.

 1
,5

0,
00

0/
-.

al
l 

le
ar

ne
rs

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

th
e 

op
tio

n 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 h
er

 

 
 -



337

NIIT Limited

25

Vs
. D

ire
ct

or
 

D
is

tri
ct

 C
on

su
m

er
 

M
ah

ar
as

ht
ra

Th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
to

ok
 

ad
m

is
si

on
 i

n 
N

IIT
 C

ou
rs

e.
 

A
fte

r 
ta

ki
ng

 
ad

m
is

si
on

 
an

d 
co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t 
of

 h
is

 

pu
rs

ue
 

th
e 

C
ou

rs
e 

an
d 

fo
r 

re
fu

nd
 

of
 

fe
e 

an
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
@

 5
5,

00
0/

-
.

A
s 

pe
r 

te
rm

s 
of

 a
dm

is
si

on
, 

ba
tc

h 
of

 le
ar

ne
r c

om
m

en
ce

s.
 

O
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
ha

nd
, 

th
e 

af
te

r 
co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t 
of

 t
he

 
ba

tc
h.

 -

26
Si

ng
h

C
om

pu
te

rs

D
is

tri
ct

 C
on

su
m

er
 

Th
e 

al
le

ga
tio

n 
in

 
th

e 

an
d 

sta
nd

ar
d 

of
 te

ac
hi

ng
 a

t 

am
ou

nt
 c

la
im

ed
 f

or
 r

ef
un

d 
an

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

is
 

Rs
. 

1,
00

,0
00

/-
.

of
 th

e 
le

ar
ne

rs
 o

f t
he

 b
at

ch
 in

 

su
ch

 p
ro

bl
em

. 

 -

27
A

no
op

 
Pu

ro
hi

t V
s 

Tr
an

sle
as

e 
&

 
N

IIT

D
is

tri
ct

 C
on

su
m

er
 

Fo
ru

m
 G

ur
ga

on
C

ar
 

le
as

in
g 

un
de

r 
th

e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

, 
an

 
ex

-

di
sp

ut
in

g 
th

e 
fo

re
cl

os
ur

e 
am

ou
nt

.

M
/s

 T
ra

ns
le

as
e,

 t
he

 l
ea

si
ng

 

th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 
an

d 
th

e 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
en

fo
rc

ed
 a

ga
in

st 

 -

28
Ku

sh
 P

ra
ka

sh
 

N
IIT

D
is

tri
ct

 C
on

su
m

er
 

Fo
ru

m
 G

au
ta

m
 

Bu
dh

 N
ag

ar

Se
ek

in
g 

re
fu

nd
 o

f 
Fe

e 
15

 

of
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

f h
is

 B
at

ch

A
s 

pe
r 

te
rm

s 
of

 a
dm

is
si

on
, 

ba
tc

h 
of

 le
ar

ne
r c

om
m

en
ce

s.
 

O
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
ha

nd
, 

th
e 

af
te

r 
co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t 
of

 t
he

 
ba

tc
h.

Fo
r a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e



338

NIIT Limited

Ex
ci

se
 C

as
e 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 

M
an

ag
er

, 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
,

th
e 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 

In
sp

ec
to

r, 
A

sh
ok

 
N

ag
ar

 
Ra

ng
e,

 
Be

ng
al

ur
u 

ag
ai

ns
t 

on
e 

D
. 

D
. 

M
an

ju
, 

S/
o.

 

al
le

ga
tio

n 
is

 t
ha

t 
a 

sc
oo

te
r 

liq
uo

r. 

Th
er

ef
or

e,
 

th
e 

sc
oo

te
r 

in
 

be
en

 c
om

m
itt

ed
.

Fo
r f

ur
th

er
 p

ro
ce

ed
in

gs
.

 -

30
M

uk
es

h 
Ba

ns
al

 &
 

Ra
je

nd
ra

Vs
. S

ta
te

 o
f 

Ra
ja

sth
an

M
uk

es
h 

Ba
ns

al
, 

th
e 

th
en

 

stu
de

nt
 

of
 

th
e 

th
en

 
N

IIT
 

Pr
ac

tic
e 

un
de

r G
N

IIT
 C

ou
rs

e.
 

al
ia

 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

as
on

s 
th

at
 

le
ar

ne
d 

co
ur

t 
of

 M
M

 a
lso

. 

ch
al

le
ng

ed
 t

he
 F

in
al

 R
ep

or
t 

th
at

 t
he

 l
ea

rn
ed

 M
M

 s
ho

ul
d 

lo
ok

 i
nt

o 
th

e 
m

at
te

r 
af

re
sh

. 

ca
lle

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

co
rd

s 
of

 t
he

 
ca

se
.

 
Th

e 
m

at
te

r i
s 

pe
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

ad
ju

di
ca

tio
n.

 -



339

NIIT Limited

31
M

aj
or

 P
an

ka
j 

Ra
i

Po
lic

e 
St

at
io

n,
 

Ra
ch

ko
nd

a,
Te

la
ng

an
a

un
de

r 
Se

ct
io

n 
66

 a
nd

 4
3 

A
ct

 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
Pr

om
ot

er
s 

Th
e 

al
le

ga
tio

n 
is 

th
at

 
th

e 

th
e 

m
an

da
te

 u
po

n 
hi

m
 u

nd
er

 

or
 p

ro
m

ot
er

s/
C

EO
 t

o 
jo

in
 

 
 

 -

32

SF
IO

 V
s.

 

C
O

M
M

U
N

I-
C

AT
IO

N
 P

VT
. 

A
C

M
M

, S
pe

ci
al

 

D
el

hi
of

 
In

di
a 

(“
SF

IO
”)

 
ha

d 

th
e 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

C
hi

ef
 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 
M

ag
ist

ra
te

, 

C
ou

rt 
ag

ai
ns

t 
ce

rta
in

 
pe

rs
on

s 
an

d 
en

tit
ie

s,
 

an
d 

th
e 

In
di

an
 

Pe
na

l 
C

od
e,

 1
86

0.
 T

he
 A

C
M

M
 

th
e 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
 

an
d 

iss
ue

d 
su

m
m

on
s 

to
 a

ll 
th

e 
ac

cu
se

d 

Th
e 

su
m

m
on

in
g 

or
de

r 
ha

s 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 s

um
m

on
in

g 
or

de
r.

co
m

pl
et

e 
se

t o
f c

om
pl

ai
nt

. 

pe
nd

in
g 

fo
r a

rg
um

en
ts.

or
de

r.



340

NIIT Limited

33
 R

O
C

 V
s.

 
C

of
or

ge
A

C
M

M
, S

pe
ci

al
 

D
el

hi

Th
is

 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

 
re

la
te

s 
to

 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l 

Ye
ar

 
20

16
-1

7 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 g

et
 a

 S
ec

re
ta

ria
l 

A
ud

it 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

as
 p

er
 t

he
 

of
 th

e 
C

om
pa

ni
es

 A
ct

, 2
01

3.
 

O
ne

 o
f 

th
e 

Pr
om

ot
er

s 
of

 t
he

 

in
 ti

m
e,

 h
as

 a
lso

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

ac
cu

se
d 

in
 

th
e 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
. 

 
It 

is
 

al
so

 
ad

m
itt

ed
 

th
at

 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pe
rio

d,
 

th
e 

re
po

rt 
of

 s
ec

re
ta

ria
l a

ud
it.

 
Fo

r 
al

l o
th

er
 a

cc
us

ed
, 

th
e 

sa
id

 

an
d 

pa
id

 
th

e 
co

m
po

un
di

ng
 

su
m

m
on

in
g 

or
de

r 
in

te
r 

al
ia

 o
n 

be
 s

um
m

on
ed

 fo
r t

he
 o

ffe
nc

e.

pe
nd

in
g 

fo
r o

rd
er

s.
 

 -

34
Fu

tu
re

 
G

en
er

al
i

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Vs

. 
D

el
hi

to
ok

 p
la

ce
 a

t 
th

e 
th

en
 N

IIT
 

C
on

na
ug

ht
 

Pl
ac

e 
C

en
tre

 

D
el

hi
. 

Th
is

 
ca

se
 

ha
s 

be
en

 

oc
cu

pa
nt

 o
f a

no
th

er
 p

re
m

is
e 

ac
co

un
t 

of
 

da
m

ag
e 

an
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 

A
m

ou
nt

 
cl

ai
m

ed
 is

 1
3,

60
,0

8,
00

1/
-.

lit
ig

at
io

n.

 -

35
U

G
C

 V
s.

 
Pu

na
l K

um
ar

 
D

as
 &

 O
th

er
s

Su
pr

em
e 

C
ou

rt 
of

 
In

di
a

th
e 

U
G

C
 a

ga
in

st 
O

rd
er

 o
f 

th
at

 B
SC

 IT
 p

ro
gr

am
 o

ffe
re

d 

di
sta

nc
e 

m
od

e 
til

l 
A

ug
us

t 

C
en

tre
.

of
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
at

 t
he

 
Pe

nd
in

g 
fo

r h
ea

rin
g.

 -



341

NIIT Limited

36
M

rs
. D

 
Su

m
ith

ra
 &

 -

C
ou

rt
la

nd
lo

rd
 o

f 
th

e 
ex

-li
ce

ns
ee

 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t 
of

 
pr

em
is

e 

po
ss

es
si

on
 o

f 
th

e 
pr

em
is

e 

ru
nn

in
g 

hi
s 

ce
nt

er
. 

Th
e 

su
it 

ex
-li

ce
ns

ee
 a

s 
al

so
 a

ga
in

st 

ag
ai

ns
t i

t.

Fo
r a

rg
um

en
t o

n 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n.
 -

37
M

/s
 

Fr
en

ch
is

ee

Fi
na

nc
e 

(P
) 

A
rb

itr
at

io
n

Th
is

 a
rb

itr
at

io
n 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
 

ex
 

lic
en

se
e 

M
um

ba
i. 

ha
s 

cl
ai

m
ed

 
fo

r 
lo

ss
 

of
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
du

e 
to

 
no

n-

cl
ai

m
s 

am
ou

nt
in

g 
to

 
Rs

. 
1,

00
,7

3,
66

4/
-.

Th
e 

C
la

im
 n

ot
 m

ai
nt

ai
na

bl
e 

C
la

im
 

to
 

th
e 

tu
ne

 
of

 
Rs

. 

A
dj

ou
rn

ed
 to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
th

e 
C

la
im

an
t t

ak
e 

ce
rta

in
 

ste
ps

.

 -

38
Pa

nk
aj

 R
ai

 
Vs

. N
IIT

A
rb

itr
at

io
n

Th
is

 a
rb

itr
at

io
n 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

an
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
un

de
r 

Se
ct

io
n 

11
 

of
 

th
e 

A
rb

itr
at

io
n 

&
 C

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
A

ct
.

Th
e 

ar
bi

tra
tio

n 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

 

N
IIT

 t
oo

k 
th

e 
ob

je
ct

io
n 

th
at

 

th
e 

qu
es

tio
n 

of
 s

ai
d 

ca
us

e 
of

 

th
e 

le
ar

ne
d 

ar
bi

tra
to

r.

St
at

em
en

t o
f C

la
im

.
 -



342

NIIT Limited

M
aj

or
 P

an
ka

j 
Ra

i V
s 

N
IIT

 
C

om
pe

tit
io

n
C

om
m

is
si

on
 o

f I
nd

ia
 

(C
C

I)

Th
is

 i
s 

th
e 

se
co

nd
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

 

al
le

gi
ng

 
th

at
 

N
IIT

 
ha

s 

a 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

 
be

fo
re

 
C

C
I 

in
 

C
ou

rt 
of

 I
nd

ia
. 

Th
er

ef
or

e,
 t

he
 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 o

f r
es

 ju
di

ca
ta

.

40
Pr

ab
ir 

Ku
m

ar
 

D
as

 V
s.

 N
IIT

 

O
th

er
s

KA
M

PR
U

P 
(M

) A
T 

Th
e 

pl
ai

nt
iff

 
is

 
an

 
ex

 

IN
R 

18
,6

7,
05

4/
- a

s 
al

so
 fo

r 

Th
e 

Pl
ai

nt
iff

 
ha

s 
fa

ile
d 

to
 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
hi

s 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

un
de

r 
Se

ct
io

n 
8 

of
 A

rb
itr

at
io

n 
&

 C
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

A
ct

 
fo

r 
di

sm
is

si
ng

 
th

e 
Su

it 
an

d 
re

fe
rr

in
g 

th
e 

pa
rti

es
 

to
 

ar
bi

tra
tio

n.

de
fe

nd
an

ts.
 -

41
Si

dd
ha

rth
 

Ra
m

kr
is

hn
a

G
ur

ga
on

th
e 

le
ar

ne
rs

. 
Th

e 
pl

ai
nt

iff
 

ou
tst

an
di

ng
 f

ee
 a

s 
al

so
 t

he
 

da
m

ag
es

 @
 R

s.
 1

,5
0,

00
0/

-.

fo
un

d 
co

m
m

itt
in

g 
m

is
co

nd
uc

t.
Fo

r f
ur

th
er

 p
ro

ce
ed

in
gs

.
 -

42
Pr

as
ad

 V
s 

Pe
re

gr
in

e

G
ur

ga
on

W
or

km
an

 
cl

ai
m

s 
hi

m
se

lf 

Th
e 

W
or

km
an

 
is

 
se

ek
in

g 

is
 

a 
se

pa
ra

te
 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t 

th
e 

W
or

km
an

. 

 -



343

NIIT Limited

43

&
 O

th
er

s
M

ad
ra

s
a 

stu
de

nt
 

of
 

N
IIT

 
C

en
tre

 
at

 
C

he
nn

ai
. 

Sh
e 

to
ok

 
ad

m
is

si
on

 in
 G

N
IIT

 C
ou

rs
e.

 

fo
r 

in
ju

nc
tio

n 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 

or
 

re
fu

nd
 

th
e 

co
ur

se
 

fe
e 

@
 

Rs
. 

2,
65

,5
66

/-
 

ap
ar

t 
fro

m
 

da
m

ag
es

 
@

 
Rs

. 
1,

00
,0

00
/-

.

Th
e 

Pl
ai

nt
iff

 
ha

s 
fa

ile
d 

to
 

cl
ea

r 
th

e 
ex

am
in

at
io

ns
 

re
fu

nd
 th

e 
fe

e 
to

 th
e 

Pl
ai

nt
iff

.

St
at

em
en

t.
 -

44
Vs

 E
PF

O
 &

 
A

no
th

er
an

 
or

de
r 

da
te

d 
of

 
th

e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

er
 

(R
PF

C
), 

th
at

 
th

e 
du

es
 

as
se

ss
ed

 
un

de
r 

Se
ct

io
n 

7-
A

 o
f 

th
e 

af
or

es
ai

d 
O

rd
er

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ch

al
le

ng
ed

 a
re

 in
te

r a
lia

 th
e 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
 a

nd
 th

at
 th

e 
ex

-

pe
nd

in
g.

 -



344

NIIT Limited

45
th

e 
Re

gi
on

al
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

er

pe
tit

io
n 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

is
su

an
ce

 
of

 
no

tic
e 

un
de

r 
Se

ct
io

n 
7-

A
 

PF
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

on
 

ac
co

un
t 

Ka
rn

at
ak

a 
sc

ho
ol

s 
un

de
r 

IT
 

af
or

es
ai

d 
O

rd
er

 
ha

s 
be

en
 

ch
al

le
ng

ed
 a

re
 i

nt
er

- 
al

ia
 t

he
 

fa
ct

 t
ha

t 
ea

ch
 o

f 
th

e 
fa

cu
lti

es
 

EP
FO

, 
D

el
hi

 h
as

 n
o 

te
rr

ito
ria

l 

m
at

te
r 

si
tu

at
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

sta
te

 o
f 

Ka
rn

at
ak

a.
 

 -

46
Vs

. M
um

ba
i 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

Re
gi

on
al

G
or

eg
ao

n,
 M

um
ba

i
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 

Re
gi

on
al

 

de
m

ol
is

h 
ce

rta
in

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 i

ts 

Ku
rla

 
C

om
pl

ex
, 

M
um

ba
i, 

of
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 a

fo
re

sa
id

 
or

de
r a

nd
 th

e 
su

it 
is

 p
en

di
ng

 fo
r 

O
rd

er
 d

at
ed

 0
6.

04
.2

02
2,

 th
e 

at
 M

um
ba

i a
nd

 g
ot

 th
e 

in
te

rim
 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
re

sto
re

d.

 -



345

NIIT Limited

47
Vi

sh
ad

 
Ku

m
ar

G
or

ak
hp

ur
, U

P

ca
se

 f
or

 r
ei

ns
ta

te
m

en
t 

an
d 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
he

 
ca

nn
ot

 
cl

ai
m

 t
o 

be
 a

 W
or

km
an

 s
o 

In
du

str
ia

l 
D

is
pu

te
s 

A
ct

 a
nd

 

Fo
r f

ur
th

er
 p

ro
ce

ed
in

gs
.

 -

48

O
rs

 V
s.

 S
ta

te
 

of
 R

aj
as

th
an

 
&

 O
rs

co
or

di
na

to
rs

 in
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

s 
in

 R
aj

as
th

an
.

of
 R

aj
as

th
an

 to
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

ca
se

 o
f t

he
 P

et
iti

on
er

s.

Pe
nd

in
g.

 -

Vs
. T

he
 S

ta
te

 
of

 R
aj

as
th

an
 

&
 A

no
th

er
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
de

m
an

d 
of

 
Rs

. 
1,

81
,8

2,
32

4/
- 

m
ad

e 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 l
an

d 

th
e 

af
or

es
ai

d 
no

tic
es

 
ar

e 
ch

al
le

ng
ed

 
th

at
 

ar
e 

th
at

 
th

e 
af

or
es

ai
d 

de
m

an
d 

is
 

of
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 fo
r (

A
llo

tm
en

t 

C
on

str
uc

tio
n 

of
 

Sc
ho

ol
s,

 
C

ol
le

ge
s,

 
D

is
pe

ns
ar

ie
s,

 
D

ha
rm

sh
al

a 
an

d 
O

th
er

 

Th
e 

ca
se

 is
 p

en
di

ng
 fo

r 
ad

ju
di

ca
tio

n.

 -



346

NIIT Limited

50

C
om

m
iss

io
ne

r
(C

T)
,

O
rs

.

Su
pr

em
e 

C
ou

rt 
of

 
In

di
a

D
em

an
d 

of
 W

or
ks

 C
on

tra
ct

 
Ta

x 
on

 
tra

ns
fe

r 
of

 
go

od
s 

fo
r 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ye
ar

s 
20

02
-0

3,
 

20
03

-0
4 

&
 

A
m

ou
nt

 c
la

im
ed

 -
IN

R 
31

.3
2 

M
n

C
on

tra
ct

 
un

de
r 

A
P 

G
ST

 
A

ct
 

re
qu

ire
s 

th
at

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ex
ec

ut
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
on

tra
ct

 t
he

re
 

sa
id

 c
as

e 
th

er
e 

is 
no

 t
ra

ns
fe

r 

tra
ns

fe
rr

ed
 a

fte
r 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 a
nd

 h
en

ce
 d

oe
s 

W
or

ks
 C

on
tra

ct
. 

Fo
r a

rg
um

en
ts

op
te

d 
fo

r O
ne

 
Ti

m
e 

Se
ttl

em
en

t 

Te
la

ng
an

a.
  

le
tte

r o
f A

cc
ep

ta
nc

e 

of
 T

el
an

ga
na

 fo
r 

se
ttl

em
en

t o
f t

he
 

lit
ig

at
io

n 
an

d 
ha

s 
de

po
sit

ed
 th

e 
re

qu
isi

te
 a

m
ou

nt
.

m
em

os
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
A

pe
x 

C
ou

rt.
51

Vs
 S

ta
te

 
of

 A
nd

hr
a 

Pr
ad

es
h

Te
la

ng
an

a 
VA

T 
of

 C
- 

Fo
rm

 f
or

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
of

 g
oo

ds
 f

or
 s

el
f-c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

fo
r 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ye
ar

s 

A
m

ou
nt

 
cl

ai
m

ed
- 

IN
R-

44
.5

7 
M

n

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

co
nt

en
de

d 
th

at
 

C
-fo

rm
s 

ca
nn

ot
 

be
 

us
ed

 
fo

r 
se

lf-
co

ns
um

pt
io

n,
 

th
er

ef
or

e 

pe
rm

iss
ib

le
 

fo
r 

af
or

es
ai

d 
tra

ns
ac

tio
ns

. T
he

 d
em

an
d 

is 
no

t 

th
e 

go
od

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
af

te
r c

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

.

Fo
r a

rg
um

en
ts.

op
te

d 
fo

r O
ne

 
Ti

m
e 

Se
ttl

em
en

t 

Te
la

ng
an

a.
  

le
tte

r o
f A

cc
ep

ta
nc

e 

of
 T

el
an

ga
na

 fo
r 

se
ttl

em
en

t o
f t

he
 

lit
ig

at
io

n 
an

d 
ha

s 
de

po
sit

ed
 th

e 
re

qu
isi

te
 a

m
ou

nt
.

m
em

o 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

VA
T 

Tr
ib

un
al

 a
nd

 T
rib

un
al

 
ha

s 
pa

ss
ed

 th
e 

O
rd

er
 

ap
pe

al
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
O

TS
.



347

NIIT Limited

52

C
om

m
is

si
on

-
er

 o
f I

nc
om

e 
Ta

x,
 C

en
tra

l 
C

irc
le

-2
0,

C
IT

(A
pp

ea
ls)

-X
XV

II,
D

em
an

d 
fo

r 
al

le
ge

d 
cl

ai
m

 
of

 
D

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

Te
rm

 
C

ap
ita

l 
G

ai
ns

 
fo

r 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 

M
n

-T
he

 
m

at
te

r 
re

la
te

d 
to

 

D
el

hi
, 

th
er

ef
or

e 
de

m
an

d 

-S
im

ila
r 

th
e 

de
m

an
d 

on
 

ar
e 

pl
et

ho
ra

 
of

 
ju

dg
m

en
ts 

ap
pe

lla
te

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

Fo
r a

rg
um

en
ts.

Th
e 

m
at

te
r h

as
 b

ee
n 

53

C
om

m
is

si
on

-
er

 o
f I

nc
om

e 
Ta

x,
 C

en
tra

l 
C

irc
le

-1
6,

C
IT

(A
pp

ea
ls)

-4
4,

D
em

an
d 

ra
is

ed
 o

n 
ac

co
un

t 
of

 d
en

ia
l o

f d
ed

uc
tio

n 
U

/s
 

10
B 

of
 th

e 
In

co
m

e 
Ta

x 
A

ct
, 

an
d 

ad
di

tio
n 

on
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f 
Tr

an
sf

er
 P

ric
in

g 
m

ar
k 

up
 fo

r 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
Ye

ar
 2

01
0-

11
 

C
la

im
 a

m
ou

nt
: -

 IN
R 

20
.3

8 
M

n

to
 

cl
ai

m
 

de
du

ct
io

n 
un

de
r 

se
ct

io
n 

10
B 

ha
s 

be
en

 

20
12

-1
3 

an
d 

AY
 2

01
4-

15
 

Fu
rth

er
 

in
 

ca
se

 
of

 
TP

 
ad

di
tio

ns
, 

th
e 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 

an
d 

th
e 

m
ar

k 

A
pp

el
la

te
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s

A
dj

ou
rn

ed
 S

in
e 

D
ie

-



348

NIIT Limited

54

C
om

m
is

si
on

er
of

 In
co

m
e 

Ta
x,

 C
en

tra
l 

C
irc

le
-2

0,

C
IT

(A
pp

ea
ls)

-4
4,

D
em

an
d 

ra
is

ed
 o

n 
ac

co
un

t 
of

 d
en

ia
l 

of
 d

ed
uc

tio
n 

u/
s 

an
d 

ad
di

tio
n 

on
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f 
Tr

an
sf

er
 

Pr
ic

in
g 

m
ar

ku
p 

&
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

G
ua

ra
nt

ee
 

fo
r 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ye
ar

 
20

11
-1

2 

C
la

im
 a

m
ou

nt
: 

- 
IN

R 
53

.4
6 

M
n

cl
ai

m
 d

ed
uc

tio
n 

un
de

r 
se

ct
io

n 
10

B 
ha

s 
be

en
 

de
ci

de
d 

in
 

20
12

-1
3 

an
d 

AY
 

20
14

-1
5 

Fu
rth

er
 in

 c
as

e 
of

 T
P 

ad
di

tio
ns

, 

di
ss

im
ila

r 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 
an

d 

re
je

ct
ed

 
in

 
m

ul
tip

le
 

ca
se

s 

Fu
rth

er
 i

n 
ca

se
 o

f 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
G

ua
ra

nt
ee

 
C

ha
rg

e,
 

th
e 

in
 s

im
ila

r c
as

es
 

A
dj

ou
rn

ed
 S

in
e 

D
ie

 -

55
Vs

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

er
of

 In
co

m
e 

Ta
x,

 C
en

tra
l 

C
irc

le
-2

0,

C
IT

(A
pp

ea
ls)

-4
4,

D
em

an
d 

ra
is

ed
 o

n 
ac

co
un

t 
of

 
de

ni
al

 
of

 
de

du
ct

io
n 

fo
r 

an
d 

ad
di

tio
n 

on
 

ac
co

un
t 

of
 

Tr
an

sf
er

 
Pr

ic
in

g 
-C

or
po

ra
te

 
G

ua
ra

nt
ee

 
fo

r 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
Ye

ar
 

20
13

-1
4 

C
la

im
 a

m
ou

nt
: -

 IN
R 

4.
8 

M
n 

20
12

-1
3 

an
d 

AY
 

20
14

-1
5 

Fu
rth

er
 i

n 
ca

se
 o

f 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
G

ua
ra

nt
ee

 
C

ha
rg

e,
 

th
e 

in
 s

im
ila

r c
as

es
 

A
dj

ou
rn

ed
 S

in
e 

D
ie

 -



349

NIIT Limited

56
A

ss
ist

an
t 

C
om

m
iss

io
ne

r
of

 In
co

m
e 

Ta
x,

 
C

irc
le

 2
 V

s 
N

IIT
 

ITA
T 

De
lh

i
De

m
an

d 
ra

ise
d 

on
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f 

Ye
ar

 
20

02
-0

3 
to

 
20

04
-0

5 

c)
 T

he
 h

ea
rin

g 
at

 I
TA

T 
ha

s 
al

so
 

be
en

 c
on

cl
ud

ed

De
lh

i d
ism

iss
in

g 
th

e 

57
N

IIT
 O

nl
in

e 

C
om

m
iss

io
ne

r
of

 In
co

m
e 

Ta
x,

 
C

irc
le

 1
3 

(1
), 

C
IT

(A
)- 

De
lh

i
De

m
an

d 
ra

ise
d 

on
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f 

fo
r 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ye
ar

 
20

01
-0

2 
Th

e 
ad

di
tio

ns
 a

re
 n

ot
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

as
 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
se

ttl
ed

 
ju

di
ci

al
 

cl
ai

m
 o

f e
xp

en
se

s 

Fo
r a

rg
um

en
ts.

 -

58
As

sis
ta

nt
Co

m
m

iss
io

ne
r

of
 In

co
m

e 
Ta

x 
Ce

nt
ra

l C
irc

le
-8

, 

ITA
T 

De
lh

i
Th

e 
ad

di
tio

ns
 a

re
 n

ot
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

C
IT

(A
)

Fo
r a

rg
um

en
ts.

 -

C
om

m
iss

io
ne

r
of

 In
co

m
e 

Ta
x 

De
lh

i

N
o 

Ta
x 

De
m

an
d 

A
sc

er
ta

in
ed

 
at

 
th

is 
sta

ge
 

Ca
us

e 
N

ot
ic

es
 u

nd
er

 s
ec

tio
n 

26
3 

la
te

r 
iss

ue
d 

O
rd

er
s 

di
re

cti
ng

 
th

e 

on
 c

er
ta

in
 it

em
s. 

Th
e 

or
de

rs
 p

as
se

d 

th
e 

In
co

m
e 

Ta
x 

Ap
pe

lla
te

 T
rib

un
al

 

iss
ue

 o
f 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

of
 j

ur
isd

ic
tio

n 

De
lh

i 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
af

or
es

ai
d 

or
de

r 

di
sp

os
al

. 
At

 t
hi

s 
sta

ge
 t

he
re

 i
s 

no
 

Fo
r a

rg
um

en
ts.

 -



350

NIIT Limited

60
C

om
m

is
si

on
-

er
 o

f I
nc

om
e 

Ta
x 

(C
en

-

D
el

hi

ITA
T 

D
el

hi
N

o 
Ta

x 
D

em
an

d 
A

sc
er

ta
in

ed
 

at
 

th
is

 
sta

ge
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ye
ar

: 
- 

20
00

-
01

 to
 2

00
5-

06

 
Fo

r a
rg

um
en

ts.
 -

61
Vs

 C
om

m
is

-
si

on
er

, C
G

ST
 

D
el

hi
 E

as
t 

Re
je

ct
io

n 
of

 
Re

fu
nd

 

cr
ed

it 
no

te
s 

to
 th

e 
cu

sto
m

er
s,

 

A
ct

 is
 o

ug
ht

 to
 b

e 
re

fu
nd

ed

Fo
r a

rg
um

en
ts.

 -

62
Pr

in
ci

pa
l 

C
om

m
is

si
on

-
er

 o
f I

nc
om

e 

D
el

hi
 V

s 
N

IIT
 

D
el

hi
D

em
an

d 
ra

is
ed

 o
n 

ac
co

un
t 

of
 d

en
ia

l o
f d

ed
uc

tio
n 

u/
S 

10
B 

of
 th

e 
In

co
m

e 
Ta

x 
A

ct
, 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ye
ar

 2
00

6-
07

 

C
la

im
 a

m
ou

nt
: -

 IN
R 

41
.6

0 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
In

te
re

st)

to
 

cl
ai

m
 

de
du

ct
io

n 
un

de
r 

se
ct

io
n 

10
B 

ha
s 

be
en

 

D
el

hi
/I

TA
T- 

D
el

hi
 in

 A
Y 

20
06

-

Fo
r A

rg
um

en
ts

 -

63
Pr

in
ci

pa
l 

C
om

m
is

si
on

-
er

 o
f I

nc
om

e 

D
el

hi
 V

s 
N

IIT
 

D
el

hi
D

em
an

d 
ra

is
ed

 o
n 

ac
co

un
t 

of
 d

en
ia

l o
f d

ed
uc

tio
n 

u/
S 

10
B 

of
 th

e 
In

co
m

e 
Ta

x 
A

ct
, 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ye
ar

 2
00

7-
08

 

C
la

im
 

am
ou

nt
: 

- 
IN

R 

IN
R 

85
.5

2 
M

n 

to
 

cl
ai

m
 

de
du

ct
io

n 
un

de
r 

se
ct

io
n 

10
B 

ha
s 

be
en

 

D
el

hi
/I

TA
T- 

D
el

hi
 in

 A
Y 

20
06

-

Fo
r A

rg
um

en
ts

 -



351

Annexure-14



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



Annexure-15

361



362




